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Delivering

TUI Group is the world’s leading integrated
tourism group, operating in some 180 countries
around the globe. We open up new horizons
for our customers, shareholders and employees.
We create unique holiday moments. From the
booking to the journey home.

We stand for a clear strategy, growth, a robust
business model and an attractive dividend policy.

Delivering experiences. Delivering results.




» We deliver
what we
promise.«

Friedrich Joussen, CEO of TUI AG
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OUR VISION

Discovering the world's diversity, exploring
new horizons, experiencing foreign countries
and cultures: travel broadens peoples’ minds.
At TUIl we create unforgettable moments for
our customers across the world and make
their dreams come true.

We are mindful of the importance of travel and
tourism for many countries in the world and
the people living there. We partner with these
countries and help shape their future — in a
committed and sustainable manner.

We, the 67,000 TUI employees.
Think Travel. Think TUI.
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»As the world’s leading
tourism group, we grant
our customers travel
experiences tailored to
their individual wishes.«

FRIEDRICH JOUSSEN, Chief Executive Officer, TUI Group
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Media

The Magazine and the
Annual Report are
also available online
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»Qur strategy is
proving to be robust
and future-proof«

TUI Group is consistently pursuing growth, relying on a balance
of centrally managed business segments and strong, locally
based national operators and subsidiaries. In our interview, TUI Group
CEO Fritz Joussen talks about the advantages of this approach,
new fields for growth and the significance of good leadership.
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OVER 100 DESTINATIONS

Last year TUI Group posted another double-digit
increase in its operating result, despite the major
geopolitical challenges that persist. How did we do it?

FRITZ JOUSSEN: Our strategic structure as an inte-
grated tourism group has proven to be tremendously
robust — last year especially, for all the external shocks.
As we own access to every component in the tourism
value chain and have a presence in almost every destin-
ation around the world, we can respond flexibly to our
customers' changing travel wishes. For example, at the
end of 2015 when a Kolavia plane crashed in Sharm-
el-Sheik, within the space of 24 hours we had purchased
additional bed capacity in Spain for 26 million euros,
drawn up new flight timetables and
geared our distribution channels to
those destinations. That flexibility bene-
fits us, because we profit commercially,
but also our customers benefit in terms
of the extremely diverse options we
can offer them.

Even so, destinations like Turkey
have witnessed a double-digit decline
in visitor numbers.

The first decisive question for me is

whether our industry as a whole is growing. And it is.
People want to travel, to explore other cultures and
countries, except that their preferences shift from one
year to the next. TUl has a presence in more than
100 countries around the globe. That gives our busi-
ness a broad base to build on. When we merged with
TUI Travel at the end of 2014, we promised the capital
market that in the three-year period up to financial
year 2017/18 we would achieve an average growth in
adjusted EBITA of at least 10 per cent a year. And
we are sticking to that forecast.

» The tourism
industry is
growing.
People want
to travel.«

In the last financial year, you defined six areas
that you wanted to manage centrally from Group
headquarters. What was behind that decision?

We want to tap into the global economies of scale that
are available to us because of our size and international
make-up, and which give us a competitive edge. With
that in mind, we looked at the various activities we
cover as a Group and identified six areas where we can
draw on our strengths as a global player. Those are
brand, IT, flights, investment in hotels
and product sourcing, cruises, and
destination services. But at the point
where the competition is won or lost,
being close to customers with their
individual wishes, local management

in the markets operate with complete
autonomy. | call that interplay “free-
dom within a framework”.

Implementing the single TUI brand
on a global scale must be especially
challenging. How much headway
have you made?

The TUI brand is extremely strong in the international
arena. We have made some great progress, especially
thanks to the huge effort and commitment of the local
markets, which have been exemplary in supporting
migration to the TUI brand — above all with lots of ideas
and activities for local employees. Apart from Germany,
Austria, Switzerland and Poland, where we have always
marketed our business under the name TUI, we now
also operate under the global umbrella brand in the
Netherlands, France, Belgium and Scandinavia. The
last countries, the United Kingdom and Ireland, will be



MAGAZINE

—

Cruises

T~

Brand

By the end of 2017,

the Group will be visible
throughout Europe under
the single TUI brand.

IT

A central IT infrastructure —
making us more individual and
personal for the customer.

Cruises

Our growth aspirations in
the cruise business call

for joint decisions about the
investments required.

Flight

Stronger collaboration in
flight operations permits
substantial cost savings.

Destination services

In the holiday destinations,
customers are looked after
by an international team.

Hotel

Investment in new hotels.
International marketing

for core hotel brands boosts
occupancy.
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TUl GROUP'S
6 GLOBAL
PLATFORMS

making the change in 2017. So from next year our cus-
tomers all over Europe will have a consistent brand
experience right along the value chain, from seeking ad-
vice in the travel agency, to enjoying the flight, to the
services they receive on holiday. In the destinations, we
have created a single international team, bringing to-
gether all the tour guides who used to work separately
along national lines. The TUI brand is already extremely
visible in the resorts. Our customers trust TUI, and our
employees are proud to be part of this international
TUI family.

Why is the development of your hotel and cruise
portfolio managed centrally?

We want to achieve major growth in both business areas
in the next few years. Given the investments that we
will require to do that, we ought to agree together as
a Group where we want to target our resources into
new facilities, countries and ships. Because ultimately
the occupancy of those hotels and ships — secured



thanks to the distribution potential of our local mar-
kets — will decide how successful we are. That is why

it also makes sense to market our four hotel brands Riu,
Robinson, TUI Blue and TUI Magic Life and the three
hotel formats Sensimar, Sensatori and Family Life within
an international framework.

Will you be focusing on specific destinations as
you expand your hotel operations?

The long-haul destinations are becoming hugely more
important and the return on capital is especially good
in countries with 365 days of sunshine. That's why we
will primarily build our own hotels in
those regions. One focus for our
investments is the Caribbean — an all-
year destination which customers
from both Europe and the United
States always love to visit. With the
Dreamliner, we now have an airplane
that can fly there from the UK without
refuelling on the way, and at relatively
low cost. That lets us produce a Carib-
bean holiday for almost the same out-
lay as a holiday on the Canaries. Be-
sides, demand in the Caribbean is rising every year by
two-digit figures, but there isn't the hotel capacity to
match. So now we are building our own hotels there,
and we estimate that every asset will generate a return
of up to 20 per cent.

What are the motives for centralising flight operations?

In the past we behaved like five separate airlines, and
we did not make rigorous use of the cost advantages
that could have been had within an alliance. Now we
are changing that. We are, for example, one of Boeing's
biggest customers, and that ought to be reflected in
the terms when we purchase aircraft. In addition to that,
we configure the planes in a way that makes it easier
to exchange them between different countries in line
with demand. We also have a one-stop shop for main-

» We will continue
to grow our
hotel and cruise
business.«

“Our strategy is proving to be robust and future-proof” 7

tenance and ground handling. Flight planning and
crew planning remain a local responsibility. All in all,
we expect this greater centralisation to generate
considerable savings.

Digitisation has radically transformed a number of in-
dustries. What steps is TUI Group taking to manage the
changes in tourism proactively?

The key for us is to construct a
central IT infrastructure. We need
a standard customer platform
and a central CRM system to have
a picture of our customers. That

is essential if we want to offer cus-
tomers personalised services and
products tailored to their needs.
If we know, for example, that a
guest has a preference for Room
624 in Robinson Club Cala Serena
on Majorca, and it is still not occupied as the first week
of October approaches, it would be fantastic if we could
offer them that room at a special rate. Both sides stand
to gain. That is the path we need to go down in future.
It makes us more individual and personal from the cus-
tomer’s point-of-view.
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»| need leadership in

times of change.«

You are not just highly involved in Group strategy and
areas of growth, but also with the whole issue of lead-
ership. What makes a good manager in your view?

The demands placed on managers are very diverse and
complex, especially when they are responsible for an
international team or working within a matrix structure.
But I think four things are crucial to good leadership.
Managers should always have a vision and use it to de-
rive a strategy. They should be able to inspire people
and set a good example to trigger engagement among
employees. Good managers should build a team

with the right people in the right roles. And finally, they
should be movers and shakers who define clear ob-
jectives, remove obstacles from the path, and are pre-
pared to make tough decisions.

So does that mean communication skills are no longer
so decisive, given that digitisation enables people to
access a lot of information for themselves?

Anyone who does not want to engage with people in a
positive spirit should not be looking for a leadership
role. | need leadership most in times of change. And |
am only going to get my employees onside as we
tackle that change by being open with my team and
constantly in dialogue with them. | am sure everyone
has their own style, and that is absolutely fine. But there
has to be a vision. In our Group, the vision we are pur-
suing is “Think Travel. Think TUI". We want to be first in
people’s hearts and minds whenever they think about
travel and faraway places. That is a very ambitious goal,
and one that managers and employees can bring to
life in very individual ways through their ideas and their
conduct.
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LEADERSHIP MODEL

A good model is based on four modules:
Vision, Inspire, Build Teams and Execute.

2
VISION

® Define which challenge
you want to master
® Define your STRATEGY

re  SHIP &

EXECUTE | sy ' INSPIRE

|
® Define success (objectives) | ® Is about people ‘
and motivate \\ ® Is needed in times / at all levels — share VISION,
® Empower, remove obstacles of change STRATEGY and VALUES
® Be prepared to take difficult ® [ead with high energy and
decisions

lead by example

® Create ENGAGEMENT

2
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BUILD TEAMS

® Get the right people in the
right positions
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Long-haul travel is on trend. Last year alone, the figures rose by 8 per cent. Wl
Countries that can promise sunshine all year inevitably appeal to holidaymakers, but
they also offer a high return on capital. Investments in group-owned hotels
and clubs have focused on the Caribbean and Asia. Robinson and Riu, for example, will
be opening new facilities in the Maldives in 2017 and 2018. A visit to existing
and future Robinson islands illustrates the challenges facing expansion that are posed
by local infrastructure, but also the sustainable philosophy that has already
been implemented in construction. Besides, this growth strategy has been attracting

the attention of new target groups — 365 days a year.




rooms in own-brand
hotels in the Maldives
in 2016 and 2018

A CLIMATE FOR GROWTH

A consistently warm climate provides irresistible holiday land-
scapes. It also means that hotels can operate commercially
all year round. Asia and the Indian Ocean, in particular, offer
huge potential. Fascinating cultures in different countries
blend with the quality and service of TUI's hotel brands and
formats to create new holiday idylls.
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Long-haul travel is on
Countries that can promise
they also offer a high t

and clubs have focused on ti
be opening new facilitie
and future Robinson islands
by local infrastructure, |
been implemented in consti
the attentiol

THOMAS PIETZKA, Managing Director TUI Hotels & Resorts

»Good, stable weather is only one ingredient
in the recipe for success that makes a holiday
resort attractive. With TUI's proven hotel
brands, we want to offer our customers the
same variety and high standards in new
destinations too.«
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LOCAL
RESOURCES

of the demand for watermelons,
bananas and aubergines
is grown on the next island

Trading with neighbours creates jobs: freshly caught fish and
produce from local fruit and vegetable growers not only tickle
your taste buds of TUI customers, but also maintain a flow

of orders for the island population. In the resort itself, Robinson
Club Maldives Huvadhu has 45 per cent Maldivians on its

staff and provides on-site training in hotel skills.
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»What appeals to me most about running
a club in the Maldives are the logistical
challenges, but also working together with
the incredibly hospitable people here.«

i
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HEINZ TRAUTMANN, General Manager Robinson Club Maldives Huvadhu









INFRASTRUCTURE
UPGRADE

propeller planes

seaplanes

speedboats

Robinson Club Maldives Huvadhu in Gaaf Alif Atoll records
around 14,000 arrivals and departures a year. Travelling on from
the international airport in Malé is all about choosing the right
type of vehicle and meeting the logistical challenge. Guests reach
the Club by taking propeller planes commonly used on domes-
tic flights, followed by a speedboat. But the infrastructure varies
widely within this huge island state. For the expansion into
Noonu Atoll, planners need to consider smaller seaplanes that
only fly by day.



ALl OSMAN CAKAR, Front Office & Hotel Yield Manager,
Robinson Club Maldives Huvadhu

»Qur guests from Europe usually take a
whole day to reach the island paradise. All
the more important that we offer them
great service and plenty of comfort. In that
respect, a huge amount has been achieved
in the Maldives in recent years.«









SUSTAINABLE
ARCHITECTURE

35%

cost savings thanks to the
latest climate technologies

750 workers are currently transforming the uninhabited island

of Orivaru into the second Robinson Club in the Maldives. Energy
efficiency is a pivotal element of the design. The innovative heat
recovery system and new air conditioning technology will cut not
only consumption, which is good for the climate, but also costs.
Operational sustainability is also enhanced by high-standard sew-
age treatment and an in-house unit to turn sea water into drink-
ing water.



»Qur energy-saving measures have
been tried and tested in the world's
major cities. But for a region like the
Maldives they are very new and
relatively rare.«

JOHN JARMANN, site manager at the new Robinson Club Noonu
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50% 50%

European guests  Asian guests

PROMISING
MARKETS

The ideal location in the Indian Ocean is also a key to expansion
in the Asia Region. About 50 per cent of Robinson guests already
come from China, Japan and Korea. Besides, TUI's new resorts
are easily reachable for holiday-seeking ex-pats who work for Eu-
ropean companies in Asia and the Middle East. But whether it's
Asians wanting to plan their short leave or Europeans with a yen
for far-off lands — the island paradise enchants them all.
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BJORN THUMMEL, Director Finance / Managing Director,
Robinson Club Maldives Pvt. Ltd.
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»Most customers are thrilled as soon as
they arrive on a Maldive island, because
no one can resist palm trees, white sandy
beaches and broad swathes of coral reef.
We do everything we can to make that ex-
perience all the more unique by providing
very special service.«
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Forecasts are never easy, but getting future travel preferences right
is especially difficult. Tourist flows have often switched direction
after a natural phenomenon or geopolitical event, and then new i -
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HOTELS

we've added to the portfolio
in the region Spain/Portugal/
Cape Verde in 2016.

Staccato! Marina Comas' fingers fly across the laptop key-
board in her sun-drenched office in Mélaga. The Pur-
chasing Director West Mediterranean types, thinks and
speaks fast. When she starts talking about her role,
Spanish temperament fuses with a clear, analytical view
of the hotel trade. A very compelling blend at the nego-
tiating table. Her speed is hardly surprising. During the
last financial year, a gentle trend became a big shift in
tourism flows from the Eastern to the Western Mediter-
ranean. Recent geopolitical events caused holiday-
makers to adjust their travel preferences, and the pattern
of previous years was reversed as they set their sights
on Spain and Portugal rather than Turkey or destinations
in North Africa. By the time it happened, hotel com-
mitments for the peak summer season had long since
been signed off. So apart from preparing for the year
after, Marina and her team needed to source additional
capacity quickly and offer TUI customers additional
choices.

.

NAME POSITION
MARINA COMAS

Purchasing Director West Med

RESPONSIBLE FOR
hotel purchasing in Spain (incl. Balearics and Canaries), Portugal and Cape Verde

“We wanted to be the first”

A race against time because, obviously, it was not only
the purchasers at TUI who saw this trend coming.

So did experts working for the competition. “We wanted
to be the first,” says Marina Comas, pinpointing her
ambitious approach. “The key to success in this financial
year was no doubt our fast response and also our
many years of good relations with hotels.” There are
about 34 people in her team, spread around the
Spanish mainland, the Balearic Islands, the Canaries,
Portugal and Cape Verde, where they foster contacts
with local business partners. Apart from healthy person-
al relationships, TUI's strong brand image in these dif-
ferent countries opens the door to renegotiating deals.
But even when circumstances are favourable, discuss-
ing contracts mid-year is always a challenge, especially
if —as in the period in question — approximately 500
additional hotels are added to the portfolio. A feat of
strength transformed by TUI's international employees
into a genuine success story. Ultimately, their achieve-
ments played an important part in finding alternative
destinations for around 2 million TUI customers.



Different countries, different tastes

Apart from identifying this additional capacity, the
hotel purchasers naturally have their regular schedule
for handling seasonal business. Contracts for the follow-
ing year are signed between March and August. Marina
Comas takes her cue from the briefings she receives
from all the Source Markets and from analysing current
hotel trends and customer interests. The mother of two
is frequently on the move during this period, demon-
strating her talent for time management not only in
her professional appointments, but in her domestic life
too. A relaxed weekend with the family will be followed
by a business trip to Cape Verde for general talks with
Riu or a visit to France to evaluate the past season
and explore growth opportunities with her French col-
leagues. At this stage, every Source Market will ex-
press different needs and put in an individual request
for volume. The United Kingdom, for example, tends
to opt for all-inclusive facilities, whereas holidaymakers
from Germany like half board and Nordic travellers are
keen to cater for themselves.

TUI has contracts with altogether 2,200 hotels in the
region Spain, Portugal and Cape Verde. They include
not only the company’s own brands, like Riu, Robinson
and Magic Life, but also hotels with other owners or
well-known chains like Melid and Barcelé. Marina Comas
has been with TUI for 15 years, and over time she has
got to know many of them well, so during her site in-
spections she can focus on finer details which appeal
to the market. Does this all-inclusive hotel include a 24-
hour snack bar? Does this family hotel offer a splash
pool with water play for children? What extra revenue
can be generated by swim up rooms with their own
direct access to the pool? And quite possibly the hotel
needs a spot of decorating. If so, that will end up on
her list as well and be a topic for negotiation.

@ — Travel flows 23

TUI hotel brands are a sales guarantee

With a glance at her figures, Marina Comas confirms
that TUI has adopted the right strategy with its hotel
brands: "Whenever we open a hotel under one of the
four core TUI brands or one of our three hotel concepts,
the booking stats look good.” Given the large number
of established hotel brands, expansion in Spain is
not always easy. All the same, it is proceeding slowly
but surely. Marina and her team provide whatever
help they can as hotel scouts. "My team have the best
contacts with hotel owners. If anyone is thinking about
changing a format, we can soon tell if the hotel matches
our own brand criteria and standards, and we can
pass that message on.” The fast response reaps rewards,
not only in Spain.
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Garry, what are the main activities of Product and
Purchasing?

GARRY WILSON: TUI Group Product and Purchasing
was created from the previous source market purchasing
teams to leverage the TUI Group scale and expertise
for all markets. Our focus is the development of group
destination strategies, identifying synergies and op-
portunities for growth. We contract hotels for fourteen
markets — namely, for TUI Central Europe, Northern
Europe and Western Europe — and have developed dif-
ferentiated hotel concepts that appeal internationally.
Capacities are planned by each market but our team
then take a group view when negotiating with the
suppliers. The purchasing team work closely with the
Source Market product teams in order to understand
their needs and deliver accordingly. The team are based
globally, in destinations and Source Market offices.
TUI employees are considered within the industry as
experts in their fields and we are continually focused

on recruiting the best talent to the business.

Turkey, Egypt and Tunisia were hit hard last year. How
flexible do you have to be in hotel purchasing in
order to be able to respond to changes at short notice?

Our team have embraced the challenges very well in-
deed. They have done a great job in renegotiating con-
tracts by acting quickly to reduce exposure on guaran-
tees and prepayments, allowing us to take out capacity
from some destinations and move it to the ones in
demand. This has really brought home the value that
Product and Purchasing bring to the organisation and

it has highlighted the importance of the flexibility in our
contracts. However, the key to this success is our rela-
tionship with our suppliers. Some of these relationships
go back more than fifty years and as partners we have
complete loyalty to each other in good and bad times.

NAME POSITION
GARRY WILSON Managing Director Product & Purchasing

RESPONSIBLE FOR
purchasing worldwide and relations with TUI Group's
international partners

What destinations have benefited from the changes in
FY 15/16 and what have you done in hotel purchasing
in order to respond to the changes in tourism flows?

Spain, Portugal, Italy, Croatia and some Long Haul
destinations have all benefited from these changes as
the capacities have been shifted from the affected
areas. Our team in these areas have had an enormous
challenge in increasing our allocations in the existing
portfolio and sourcing new product as well as protecting
the existing beds along with the support of our hotel
partners.

How do you assess the trend towards private
accommodation (Airbnb, etc.)?

Differentiated product, service and accommodation qual-
ity are our key competitive advantages over the private
accommodation market. Whilst private accommodation
has grown rapidly in the commodity city travel markets,
the security and service that come with organised travel
continue to be important for the main family holiday.

What trends are you expecting for the next few years?

We will continue to do what we do best — creating
innovative differentiated products on an international
scale. Growth of our core hotel brands and concepts
across the globe and new developments, such as multi-
centres, tours etc, should be our key focus.
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The best way to find out whether TUI's oneBrand strategy
is effective is to ask the people who have already tried it out: our
customers. We accompany Lea and Alex, who have booked
their first holiday together through TUI: to Majorca and Robinson
Club Cala Serena.

© B 27
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“That travel agency looks nice,” Lea calls to Alex, walking
a little faster. They have spent the whole afternoon
searching online for the right holiday — but there was so
much on offer they couldn't decide. This is their first
holiday together, and they want it to be perfect. “Who
needs a travel agent these days? You can do everything
online,” Alex keeps insisting. Lea takes a different view.
"We research it online, then book it through a travel
agent.” That, she tells him, will give her reassurance. She
wants to be certain they will actually get the holiday
they are booking.

When the couple enter the TUI Travel Store in Frankfurt,
Lea knows her instincts were right. The room is bright
and spacious, and the big beach landscapes on the walls
make this a relaxing atmosphere. True enough, three
quarters of an hour later the holiday has been booked
and they can start to think about packing. With sound
advice, it was easy to agree on something to suit them
both: a holiday in Robinson Club Cala Serena on Majorca.
Even looking at photographs of the resort and the sur-
roundings, they can't wait to be there — and even Alex is
glad he went to see the travel agent.

THE FLIGHT

TUI has six airlines of its own

with around 140 medium- and
long-haul aircraft, including a fleet
of the latest Boeing Dreamliner.

© B 29

RESEARCH AND
BOOKING

TUI Group includes many tour
operators, all leading players in
their home markets. Bookings
can be made online through well-
known portals, or in TUI travel
shops — almost 1,800 across
Europe at present.

On the way

8 weeks later. A bewildering buzz of voices, among
them a few screaming children. Alex yawns. It may be
early in the morning, but things are already bustling
at Frankfurt Airport. While Alex watches the board to
see if their flight has been called, Lea queues at the
TUI desk. Soon it's their turn. The woman from TUI gives
them a friendly welcome. Check-in and bag drop don't
take long, and off they go to the gate. Lea is not that
fond of flying, but she is enjoying the airport atmos-
phere and the cheerful spirit around her.

It's just as lively on board the TUI fly plane: families
with toddlers, elderly couples, but lots of younger
people. A cabin attendant helps Lea and Alex find their
seats. Lea is starting to feel nervous. The flight to
Majorca will take two hours. “You don't like flying, right?”
smiles the lady next to Lea. She nods and leans back.
She can see the TUI logo everywhere. Never mind the
nerves! She knows she is being well looked after.
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When our guests land in Majorca, the path from the
plane to the exit is easy. The “follow the SMILE" princi-
ple works well: just stick with the TUI logo, straight
into the arms of the team from destination services.

They are ready and waiting for this fresh batch of ME DESTINATION
holidaymakers, and greet them with a cheerful “Guten

Morgen — Buenos Dias — Goedemorgen”. A Dutch Around 6,500 people in
tour escort shows Lea and Alex to the right shuttle bus, over 100 countries work for

TUI Destination Services

which will take them to their hotel. As Alex takes hI.S (TUI DS). They look after our
seat next to Lea in the blue coach, he nods apprecia- customers on the spot, tire-
tively: “No chance of getting lost here.” lessly devoted to giving them

a perfect holiday under the
motto “We create smiles”.
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Arrived!

As the couple leave the bus and walk down the path
into the Robinson Club, any last doubts disappear:
they have got this one completely right. Let the holiday
begin! The resort, built in the style of a Majorcan finca,
stretches away beneath the palm trees. The atmosphere
in the Club is relaxed and open. Everyone says hello,
and the staff are warm and informal. The upbeat mood
is naturally infectious, and the guests soon pick it up.

Lea and Alex enjoy the first day of their stay reclining
on a double deckchair with views across the turquoise
bay. Alex is using his TUI app to forge plans for their
next moves. The travel agent told them about all kinds
of excursions: for tomorrow they will probably book
the stand-up paddling. A day trip to Palma should ob-
viously be part of their programme. And one of the
TUI people recommended that nature conservation area
UGE GOWER not far from the hotel. “That should be the perfect
place for a walk,” Alex calls to Lea as he somersaults
into the pool. But they have the whole week ahead

TUI's growth strategy centres on
expanding its core brands in

Hotels & Resorts: in the next few of them. Today they will just hang around the Club and
years, the Group will significantly make the most of its many facilities. What with the
beef up its own hotel portfolio home-made tapas, Majorcan wine and all these opportu-
around the world with its brands " . .
Riv. Robinson. TUI Blue and TU! nities to relax, they have everything they could possibly
Magic Life and its formats Sensi- wish for. TUI's all-inclusive no-worries package is taking

mar, Sensatori and Family Life. effect. Holiday mode on!
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WE

Ccreate

smiles

6,500

BRAND
AMBASSADORS

Nobody represents the TUI brand
better than the people working
for TUI Destination Services in the
field. Each year they look after
more than 11 million customers in
the destinations. True to our
principles “service from the heart”
and “solve on the spot”, our travel
reps can nrespond locally straight
away, for example by offering
tips, helping out or resolving little
problems.

one

e

IN ACTION

THE GLOBAL STRENGTH OF
THE TUI BRAND

In future the Group will operate throughout Europe under
the single TUI brand. This One Smile strategy has already been
applied in the Netherlands, France, Belgium and the Nordic
countries. The United Kingdom will follow suit in 2017. After that,
all our customers will benefit from the same brand experience,
wherever they are in Europe.

Netherlands:
From Arke to TUI

Belgium
France
Nordics

HAND IN HAND

@—)E—)F@“—);%—)@

TUI offers consistent high quality all along the tourism
value chain. The classical package holiday
offers one-stop service, convenience and security from
an experienced partner: TUI.

UK and Ireland:
From Thomson
to TUI
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rebranding in the

Netherlands

%o

MORE
BOOKINGS

Just one month after the
TUI Smile was implemented
in the Netherlands, brand
awareness was much higher
than it had been for Arke. The
success paid off in a tangible
increase in bookings by
6 per cent.
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THE DIGITAL
EXPERIENCE

Internet and smartphones are now part and parcel of
people’s daily lives — and of their holidays, helping
them choose a destination, book a trip and fine-tune
the details: TUI's IT teams are doing all they can

to perfect the user experience for customers and help
them tap the full potential of their holiday.

TRAVEL TRENDS 4.0
Everyone is talking about Industry
4.0 and the fully digitised value
chain. In tourism too, many aspects
of digitisation now play a big role.



"We aim not just to meet customer expectations, but to
exceed them — at every digital touchpoint.” Sharon
Lowrie has set the bar high for herself and her team. As
head of TUI's Mobility Hub in London, which opened in
2014, she’s at the heart of TUI's innovative customer ser-
vices. In a brightly lit office in the heart of the city, the
45 creative minds she oversees are developing a range
of digital products. The purpose of all this effort, here
and in the Group's other IT workshops, is to ensure cus-
tomers can access all the information they need on
their smartphone or computer whenever they want it,
whether they are planning a trip or already enjoying
their holiday.

TUI App

One keystone is the TUI App for tablets and smart-
phones. This free, award-winning digital assistant gives
customers all the information they need about their
holiday from booking to hotel. As soon as the travel bug
bites, the user can come here for inspiration and check
out suggestions that reflect earlier booking choices. The
app also contains details of leisure activities on offer

in hotels and additional excursions that can be booked.

To enhance the joys of anticipation, the app includes

a countdown to departure and a chance to share data
about the trip and destination with friends via social
media.

The TUI App comes with data about the local weather
and climate, a currency convertor and reminders about
when and how to check in for a flight. Soon customers
can also use the app to check into a hotel and book a
restaurant. There are plans to include videos and inter-
active maps in the application. Of the 2.5 million active
users in the last financial year, 450,000 were based
in Germany, but the app is also available in Sweden,
Denmark, Finland, Norway, the Netherlands, Belgium,
Ireland and the United Kingdom.
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MOBILE INTERNET

Smartphones and tablets are replacing desktop
computers to access the Internet. Every other
page hit already comes from a mobile device,
according to global statistics kept by the web
traffic analysts at StatCounter.

360-degree videos and virtual reality headsets
Apart from simple photographs and clips, TUl is in-
creasingly placing 360-degree videos of its destinations
online. Sitting at their desktop computer, or with the
aid of their smartphone, customers can now undertake
a virtual tour of hotel rooms and suites, swimming
baths, gyms and restaurants, or take a trip to the beach
and the pool area.



MAGAZINE

VIRTUAL REALITY (VR)
By 2025 VR devices and software will
probably generate global sales worth
80 billion US dollars, estimates the
investment bank Goldman Sachs.

For an even more vivid and detailed impression, they can
don a virtual reality headset of the kind now used for
computer games and in research. The glasses project a
3-D image of the destination and react to movement:
by turning their head, wearers can look around just as
if they were already in the hotel or on the beach.

Customers love these VR goggles and, once they've
used them, want to set off right away. The headsets are
already in use in some travel stores in France and the
United Kingdom, but customers in German outlets will
soon be able to enjoy this virtual immersion in poten-
tial destinations too.

TUI Smartband

The Mobility Hub has trialled another development,
this time with a focus on the hardware: the TUI Smart-
band looks a bit like a fitness bracelet. Hotel guests
were able to use it to unlock their room door or make
a cashless payment in the hotel bar and restaurant
along with other functionalities. Available in a wide range
of colours, the wristband can communicate with a
smartphone via Bluetooth, letting guests keep an eye
on their budget with the help of the TUI App.

Besides, this versatile wristband is waterproof, so the
wearer could keep it on while swimming. That made it
safer than a key or a credit card. Users were clearly
tuned in to the many benefits: during test runs at two
resorts in Greece and Turkey, holidaymakers were de-
lighted. 98 per cent of respondents said they would
recommend the Smartband to their friends and family.
We're now considering other opportunities for this
technology elsewhere.

WEARABLES

Technical devices worn on the body
are on the rise. In Europe alone,
sales are expected to top four billion
US dollars by 2020, says business
consultancy A.T. Kearney. That is
twice the existing volume.



CROSS-CHANNEL

In today’s world, most marketing
concepts are founded on intelligent
cross-channel networking. That
includes different media as well as
the direct encounter at point of
sale.

Cabin Crew App

TUI has likewise developed apps for its employees to
support smooth, personalised customer service. The iPad
cabin app, for example, simplifies pre- and in-flight
procedures and allows cabin crew to get through the day
without paperwork. Who is on the crew, how many
passengers have booked the flight, are there any people
with special requirements among them? Cabin attend-
ants can load the answers to these and other questions
onto their iPad in advance and access them later offline.

The app also makes it easier for cabin and ground
staff to work together. Admin, for example, can post
feedback questionnaires. Every flight attendant can

fill these in offline, and as soon as the iPad identifies a
new Wi-fi connection, it will send the data back to the
right department at TUI. Similarly, the cabin crew can
draw up reports about incidents or irregularities during
the flight; these will also be synchronised at once when
a Wi-fi connection is available again.

Cabin attendants have an in-flight retail app for selling
drinks, snacks and duty-free goods during the trip.

It records items sold including price, tots up the overall
cost of the order and enables cashless payments via

a Bluetooth connection to a debit or credit card reader.
On many flights, customers will be able next year to
select and pay for their in-flight snacks and duty-free
goods in advance. The crew can download the details
onto their iPads. Based on the seating plan, they can
then deliver the items straight to the passenger and
address them by name.
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PERSONALISATION

The content displayed by a website or
app can be programmed to reflect the
user. Tailormade content draws on
huge quantities of data, but links it to
personal features and preferences.

Where next?

These examples illustrate the irresistible advance of
digitised customer service. Cloud computing is already
yielding concrete benefits for TUI customers at many
points on their journey. Nevertheless, the company's IT
architects have other ambitious aims in their sights.
The TUI App is destined to become TUI's biggest digital
sales channel. With this in mind, TUI's IT teams are
working away not only at numerous data improvements,
but on whole new projects. One of these is 'big data
analytics’, which will enable us to pool relevant informa-
tion about customer bookings and travel behaviour
so as to generate tailormade personal offerings — yet
another step on the road to ever smarter digital ser-
vices for an optimised customer experience.



Cruise fever is on the rise. Holidaying at sea now appeals to a
broad target group and has become a mainstream
activity. Building on that trend, TUI Group is investing in the

expansion and modernisation of its fleet with all three
shipping lines — TUI Cruises, Thomson Cruises and Hapag-Lloyd
Cruises. An overview:
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MEIN SCHIFF 4

— discovering Northern Europe from May 2017




THOMSON DREAM

- cruising the Caribbean from November 2016.
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MS EUROPA

— visiting Oceania from February 2017.
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HAPAG-LLOYD
CRUISES

e
Eetonnhy (Ge|Ge™| fonesdonos

DOoDO0000000
ee0000000

=
51 i o e
000000000000 0000 © = 00
-

LITTLE GEMS

Exclusivity reigns supreme at Hapag-Lloyd Cruises —
in both the segments served by the Hamburg-based
cruise line. With a maximum of 400 to 500 passen-
gers, the acclaimed luxury liners MS EUROPA and
MS EUROPA 2 are benchmarks in the luxury seg-
ment. The expedition routes are exclusive too, and
these little ships are ideally equipped for extraor-
dinary locations where ocean giants cannot pass —
be it the Amazon or the Arctic. These destinations
are in such demand that Hapag-Lloyd Cruises has
placed orders for two new expedition vessels.

5 STARS PLUS IN THE
BERLITZ CRUISE GUIDE 2017
(MS EUROPA, MS EUROPA 2)

AROUND THE WORLD

HIGHEST POLAR CLASS

YEARS OF IN 337 DAYS FOR PASSENGER LINERS
COMPANY HISTORY (MS EUROPA) (EXPEDITION VESSELS)
MS EUROPA 2
11
10 MS EUROPA
8 MS BREMEN
7

DISCOVERY ROUTES
WITH EXPERT LECTURERS
(EXPEDITION VESSELS)

MS HANSEATIC

NUMBER OF DECKS
(COMPARISON)

MS BREMEN

155

111,50 M PASSENGERS

MS HANSEATIC

175

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 122.80m —————  PASSENGERS
MS EUROPA
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 198,60 - PASSENGERS
MS EUROPA 2

500

PASSENGERS

NEWBUILD 1

Commissioned 2019

NEWBUILD 2

Commissioned 2019




THOMSON
CRUISES
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SOMETHING FOR EVERYONE

Thomson Cruises is looking to strengthen its
position in the UK cruise market by expanding
its fleet over the next few years. By 2019 the
British line will have integrated three more
vessels. Thomson Cruises appeals to a very wide
audience with its philosophy founded on bal-
ance and diversity. From carefully composed
cuisine to mouth-watering buffets, from the
all-day family programme to the night-time bar
and casino — a wide range of passengers can
design an affordable trip to suit their personal
taste.

il

7 BARS / LOUNGES PER SHIP

&=
&=

OUTDOOR-CINEMA
(TUI DISCOVERY 162)

CASINO
(ALL SHIPS)

BROADWAY-SHOW-LOUNGE
(THOMSON SPIRIT,
CELEBRATION, DREAM,

TUI DISCOVERY 1&2)

aaa
o=N

Break Out &
Escape Game

(TUI DISCOVERY)

TH. DREAM

TUI DISCOVERY 162,

TH. MAJESTY

TH. CELEBRATION
TH. SPIRIT

NUMBER OF DECKS
(COMPARISON)

THOMSON SPIRIT
until 2017

— A ————

THOMSON MAJESTY
until 2017

e D07 QM e

THOMSON CELEBRATION

s UG e

THOMSON DREAM

e HBIO

TUI DISCOVERY

el 1Y O

TUI DISCOVERY 2
from 2017

ACQUISITION 1
from 2018

ACQUISITION 2
from 2019

1,254

PASSENGERS

1,462

PASSENGERS

1,262

PASSENGERS

1,533

ASSENGERS

1,830

PASSENGERS




TUI
CRU

ISES

FULL-SERVICE PACKAGE

In the premium segment, TUI Cruises has the
edge on the German market. Generous facilities,
quality, individual service — passenger comfort

is the guiding spirit aboard the Mein Schiff fleet.
Every holidaymaker is offered the premium full-
service package, so most food and drinks, along
with use of the spa zone, are included in the
price of the trip. And TUI Cruises is still growing:
Mein Schiff 6 will be commissioned in 2017,
with two more newbuilds entering service by

2 6% CHILDREN

2019 — when Mein Schiff 1 &2 will switch to Passengers on TUI Cruises include

Thomson Cruises.

lots of families and young couples.

MEIN SCHIFF 1
until 2019

——— BT

MEIN SCHIFF 2
until 2019

e 29330 M e

MEIN SCHIFF 3

e 02 E 0T R

MEIN SCHIFF 4

FULL-SERVICE MARRIAGE AT SEA CHILD CARE

(MEIN SCHIFF 1-5) (MEIN SCHIFF 1-5) (MEIN SCHIFF 1-5)
15 MEIN SCHIFF 3-6
13 MEIN SCHIFF 162

280 m

JOGGING TRAIL

(MEIN SCHIFF 5) NUMBER OF DECKS

(COMPARISON)

295m

MEIN SCHIFF 5

295m

MEIN SCHIFF 6

Commissioned 2017

MEIN SCHIFF 1 (new)

Commissioned 2018

MEIN SCHIFF 2 (new)

Commissioned 2019

1,924

PASSENGERS

1,912

PASSENGERS

2,506

PASSENGERS

2,506

PASSENGERS

2,534

PASSENGERS




questions for

NAME POSITION
THILO NATKE Captain

RESPONSIBLE FOR
the expedition vessel MS HANSEATIC

Mr Natke, you have been travelling the world on
cruise liners for 27 years. How has the cruise business
changed over that period?

THILO NATKE: This sector has witnessed a phenome-
nal boom. There are well over 300 cruise liners around
the world, and the biggest ones carry more than 6,000
passengers. The ships we thought were big twenty
years ago now rank in the “small to medium-sized” cat-
egory. Naturally, the places they can visit have changed
too. Apart from the classical destinations in the Mediter-
ranean, the Baltic, the Caribbean and Alaska, today’s
cruise liners can be found along almost any coast in the
world. But my role as captain has also changed. With
new technologies like the latest navigation tools, | am
more like a modern-day manager than a seaman on
the bridge.

Hapag-Lloyd Cruises has ordered two more newbuilds
for delivery by 2019. Why is this business so successful?

No two voyages are the same. In extreme waters, the
weather and the ice call for flexibility and precision. We
don't stick to a predefined route. The point is to offer

2
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» There is a growing interest in
exotic destinations offering an intense
experience of nature and wild life.«

our passengers a unique experience. And that, of course,
stimulates demand. The trend everywhere is towards
more individuality and the quest for something special.
Most of our passengers have already travelled a great
deal and seen a lot, often aboard other cruise liners. So
there is a growing interest in leaving the traditional
routes behind and heading in small numbers for exotic
destinations which offer that intense experience of
nature and wild life. One big factor is the ambition to
be among the first people to follow the route. There
is a bit of the explorer in all of us!

Do you have any thoughts about how cruise tourism
might develop in future?

| think the trend towards bigger and bigger vessels is
coming to an end. We won't be seeing more ships with
over 6,000 passengers. Tomorrow's passengers won't
be so interested in the well-set traditions of cruise holi-
days. They will be looking for the casual, relaxed life-
style on board, and a chance to experience the natural
world close up. | not only expect to see smaller ships
with under 1,000 passengers plying the waves too in
future, but also sailing boats and expedition craft. And

in addition to the standard Mediterranean and Caribbean
destinations, the less frequented routes will have their
role to play.






For the past six years, a number of TUI's Boeing 737s
have migrated from the winter in Europe to the sunnier
climes across North America for up to five months,
before making their journey back home, ready for the
summer in Europe. So why is TUI leasing its aircraft

to North America and what is the benefit of doing so?

Typically, each winter in Europe, the tourism business
recedes for a few months as many of the short-haul
destinations in the Mediterranean lose their summer
sun and the business operates what's known as its
low season. There is of course an impressive programme
of winter season flying for people escaping long or
medium-haul for some winter sun, or those taking a
well-earned skiing holiday. However the number of
tourists, and therefore the number of aircraft required,
is reduced compared to the peak summer season. In
contrast, in North America, there is an increase of holi-
daymakers flying between November and April. The
airlines and tour operators operating here therefore
experience a peak winter high season and require an
increased number of aircraft.

This cyclical seasonality provides both a challenge and
an opportunity. The TUI source markets in Germany,
the Netherlands, Belgium and the UK and Ireland all
have a peak summer season, so there is an overca-
pacity to be managed in the winter. If the aircraft fleet
is to provide optimal capacity, the challenge is how
to maximise the flying time of the fleet, to ensure that
if the aircraft is not flying or having any required main-
tenance, the aircraft isn't costing money. And the oppor-
tunity is to find synergies and support any fleet re-
sourcing requirements across the Group.

In looking for a solution, a clear synergy was identified
with Sunwing Travel Group (SWG). Established in 2002,
SWG is a family business, and has grown to become
Canada’s number one, providing more holiday packages
to the Caribbean, Mexico and Central America than
any other travel company in Canada. SWG is one of Can-
ada’s fastest growing and most successful companies,
and is owned and operated by the Hunter family head-
quartered in Toronto. SWG operates an airline, three
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are leased by TUI to Sunwing, ready for
the Canadian winter season — three each

from TUI fly Belgium, TUI fly Germany,
and eight more from Thomson Airways.

tour operators, a retail chain and destination manage-
ment company. A strategic venture was established in
2009, during which TUI gained a 49 per cent economic
ownership and 25 per cent in voting rights of the lead-
ing Canadian group.

Tom Chandler, Director of Fleet Management and Fleet
Finance at TUI Group explained: "Aircraft are expensive
assets. Our goal is to enable to the TUI airlines to maxi-
mise the revenue generating use of the aircraft all year
around. As a group of companies we achieve very high
utilisation, especially during the summer months given
the nature of our business in Europe and the breadth of
our flying programme for holidaymakers. In the winter
we can operate our TUI programmes with fewer aircraft
so there are some available to lease out. By leasing air-
craft to SWG in the Canadian peak winter season, TUl is
able to operate more of its own aircraft in the summer,
lowering our aviation costs, compared to leasing in sum-
mer-only capacity from the third-party market. There
are the same reciprocal benefits for SWG. As well as leas-
ing its Boeing 737s for their winter peak, TUI also re-
ceives a number of aircraft from SWG to provide addi-
tional capacity for the summer months in Europe.”

For the winter 2016/17 season, 14 TUI aircraft will be
leased to SWG to be based across airports in Canada
flying to winter sun destinations, primarily in the Car-
ibbean and Mexico. For the summer 2017 season,
seven SWG aircraft will be leased to TUI, specifically
for Thomson Airways and TUI Netherlands.

/)
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TOM CHANDLER, Director of Fleet Management and
Fleet Finance at TUIl Group

A year round operation

Regular leasing to SWG is combined with other season-
by-season leasing with other airlines. For the winter
2016/17 season, a total of 18 aircraft will be leased out
and of this 14 will be leased to SWG. With a clear strat-
egy, a strong team and a business partner in place, the
operation gets underway to lease the aircraft. Despite
this being a five to six month flying programme, it is a
complex and detailed year round operation. It involves

a range of experts, including technical and mechanical
engineers from the TUI airlines who work with Sunwing
to ensure a comprehensive hand-over of the aircraft
leading up to the delivery, along with maintenance
teams from both sides working together to deliver the
aircraft and the support of spare parts at the base.

Fleet programme managers within the TUI airlines
work to ensure that the aircraft are released from their
flying programme to be prepared for the lease, and at
the same time plan ahead to ensure the aircraft return
from the winter lease in time to resume operations
for TUI. Work with the organisations and institutions
who own the aircraft is also a big focus to ensure that
the lease out remains compliant with contractual obli-
gations. They also need to consider how many aircraft
need their regular heavy maintenance work.

Chris Broad, a senior manager who is responsible

for the leasing of the aircraft within the Fleet Manage-
ment team at TUI, explains: “The focus is mainly on
Thomson aircraft in the UK, TUI fly in Germany, TUI
Belgium and TUI Netherlands. Having identified the
aircraft that the airlines want to send, we agree the
departure and return dates with Sunwing and then
engage with the aircraft lessors and banks that need
to be involved in any transfer of TUI aircraft. Our air-
craft lessors are now quite used to this annual activi-
ty but there is still a lot of logistics to be managed

to ensure that everything happens at the correct time
when an aircraft moves from Europe to Canada. It's

a detailed process but one that is tried, tested and
successful.”

Of the 14 aircraft that will be leased to SWG in 2016/17,
three are from TUI fly Belgium, three are from TUI fly
Germany and eight are from Thomson Airways.

One advantage is that both businesses operate a fleet
of Boeing 737s, both with very similar specifications.
Therefore exchanging aircraft means very little needs
to change to meet the aircraft specification. There's
also no additional pilot training required. The first of
the aircraft begins to migrate in November and the
last aircraft will land and be delivered just after Christ-
mas.

Aircraft leasing

The industry has two main leasing types: wet- and dry-
leasing. A wet lease is a leasing arrangement whereby
one airline (the lessor) provides an aircraft, complete
crew, maintenance and insurance (ACMI) to another
airline or other type of business acting as a broker of
air travel (the lessee), which pays by hours operated.
A dry lease is a leasing arrangement whereby an aircraft
is provided without crew.

For the 2016/17 season, 12 of the aircraft are dry-
leased and two of the aircraft are on a wet lease from
Thomson Airways, together with eight flight crews
per aircraft. On a dry lease, once the airline in Europe
hands over the aircraft, it becomes an SWG aircraft.



Chris explains: “The dry-leased aircraft are fully inte-
grated with SWG's own aircraft. The wet-leased aircraft
remain under the operation and maintenance control

of Thomson. There is far more involvement and Thomson
is responsible for the aircraft in accordance with the
Civil Aviation Authority’s rules, regulations and standards.
The dedicated team in Luton in the UK keep a watchful
eye on the aircraft and manage all of the maintenance
conditions around it.”

Bridging process

As the businesses approach the delivery dates, SWG
and the TUI airlines have regular meetings to exchange
the necessary technical information on the current
status of the aircraft and each engine.

SWG takes this information and builds each dry-leased
aircraft into their maintenance and commercial systems
so it's integrated as part of their fleet. Chris explains:
“This is a significant and in-depth process to exchange
information. SWG then builds the aircraft in their own
system so that when they collect it, it is instantly one
of their own. This is called a bridging process between
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BIRDS OF MIGRATION /

The leased aircraft are based at various Canadian
airports, flying for Sunwing to the Caribbean,
Cuba and Mexico. The wind changes in summer:
TUI needs reinforcements in Europe, so leases
additional planes from Sunwing.

one airline and the other. SWG may have different reg-
ulations because they are governed by the Canadian
authorities. This bridging process ensures that SWG does
everything required under these regulations. The re-
verse happens before the re-delivery back to Europe.”

In a reciprocal leasing arrangement, seven of SWG's
aircraft will be leased to Thomson and TUI Netherlands
for the Summer 17 programme.

Tom Chandler comments: “This method of leasing

is truly beneficial for both companies, enabling us to
future proof for changing demands. The real beauty
of how it works, it's a counter cyclical arrangement; it
deals with our need to decrease in the winter and
flex our capacity in the summer months. With a similar
specification for the Boeing 737s and the same inte-
rior standards, it allows this strategy to be effective and
successful with a trusted business partner.”
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TUI is a colourful mosaic, composed from an array of different
countries and cultures. When Dr Elke Eller was appointed to the TUI
Group's Executive Board in 2015 to lead Human Resources, her
mission was clear: to build a shared Group culture. A conversation
about the road to “oneCulture” and the challenges on the way.

Dr Eller, human resources is a business management
concept. What is it about?

ELKE ELLER: Actually the concept of human resources
is fairly outdated. It dates back to a time when corporate
management was all about making optimum use of
capital. As if all you have to do in order to get optimum
results is make optimum use of your employees. That
view completely ignores personal needs. And given the
far-reaching processes of change that TUI Group is
currently undertaking, it would be foolish not to see
our employees as people with their own individual
expectations, skills and ideas. Our task in people man-

agement is to strike the balance between the needs
of employees on the one hand and commercial re-
quirements on the other.

Why are good people management and employee
satisfaction so crucial to TUI?

It is our employees who create the product. They are
the ones in direct contact with customers. Customers
are happy with their holiday if the people who guide
and accompany them are fantastic. So TUI has a vest-
ed interest in employees who feel good about the
company and engage. But people will only engage if



they know why. They need and want meaningful jobs.
But for that they need to be aware of the big picture
and sign up to it.

That leads straight to the question about corporate
culture. Is it feasible to unite all the many cultures
within the TUI Group?

You can't measure everything by the same yardstick. It
makes more sense to ask about our common DNA:
what is it and what would we like it to be? Our corpor-
ate values Trusted, Unique and Inspiring reflect the
common ground very nicely. They are so global that they
can be understood anywhere, regardless of cultural
or regional differences. TUI Group is undergoing a wide-
ranging process of transformation. That makes it all the
more important to define cultural foundations for our
partnerships and convey them to our employees. | see
them as an essential springboard for the current chal-
lenges — and even more for what we want to achieve
together in the future. You only need to look at how dif-
ferently our online competition operates. That's why
we need people whose minds are open to new things,
who have the enthusiasm to contribute to TUI's suc-
cess, and who inspire others on their team. That's the
only way we can develop.

How have you translated those challenges into
a new HR strategy?

If the aim is to achieve a balance between the com-
mercial requirements and the needs of our employees,
naturally you need to analyse both those things very
carefully. When | arrived, various countries had already
been doing some good and very good HR work in
many respects. But a company needs to apply a global
framework if it wants to get more than 60,000 people
pulling in the same direction. That is why we have be-
gun at Group level to define some cornerstones and
fences within which we can move around freely. We call
this approach “freedom within a framework”. Once a
month we meet up with all the regional HR managers.
We analysed best practice from the regions together,
and then thought about the aspects where we need a
Group-wide framework. TUl is an agile company with
so many countries, regions and functions. We don't want
to micromanage everything in a top-down, centralist
manner. If it's a regional matter that we need to nego-

"Contented employees create unique holidays” 5 1

HR strategy is built on our business
strategy for the Group and the key driver
of employee engagement.

OUR VISION
THINK TRAVEL.
THINK TUI.

OUR VALUES

Trusted. Unique. Inspiring.

Vision

-

Execute

OUR STRATEGY

Integrated content-centric tourism!
Scale with global platforms!
Beat competition locally.

OUR LEADERS

Our leaders act according to the
TUI leadership model VIBE.

~

Inspire

\\Build Teams

OUR PEOPLE

The best company to work for!
Living a high engagement —
high performance culture.

@

tiate with the regional works council, there's no point
in trying to do that from Hanover.

More about the strategy in
the Annual Report on p. 98
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EMPLOYEE SURVEY

Annual survey of all employees world-
wide. Findings from the first survey
also delivered fundamental input for
the new group-wide HR strategy.
CHAT

Members of the Group
Executive Committee
answer questions at

monthly video chats on

the Intranet.

Before you joined, there was a broad-based
employee survey.

The first TUIgether survey in 2014/15. When | joined
TUI, it had just been evaluated. A fantastic basis for
me and my team to work with! All Group employees
had a chance to participate. Employees used the sur-
vey to provide feedback for their direct line managers,
the regional Boards and the Executive Board of the
Group. There were some very specific questions about
the work environment, right through to the question
about whether we Board members had done enough
to put across the new corporate strategy.

And what happened to the findings from that
questionnaire?

What was important to me was to turn the “employee
questionnaire project” into a process that facilitates
continuous dialogue between employees and manage-
ment. In the meantime, we have established suitable
formats. The questionnaire showed that the role our
executives play in the company and what we do at
TUI in terms of people development were important
issues for our employees — and so we adopted them
as two focal themes for our HR strategy. The survey
itself is part of the third focus, engagement. Number
four follows from the existing, overarching Group strat-
egy: a single and effective organisational structure.

stands for a range of measures to strengthen
the open feedback culture at TUI
and enhance employee engagement.

T

ACTION BY THE GROUP
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (GEC)

— /N T

LUNCH TALK EXPERIENCE

CEO Fritz Joussen and
HR Director Elke Eller visit
countries twice a year
for an Employees’ Day.

GEC members invite
local employees to open
discussions in a personal

atmosphere.

Initiative enabling executives
to gain authentic experience
from direct contact with
customers in travel shops.

Another focus we included in the strategy is what we
intend to do about developing our own function: what
kind of people management do we need in an inte-
grated tourism group?

How are you implementing those five focal themes?

Last year, drawing on the various themes, we defined a
total of 15 projects, which we are now successively
implementing with priority. | have already mentioned
the formats for dialogue. In addition to that, in the
next financial year we intend to roll out oneShare, a
Group-wide scheme for employee shares. That is a very
pragmatic approach: we will be strengthening people’s
participation and emotional ties with their employer.
Employees will be able to share in TUI's success.

Do you have a favourite among those 15 projects?

| think our “Global 60" project is especially interesting:
TUI wants to be an international travel group, but at
the moment it is more like an aggregation of different
countries. To speed up progress, we want to trigger 60
international careers in the space of a year. That means
that we will be giving employees the opportunity to
make their next career move in another country and gain
some experience there. We are targeting people who
don't just think in German or English, for example, but
are cultivating an international perspective. The spin-



off effect is that this initiative will make things more
international for everyone: teams will also have to
speak more English and demonstrate how open they
are. So with the first 60 careers, we will be triggering

a cultural change from which the whole company will
benefit. In fact, we began with ourselves: in HR we
were recently joined, through oneShare, by a colleague
who used to work in TUI Poland.

Have the projects generated any measurable
results yet?

Well, for example, we had a substantially higher response
rate for our TUIgether survey. Ten per cent more em-
ployees participated this year. That is definitely because
there was a more dynamic follow-up process. We made

a point of chasing things up and presenting initial solu-
tions. | think our employees now feel that they are
being taken more seriously. It is clearly reflected in the
Employee Engagement Index, which rates job quality
in the company. Last year we scored 73, which is not a
bad result in itself. But we wanted to see a tangible
improvement. Why? TNS, the institute that carries out
this survey for over 3,000 companies, worked out that
very successful companies have an engagement index
of 80 or more. Of course, we won't hit that mark over-
night. But this year we have already managed to score
77. Those are the first steps and achievements on the
road to our goal, which is to be top employer.

So that was the start. What else do you want to
achieve?

We have defined the focal points for our strategy and
agreed on common corporate values. Now we have

to breathe life into the strategy. To turn theory into prac-
tice, we need concrete action. | look forward to it. |
want to see the satisfaction level among our employees
rise even further as they discover the advantages of
working for an integrated tourism group for themselves,
recognise the opportunities for their own personal
development, and engage. In the final analysis, it is this
positive attitude that carries over into customer satis-
faction.

"Contented employees create unique holidays” 5 3

TUI wants to encourage and facilitate more global
careers. To accelerate the process, 60 TUI employees
will have an opportunity, in the space of one year,
to make their next career move in another country
and gain experience there.

The next financial year will see the roll-out of a
single employee shares scheme for the whole of
Europe; in the longer term, every employee in
the world will have this opportunity. There used
to be two separate success-sharing schemes —
but only for the United Kingdom and Germany.
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56_ SWEEPING CLEAN

Why we are committed to cutting
pollution from plastic waste.

58_ COMMITMENT HAS A NAME

What the TUI Care Foundation can achieve
and why it is now a Group operation.

62 _POINTING THE WAY

How we can open up new prospects for
disadvantaged girls and young women.

Unspoiled landscapes'like Iceland’s are rare -""-' ;
these days, Many of them are best discovered

from the water. A good reason for Hapag-
Lloyd:Cruises to leave the traditional shipping

lanes behind and-explore the area with ex-

pedition vessels — bringing passengers to.the

heart of this natural setting and its wildlife:

¥

YOU CAN READ .MORE ABOUT OUR EXPEDITION VESSELS
IN THIS MAGAZINE UNDER "ANCHORS AWEIGH"



TARGETS FOR THE SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
2015-2020

e AN

per cent million euros
less CO; intensity and in projected annual
the most climate-efficient eqge funding for
airline fleet in Europe mi I I on charitable projects
sustainable
holidays
step lightly lead the way

make a difference

More about sustainability

can be found in our Report:
http://www.tuigroup.com/en-en/
sustainability/reporting-downloads



a0 T R e W R e Y S e R R R
.m_____.mq J ....u.. pu.ﬂ“..r...n L M arm..m_m&nﬂnm;
& Tt 1% ut ._._-.q.r...i..p- !

e .a.m_.,:rﬁ._m._..._ s .u..&\unun.ﬁ. .-h

.m%‘m 5
ASs

P
.
“1-

W
= T
;
re
A
]
R
3

-
-
L
A,
-~
-
B,
e,
e
e

4
M

g =i
ok w
L
e
o
o
o

1
L
]
W
i
[
4
-
r
[
--‘.' -
i
X -
Fa
-
[
o
&
|

-

L

s
-Gid I
- "'-'.
e
=
.FP"
-
e
l.:--
it

ESSELS

= T
for @

i ;
' .J.. i o, )
__-n....._ " .m_,.__.,.ﬁ__,.‘..#.w.,t LA Y e U
e .-.‘_.- .u_ﬂ... “F.._s. Pl el .m. S g.m: WM.O...e.H g 4= A
i.ni,_.,. 8 L L o BB R oy L E v
Ay R b LA AR LS T Tt 1 S Fulr e Sl 8 LU
e A OAAL oA ity sy
4 Awm.#- St p e Ty e N F U AT T R P
§ 5“41.. ...Ff.. Ev._.. ot g P Y . ] ..,mb o ey
: ﬂu.nﬂ.___.ﬂ._. .____..ﬁ.___r.-.___,_ﬂ_.m:.h_...:.m;f.. s AR e L A TR i (TR v N, R S .m.mxw..whw =5 i 2%
r. - . t o Y T e 1 L r | A1 i L - N e =< S = O U n
: _T_m___.._,._ﬂ‘ﬂi iR D P AL S T e T Wt AR R LT PG 0SS S L E Y
N J._”'.“..--_ .E.“...ﬂ.n.. .mi _.-_ﬂ.“._._.-_&i ._._11”...-- , : , iy .I.m_-m :w m /M.W..q. W.... W..H =
A A O L Al eSSBS o B i
BCTLICHE g VeV SNy e et
A ‘. r- .-ﬂ” | *r... & L - ﬂl—. .H...u 1| dlM m ....M.and _..n J..r z
! ; Tt .38 L oG BB Wiy QY
@ e iiiE 8¢
S .G [T = B s
O:..d..%_ i 0% 9 POy il &5,
-.__D..w m.nW__mw..m.‘n. L W
..nbue.O/G-n,w.w h.WTl
i T A OO L 1 e o
;..m rl. -...n. - o i |.| =
e R

s AP

n

T



56 MAGAZINE

Plastic waste poses a major risk to our environment,
especially our oceans. TU! is involved in various
projects to prevent pollution or minimize the impact.
Here are three of them.

CLEAN BEACHES FOR
THE MEDITERRANEAN SEA

9,843

KILOGRAMS OF RUBBISH HAVE BEEN COLLECTED TO DATE.

Around the Mediterranean Sea, and elsewhere in the
world, TUI employees invite local people and guests to join
them on beach clean-ups. The purpose of this “Make
Holidays Greener” campaign is to show how simple it can
be to protect the environment — even on holiday.

And it works: the event is a big hit with many tourists

SPREADING THE ENVIRONMENT
MESSAGE ON CURACAO

Reusable materials collected so far (status August 2016) in kg:

2,000 14,850 24,000 74,800 30,000

Most discarded materials and waste on Curacao are never sorted

~ and end up in landfill. Not many local residents appreciate the

importance of looking after their Caribbean island. That is why our

~ TUI Care Foundation has been helping GreenKidz Curacao to
_teach children about protecting nature and recycling and has teamed

up with the local environment company GreenForce to build waste

—— management on the land.
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400,000

PLASTIC BOTTLES FEWER EACH YEAR

PURE DRINKING WATER
FOR THE MALDIVES

Robinson Club Maldives is committed to sustainable water
processing and waste reduction. In 2013, it began to pro-
duce its own sparkling water. That has eliminated the need
to manufacture, transport and dispose of 400,000 plastic
bottles a year.

The sparkling water is decanted into glass
bottles. 7,500 of them are in circulation,
and they are cleaned on site.

The drinking water is turned into
sparkling water by adding minerals
and carbonic acid.

. Osmosis is used to desalinate
sea water and purify it to make
drinking water.

Sea water |\ -
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TANZANIA

Defending people and animals: in Tarangire National Park we
used chili peppers to take the heat out of a conflict
between farmers and elephants. The focus is on environmental
and social sustainability and on biodiversity.



Commitment has a name 59

Carving out new opportunities for the future, protecting the environment and preserving
our natural resources, and sustainably improving the lives of people in destinations
all over the world. To make this momentum for change even more productive, in 2016 we
clustered our social projects in the charitable TUI Care Foundation. It provides an
umbrella for the commitment of all TUI companies in the Group.

Safari fans are fascinated by the elephants that roam
Tarangire National Park in the north of Tanzania in
herds of up to 300. But for the farmers living in small
villages around the edge of the conservation area,
these majestic giants mean trouble, or even danger.
The hungry animals eat the corn, millet, melons and
tomatoes grown by the farmers. If herds invade their
crops, people can neither feed their families nor sell
the harvest. In the old days, they would try keeping the
marauders at bay with expensive electric fences, rocks
and sometimes spears, but the impact

never lasted very long. Peaceful coex-

istence between man and beast seemed

impossible.

Until two years ago, when animal

conservationists from World Animal

Protection and the TUI Care Founda-

tion showed farmers a new method for

warding off elephants with the aid of

chili and bees. The chili method is now a firmly estab-
lished routine in cultivating arable land. The farmers
grow the hot peppers themselves and mix them with
oil to make a paste, in which they soak rags the size
of plates and string made from sisal. They tie the rags
a few metres apart to the fences which enclose their
fields, just at the height where an approaching elephant
trunk will find them. Any pachyderm that picks up
the odour will turn away in disgust.

Bees are the second “natural weapon”. Even a fully-
grown bull elephant will take flight at the mere sound of
aggressive African bees. So the farmers have learned

to hang beehives in the trees around their fields. The
honey made by the bees and the surplus chili peppers
are sold at nearby markets, generating extra income for

approximately 690 farmers who now apply these
methods. The project reflects the philosophy of the
TUI Care Foundation because it helps people to
help themselves, defending both the people and the
animals in the region.

As an independent charitable trust,
the TUI Care Foundation pursues
the objective of enabling everyone
in a holiday destination to profit
from tourism. We offer young peo-
ple new prospects for their fu-
ture, and we have pledged to pro-
tect children and teenagers. We
make it our job to conserve the en-
vironment and natural resources.
And we support projects that improve living conditions
and place tourism on a sustainable footing.

In Costa Rica, we are helping women to start their
own business, while in Tunisia we provide grants for
girls to train at a college for the hospitality sector. In
Nepal, the professional guides we supported through
their training are now working as instructors them-
selves, apart from holding a vocational certificate that
is valid anywhere in the world. Children and hotel
staff in Curacao attend courses in nature conservation
and waste recycling provided by the TUI Care Foun-
dation. By doing this, we are reinforcing the education
system, environment protection and the island itself
as a green and healthy destination.
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LANZAROTE

Traditions, a clean environment and value creation:
the TUI Care Foundation supports the renaturalisation
of landscapes in the Canaries.

Preserving local traditions and natural resources,
boosting the appeal of a holiday destination and the
local economy — the perfect mix for the TUI Care
Foundation.

Lanzarote is a good example of how we put that theory
into practice. There is a long tradition to wine growing
on the island. But for some years now, more and more
smallholders have been giving up. The labour is too
arduous and the harvest too meagre. Many fields that
had been tilled for generations, often no more than
a hectare in size, are left to lie fallow, and the wind is
levelling out the hollows. Working with local partners,
the TUI Care Foundation is not only keeping the tra-
ditions alive, but combining them with organic tech-
niques to protect the natural environment. There is a

third aspect to the Foundation’s project here: it provides
meaningful employment for people in a disadvantaged
region. It means that people who would not stand much
chance of finding a regular job can earn a decent in-
come on Lanzarote. About 122,000 square metres of
vineyards in this unique landscape have so far been
restored. Five vintners have converted to organic meth-
ods, and have been able to increase their revenues as a
result.

Supporting people without encouraging dependence is
our key principle. We like building things that will become
self-supporting or identify other forms of future sup-
port. In holiday destinations all over the world, this is
making people and communities stronger.
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questions for

NAME POSITION

THOMAS ELLERBECK Member of TUI Group Executive Committee
and Chair of the TUI Care Foundation

RESPONSIBLE FOR
Communications, policy, international relations, sustainability
and environment, and foundations

Thomas Ellerbeck, in 2016 TUI turned the existing TUI
Care Foundation, with a local base in the Netherlands,
into a Group-wide charitable trust. Why?

THOMAS ELLERBECK: Lots of companies in our Group
display commitment. We are now pooling our efforts
under the umbrella of the TUI Care Foundation and
strengthening that commitment across the Group.
We want to have a lasting impact and to make a dis-
tinctive mark, together with our partners, with impacts
that reach beyond tourism. At the Foundation, we bring
together experts who understand the challenges and
opportunities of working through this kind of structure.
That is important for our project partners around the
world, but also for holidaymakers who would like to take
part.

What priorities will the TUI Care Foundation set now?

We see ourselves as partners for the countries people
visit. Wherever holidaymakers enjoy themselves, local
people should also reap the benefits. So the pillars to
our commitment are children and young people, con-
serving natural resources and the environment, and
sustainable development for destinations. We also
provide emergency aid following disasters.

How much money do you want to spend annually,
and who decides what to spend it on?

TUI has set a target for the period up until 2020, which
is to find ten million euros a year for social commit-
ment — and most of that will come to the TUI Care Foun-
dation. Some of it will be provided by our companies,
and some can be donated by our customers. When peo-
ple travel to far-off places, they often want to give
something in return. We support that through the Foun-
dation. We guarantee that the money people give is
put to good use in meaningful projects, carefully select-
ed and with local back-up from us. We have an advisory
committee to evaluate project proposals, and a board
of independent trustees to decide on the allocation of
funds.
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At the Smile Academy, young Dominicans take
their first steps towards an independent career.

DOM. REP.

Mama Bojang holds one of
the grants and is being trained
as a chef.

GAMBIA

Helping children and teenagers is a central pillar of our commitment.
Through the TUI Care Foundation, we can create new opportunities
for young people by tailoring education and training programmes to
their needs. That way we sustainably improve their lives and those
of future generations.
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TRAINING WITH THE
TUI CARE FOUNDATION

HOTEL TRAINING IN GAMBIA

The hotels and restaurants in this small
West African country have an urgent
demand for skilled workers. The TUI Care
Foundation works with the Oreo Foun-
dation to help talented young women in
Gambia train in the tourism sector.

TOUR GUIDES ON ZANZIBAR

30 students have so far qualified as tour
guides after we funded their training.
That way we can improve their chances
of a skilled job and help the country

to develop a competitive tourism sector.
80 per cent of the young guides have
since found employment — 100 per cent
in the case of the women.

SMILE ACADEMY IN THE
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

150 young Dominicans are training

at the Academy in occupations for the
tourism sector. That enables hotels,
resorts and other companies to recruit
urgently needed skilled labour in the
local market. And the participants learn
how to pursue a career of their own.
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

2013/14° 2014/15 2015/16 Var. %
€ million restated restated
|

Turnover 18,536.8 17,515.5 17,184.6 -1.9
Underlying EBITA'

Northern Region 404.9 538.4 460.9 -14.4

Central Region 162.8 103.5 88.5 -14.5

Western Region 83.3 68.7 86.1 +253

Hotels & Resorts 202.9 234.6 287.3 +225

Cruises 9.7 80.5 129.6 +61.0

Other Tourism 29.0 8.4 4.6 —45.2
Tourism 892.6 1,034.1 1,057.0 +2.2

All other segments -114.1 —-80.8 -56.5 +30.1
TUI Group 778.5 953.3 1,000.5 +5.0
Discontinued operations 88.7 107.2 929 -133
Total 867.2 1,060.5 1,093.4 +3.41
EBITA? 778.5* 794.6 898.1 +13.0
Underlying EBITDA 1,068.6* 1,344.1 1,379.6 +2.6
EBITDA 1,095.3* 1,214.7 1,305.1 +7.4
Net profit for the period
(continuing operations) 332.0* 407.6 464.9 +14.1
Earnings per share
(continuing operations) € 0.48* 0.66 0.61 -7.6
Equity ratio % 18.1 17.2 225 +5.33
Net capex and investments 637.1 659.0 691.0 +4.9
Net financial position —292.4* 213.7 -31.8 n.a.
Employees 77,028 76,036 66,779 -12.2

|

Differences may occur due to rounding.

In order to explain and evaluate the operating performance by the segments, EBITA adjusted for one-off effects
(underlying EBITA) is presented. Underlying EBITA has been adjusted for gains/losses on disposal of invest-
ments, restructuring costs according to IAS 37, ancillary acquisition costs and conditional purchase price payments
under purchase price allocations and other expenses for and income from one-off items.

EBITA comprises earnings before net interest result, income tax and impairment of goodwill excluding losses on
container shipping and excluding the result from the measurement of interest hedges.

Equity divided by balance sheet total in %, variance is given in percentage points.

Excl. LateRooms, Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group

Pro forma data, unaudited: Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group were treated as discontinued operations
since 2013/14.

-
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TUI Group
in numbers

Over 50 % underlying
EBITA comes from our o
content businesses’ > o

Guidance extended to 2018/19

We expect to deliver at least 10 % growth in underlying
EBITA in 2016/172, and reiterate our previous guidance
of at least 10 % underlying EBITA CAGR to 2018/19".
This balanced guidance is a clear demonstration of the
confidence we have in our growth strategy, against
what continues to be an uncertain geopolitical and macro-
economic backdrop.

Merger synergies
We have delivered €60 m additional € I I
merger synergies in 2015/16 and

expect the remaining €20 m of synergies
to be delivered in 2016/17.

"In destination content (Hotels, Destinations Services) and Cruises
(TUI Cruises, Thomson Cruises, Hapag-Lloyd Cruises)
2 At constant currency rates and restated for discontinued operations

Media

The Annual Report and
the Magazine are
also available online

T

Online

Mobile

http://annualreport2015-16.
tuigroup.com/

Compass

®

This is a page
reference.

®

This is a
web link.




» When we merged with TUI Travel at the
end of 2014, we promised to deliver an
average increase in underlying EBITA of
at least 10 per cent per annum over the
three years to 2017/18. We maintain that
guidance. We are delivering the results

we promised.«

ussen, CEO of TUI Group
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2013/14° 2014/15 2015/16 Var. %
€ million restated restated
|

Turnover 18,536.8 17,515.5 17,184.6 -1.9
Underlying EBITA"

Northern Region 404.9 538.4 460.9 -14.4

Central Region 162.8 103.5 88.5 -14.5

Western Region 833 68.7 86.1 +253

Hotels & Resorts 202.9 234.6 287.3 +22.5

Cruises 9.7 80.5 129.6 +61.0

Other Tourism 29.0 8.4 4.6 —45.2
Tourism 892.6 1,034.1 1,057.0 +2.2

All other segments -114.1 —-80.8 -56.5 +30.1
TUI Group 778.5 953.3 1,000.5 +5.0
Discontinued operations 88.7 107.2 92.9 -133
Total 867.2 1,060.5 1,093.4 +3.1
EBITA? 778.5* 794.6 898.1 +13.0
Underlying EBITDA 1,068.6* 1,344.1 1,379.6 +2.6
EBITDA 1,095.3* 1,214.7 1,305.1 +7.4
Net profit for the period
(continuing operations) 332.0¢ 407.6 464.9 +14.1
Earnings per share
(continuing operations) € 0.48* 0.66 0.61 -7.6
Equity ratio % 18.1 17.2 225 +5.33
Net capex and investments 637.1 659.0 691.0 +49
Net financial position -292.44 213.7 -31.8 n.a.
Employees 77,028 76,036 66,779 -12.2

Differences may occur due to rounding.
In order to explain and evaluate the operating performance by the segments, EBITA adjusted for one-off effects

(underlying EBITA) is presented. Underlying EBITA has been adjusted for gains/losses on disposal of invest-
ments, restructuring costs according to IAS 37, ancillary acquisition costs and conditional purchase price payments
under purchase price allocations and other expenses for and income from one-off items.

container shipping and excluding the result from the measurement of interest hedges.

since 2013/14.

Equity divided by balance sheet total in %, variance is given in percentage points.
Excl. LateRooms, Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group
Pro forma data, unaudited: Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group were treated as discontinued operations

EBITA comprises earnings before net interest result, income tax and impairment of goodwill excluding losses on
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Dear Shareholders,

We are delighted to report that TUI Group recorded an excellent development in the completed financial
year 2015/ 16. Despite continued major geopolitical challenges, we managed to increase our operating result
again by 14.5 per cent. Our positive performance underpins the great resilience of our strategic positioning as a
vertically integrated tourism group. Thanks to our access to all elements of the value chain, we are very
flexible in responding to changes in our customers’ travel preferences. Your Company is therefore in an excellent
state of health. Let me thank you all for your interest and support in the completed year.

And yet we will not rest on our laurels but will press ahead with our growth roadmap. In the cruise business,
we have expanded our fleet to 14 ships with the launch of Mein Schiff 5 in the German market and TUI Discovery
in the UK. We are aiming to become one of Europe’s leading cruise liners. That is why we will continue to
invest in new ships in the next few years, at both TUI Cruises and Thomson Cruises and in our luxury cruise
subsidiary Hapag-Lloyd Cruises.

We are also pursuing an ambitious growth roadmap in Hotels & Resorts. In early summer, we opened the first
two hotels of our new hotel brand TUI Blue. Overall, our hotel portfolio for our core brands Riu, Robinson,
TUI Blue and TUI Magic Life and our hotel concepts Sensatori, Sensimar and Family Life grew by nine hotels
in the completed financial year. In expanding our portfolio of Group-owned hotels, we find year-round
destinations offering 365 days of sunshine particularly attractive. Our investments focus on the Caribbean, a
destination for customers from both Europe and the United States.

The consistent expansion of the cruise and hotel segment will gradually change the structure of your Company.
We are steadily transforming from a group with a strong trading business to a content provider with strong
market positions in the cruise and hotel sector, which already contribute around half of our profits today.
Our transformation will take us from a tour operator to a hotel and cruise group, further reducing the strong
seasonality of our business, which currently still impacts the valuation by rating agencies.

To build TUI Group further, we are relying on a mix of centrally managed areas and our strong local companies

in the individual markets. This will enable us to benefit from economies of scale on a global level without losing
customer centricity and our focus on their individual needs and expectations. We have identified six areas in
which we can benefit from the strength of a global player: brand, IT, aviation, hotels and product purchasing,
cruises, and destination services.

We have exited or are planning to sell business operations that will not deliver synergies under the umbrella
of TUL. In the completed financial year, we sold Hotelbeds Group, world market leader for bedbanks, to the
British investor Cinven Capital Management and the Canada Pension Plan Investment Board for 1.2 billion
euros. This very successful transaction is good for the future of Hotelbeds and good for you, TUI Group's
shareholders. The proceeds from the sale will be used to promote our growth roadmap in hotels and cruises
and strengthen our balance sheet.

TARGET VALUES &
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Following the successful sale of Hotelbeds Group, we initiated the divestment of Travelopia, a collection of
specialist tour operation brands that had already been managed as an independent entity since the merger
between TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC at the end of December 2014. Travelopia combines more than 50 great
brands and successful companies. However, there is limited linkage to our core tourism business and limited
ability to achieve any economies of scale. Due to the potential impact on our profitability and the large number
of brands, this business will not continue under our master brand TUI. | am therefore convinced that the best
way to maximise the value of this business for you, our shareholders, is to dispose the specialists as a whole.

The portfolio of specialists will be disposed in one transaction in financial year 2016/17, with the exception of
the two tour operation brands Crystal Ski and Thomson Lakes & Mountains, which we have transferred into
TUI UK & Ireland. These two vertically integrated brands deliver strong synergies with our core tourism bu-
siness. Both Crystal Ski and Thomson Lakes & Mountains play a major role in securing the load factor for
our aircraft fleet in the UK, in particular in winter, and therefore generate the synergy potential the other
specialist providers lack.

In the completed financial year, we have taken major steps to move towards the structure and strategic
positioning our Group is aiming to achieve. Our integrated business model has proven robust and future-
proof, so that we are in a very good position to tackle the next few years.

In the framework of the merger with TUI Travel at the end of 2014, we promised you, our shareholders,
that we will deliver EBITA CAGR of at least 10 per cent over the three years to 2017/18. We maintain that
guidance, and we are delivering the results we had promised you.

TUI Group's positive economic performance is also reflected in the attractive dividend we will again be
distributing. We have submitted a proposal to the Annual General Meeting to increase the dividend for financial
year 2015/16 to 63 cents per share, up by around 13 per cent on the prior year.

TUI Group has demonstrated its strength once more in year two. As the world's leading tourism group, we are
pursuing a clear strategic roadmap in order to create maximum value for you, our shareholders.

Let me thank you for your confidence, support and loyalty to TUI.

Sincerely yours,

T o

Friedrich Joussen
CEO of TUI AG



Target values —_

KEY TARGET OuT-
FIGURES ACHIEVEMENT LOOK

Target 2015/16' Actual 2015/16 Target 2016/17

Turnover in €bn

17.2

EBITA (underlying) in €m

1,001
Adjustments in €m

136> 103 80

costs costs costs

Net capex and investments in €bn

0.8 0.7 1.0°

Net debt in €bn

broadly broadly approximately 0.8
neutral?3 neutral net debt

T As published on 10 December 2015, the outlook was updated during the year

2 Variance year-on-year assuming constant foreign exchange rates are applied to the result in the current and prior period and based on the current
group structure; guidance relates to continuing operations and excludes any disposal proceeds for Travelopia and Hapag-Lloyd AG.

3 Target adjusted treating Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group as discontinued operations

4 Excluding aircraft orderbook finance

TARGET VALUES &
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GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

CEO

Member of the Executive Board;

Nothern Region, Airlines,
Hotel Purchasing

7,

Group Director Legal,
| | Compliance & Board Office

A

CEO Western Region

Group Director Controlling and
Financial Director Tourism
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Group Director Corporate &
External Affairs

Group Chief Marketing Officer

Member of the Executive Board;

Human Resources/Personnel Director

Member of the Executive Board;
CFO

Member of the Executive Board;

Central Region, Hotels and Resorts, Cruises,
TUI Destination Services and IT

Group Director Strategy

)

Please refer to our website for CVs
www.tuigroup.com/en-en/about-us/
about-tui-group/management
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— Report of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board of TUI AG
at its meeting on 25 October 2016,
Riu Plaza Hotel Berlin

Left escalator from the top:
Anette Strempel,

Michael Pénipp,

Peter Bremme,

Carmen Riu Gaell,

Carola Schwirn,

Sir Michael Hodgkinson
(Deputy Chairman),
Andreas Barczewski,
Angelika Gifford

Right escalator from the top:
Wolfgang Flintermann,
Ortwin Strubelt,

Dr Dierk Hirschel,

Mag. Stefan Weinhofer,
Frank Jakobi

(Deputy Chairman),

Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman),
Valerie Gooding,

Prof. Edgar Ernst,

Peter Long,

Janis Kong

Members not in the photo:
Coline McConville,
Alexey Mordashov
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REPORT OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD

Ladies and Gentlemen,

We have successfully completed financial year 2015/16. Our employees, Executive Board and Supervisory Board
have jointly achieved many objectives and exceeded some targets. Key projects for the future of the Company have
been completed or are well on track. In the Report of the Supervisory Board presented below, | would like, on behalf of
the entire Supervisory Board, to tell you about the key activities of our various committees in financial year 2015/16.

Two years after the merger between TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC, the integration of the two companies is almost com-
plete. The synergies we had promised were delivered. The merger and the integration have created the conditions for
the future growth of the Company that had been sought by the Executive Board and Supervisory Board. Apart from
close monitoring of the synergies, the focus of the work by the Supervisory Board and Integration Committee in the
financial year under review was on cultural integration. Our declared goal is and remains not to be a German or British
but an international company. The Supervisory Board itself is a good example: only three of the ten shareholder repre-
sentatives elected by you have a German passport. The successful work performed by the Executive Board in the
integration process is also demonstrated by the results of our TUIgether employee survey, performed for the second
time in the past financial year. Due to the clear corporate strategy defined by the Executive Board and supported by
the Supervisory Board, but also the expansion of career and development opportunities, the identification and
satisfaction of the employees of your Company have improved substantially.

Overall, the completed financial year was characterised by the continued volatility of the external framework. With the
attack on Brussels Airport in March 2016, terrorism reached a key source market. Our employees and management have
delivered an impressive performance in the interests of our customers: they have given a face to customers’ trust in the
TUI Smile. We were also challenged by changes in customer demand for travel to Turkey and North Africa: our debates
focused on shifting capacity to alternative destinations, initiated and successfully implemented by the Executive Board,
and the organisation of Group-wide crisis management. We likewise addressed the decision taken in the UK in June 2016
to be the first country to leave the European Union since its inception. Long before and directly after the Brexit vote,
the Executive Board and Supervisory Board discussed potential consequences and an action plan, and this remains a
matter of attention.

Thanks to its flexible business model, TUI AG managed to increase its earnings year-on-year in financial year 2015/16,
despite the challenging geopolitical framework. That is a remarkable achievement, as numerous competitors and peers
had to correct their earnings guidance downward, in some cases quite substantially.

The Supervisory Board and its Committees discussed many technical issues and business transactions requiring its
approval. Apart from monitoring compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code (DCGK) and regularly
discussing questions related to the UK Corporate Governance Code (UK CGC), our work focused on reviewing and
debating the financial statements of TUI AG and the Group. We also closely monitored the focussing of the business
model and the associated divestments. Both the completed divestment of Hotelbeds Group and the planned sale of
Specialist Group are prerequisites for investments in growth during the next few years. The Strategy Committee formed
after the 2016 Annual General Meeting provides a key platform for engaging in an even more intensive exchange with
the Executive Board about strategically relevant decisions and preparing the debates of the Supervisory Board.



— Report of the Supervisory Board

Although the forthcoming financial year 2016/17 entails uncertainty regarding the geopolitical situation and the further
Brexit process, we have every reason to look ahead with confidence. TUI AG is on a growth path. Our business model
continues to progress consistently and systematically from distribution towards production with integrated control of
value creation. Our clear strategic direction makes TUI AG an attractive and promising investment.

On behalf of the entire Supervisory Board, let me express warm gratitude to our employees and the Executive Board
for an excellent job done in financial year 2015/16.

In a stock corporation under German law, there is a mandatory strict separation of management of a company and
oversight over management. While the management of the company is the exclusive task of the executive board, the
supervisory board is in charge of advising and overseeing the executive board. As the oversight body, the Supervisory
Board provided ongoing advice and supervision for the Executive Board in managing the Company in financial year
2015/16, as required by the law, the articles of association and our own terms of reference. Its actions were guided by
the principles of good and responsible corporate governance. Our monitoring activities essentially served to ensure that
the management of business operations and the management of the Group were lawful, orderly, fit for purpose and
commercially robust. The individual advisory and oversight tasks of the Supervisory Board are set out in terms of
reference. Accordingly, the Supervisory Board is, for instance, closely involved in entrepreneurial planning processes
and the discussion of strategic issues. Moreover, there is a defined list of specific Executive Board decisions requiring
the consent of the Supervisory Board, some of which call for detailed review in advance and require the analysis of
complex facts and circumstances from a supervisory and consultant perspective.

TUI AG falls within the scope of the German Industrial Co-Determination Act (MitbestG). Its Supervisory Board is
therefore composed of an equal number of shareholder representatives and employee representatives. Employee
representatives within the meaning of the Act include a senior manager (section 5 (3) of the German Works Council
Constitution Act) and three trade union representatives. All Supervisory Board members have the same rights and
obligations and they all have one vote in voting processes. In the event of a tie, a second round of voting can take place
according to the terms of reference for the Supervisory Board, in which case the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
has the casting vote.

In written and verbal reports, the Executive Board provided us with regular, timely and comprehensive information at
our meetings and outside our meetings. The reports encompassed all relevant facts about strategic development,
planning, business performance and the position of the Group in the course of the year, the risk situation, risk management
and compliance, but also reports from the capital markets (e.g. from analysts). The Executive Board discussed with us
all key transactions of relevance to the Company and the further development of the Group. Any deviations in business
performance from the approved plans were explained in detail. The Supervisory Board was involved in all decisions of
fundamental relevance to the Company in good time. We fully discussed and adopted all resolutions in accordance with
the law, the Articles of Association and our terms of reference. We were comprehensively and speedily informed about
specific and particularly urgent plans and projects, including those arising between the regular meetings. As Chairman
of the Supervisory Board, | was regularly informed about current business developments and key transactions in the
Company between Supervisory Board meetings.
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Prior to Supervisory Board meetings, the shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board and the employees'’
representatives met in separate meetings, which were regularly also attended by Executive Board members.

In financial year 2015/16, we again recorded a gratifyingly high meeting attendance, as we have done for several years.
Average attendance was 96.6% (previous year 95.1%) at plenary meetings and 90.7% (previous year 96.9 %) at
Committee meetings. No Supervisory Board member attended fewer than half of the Supervisory Board meetings in
financial year 2015/16. Members unable to attend a meeting usually participated in the voting through proxies.
Preparation of all Supervisory Board members was greatly facilitated by the practice of distributing documents in
advance in the run-up to the meetings and largely dispensing with handouts at meetings.

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 2015/16

Supervisory Presiding Audit Nomination Integration Galaxy
Name Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Prof. Dr Klaus Mangold (Chairman)' 8 (8)" 7 () 6 (6) 3(3)! 3(3)! 22
Frank Jakobi (Deputy Chairman)? 8 (8)2 6 (7)2 3(3) 2(2)
Sir Michael Hodgkinson (Deputy Chairman)2 8 (8)? 7 (7)? 3(3) 3(3)?
Andreas Barczewski 8 (8) 4(4) 6 (6)
Peter Bremme 8 (8) 3(3)
Prof. Dr Edgar Ernst 8(8) 6 (6)! 3(3)
Wolfgang Flintermann (since 13 June 2016) 2(2)
Angelika Gifford (since 9 February 2016) 4 (5) 1(2)
Valerie Gooding 7 (8) 1) 1(2)
Dr Dierk Hirschel 8 (8) 3(3)
Janis Kong 8 (8) 2(3)
Peter Long (since 9 February 2016) 4 (5) 220
Coline McConville 8 (8) 3(3) 2(2)
Alexey Mordashov (since 9 February 2016) 4 (5) 2(3) 0 (0) 2(2)
Michael Pénipp 8 (8) 6 (6)
Timothy Powell (until 9 February 2016) 3(03) 3(3) 1(1)
Wilfried Rau (deceased on 30 March 2016) 4(4)
Carmen Riu Guell 7 (8) 5(7) 303)
Carola Schwirn 8(8)
Maxim Shemetov (until 9 February 2016) 3(03) 4(4) 3(3)
Anette Strempel 8 (8) 7
Prof. Christian Strenger (until 9 February 2016) 3(03) 3(3) 0(1)
Ortwin Strubelt 8(8) 3(3) 6 (6)
Stefan Weinhofer (since 9 February 2016) 5(5)
Marcel Witt (until 9 February 2016) 3(3)

1 Chairman of Committee
2 Deputy Chairman of Committee
(In brackets: number of meetings held)



— Report of the Supervisory Board

At our meeting on 21 October 2015, we discussed the replacement of variable pay for the Supervisory Board
members. In line with the recommendations of the Corporate Governance Codes in Germany and the UK, a proposal
for a resolution to be submitted to the Annual General Meeting 2016 was adopted setting out a transformation to
purely fixed compensation. We also defined the personal performance factors for the annual performance bonuses
for members of the Executive Board in financial year 2014/15 and the relevant reference indicators for financial
year 2015/16. Following due deliberation, we established the appropriateness of the remuneration and pensions for
Executive Board members. The Supervisory Board also approved the budget for financial year 2015/16 and took
note of the planning for the two subsequent years. We resolved the annual capital increase in conjunction with the
issue of employee shares in 2015 and obtained information about the status of the IPO of Hapag-Lloyd AG.

At its meeting on 9 December 2015, the Supervisory Board discussed in detail the annual financial statements of
TUI Group and TUI AG, each having received an unqualified audit opinion from the auditors, the combined manage-
ment report for TUI Group and TUI AG and the Report by the Supervisory Board, the Corporate Governance Report
and the Remuneration Report. The discussions were also attended by representatives of the auditors. Following
comprehensive debate of these reports and its own review carried out on the previous day by the Audit Committee,
the Supervisory Board endorsed the findings of the auditors and approved the financial statements prepared by
the Executive Board and the combined management report for TUI AG and the Group. The annual financial
statements for 2014/15 were thereby adopted. Moreover, the Supervisory Board approved the Report by the
Supervisory Board, the Corporate Governance Report and the Remuneration Report. It also adopted the invitation
to the ordinary AGM 2016 and the proposals for resolutions to be submitted to the AGM.

We also decided to adjust our targets for the composition of the Supervisory Board (see Corporate Governance
Report) and considered the HR and Social Reports, our TUIgether employee survey, the implementation of the
female and gender quotas in Germany, the IT strategy and safety. We took a careful look at the results of the
efficiency review of the Supervisory Board conducted at the end of financial year 2014/15 and decided on the next
steps. We also resolved the 2015 declaration of compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Declaration required by UK CGC. After intensive deliberations, we also approved the launch
of the divestment process for Hotelbeds Group.

On 8 February, the Supervisory Board mainly discussed TUI AG's interim statement and report for the quarter
ended 31 December 2015 and prepared the 2016 Annual General Meeting. Our deliberations also focused on
the disposal process for Hotelbeds Group and the turnaround in Germany. The Supervisory Board approved the
construction of two expedition newbuilds for Hapag-Lloyd Cruises. We also agreed measures resulting from the
Supervisory Board's efficiency review, developed in the framework of a workshop on 21 January 2016.

On 9 February 2016, the Supervisory Board met for its first meeting in its new composition directly after the 2016
AGM. Following the election of the Supervisory Board chairman and two deputy chairmen, we elected the members
of the Presiding Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Integration Committee, Strategy Committee
and Mediation Committee.

At its extraordinary meeting on 27 April 2016, convened at short notice due to its urgency, the Supervisory Board
approved the sale of Hotelbeds Group following comprehensive information from the Executive Board and external
advisors and intensive reviews carried out by the Supervisory Board itself. Our deliberations focused on the appro-
priateness of the sale price, the key terms and conditions of the transaction, transaction security, financing and
safeguarding of employee interests.

On 10 May 2016, we debated TUI AG's interim report for the second quarter ended on 31 March 2016 and the half-
year financial report. The Supervisory Board also discussed the organisational Health & Safety structure, the
measures launched by the Executive Board as a result of the TUIgether employee survey, the OneShare employee
share programme and the impact of a potential Brexit. The Supervisory Board also approved a large number of
transactions (e.g. acquisition of all shares in atraveo GmbH, acquisition of the cruise ship Legend of the Seas and
Transat France SA, launch of a divestment process for Specialist Group). The Supervisory Board furthermore had
to again adopt a resolution regarding the newbuild of two expedition ships for Hapag-Lloyd Cruises, as the shipyard
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envisaged at the meeting in February was no longer available due to a change in ownership. We also approved the
issue of employee shares in financial year 2015/16.

By written circulation on 30 June 2016, the termination agreement with Mr William Waggott was adopted with effect
from 30 June 2016.

At an extraordinary meeting on 4 July 2016, convened at short notice due to its urgency (conference call), the
Supervisory Board intensively discussed the outcome of the Brexit referendum and its potential impacts on TUI AG.

By written circulation on 17 August 2016, we approved the increase in TUl AG's capital stock for the issue of employee
shares in 2016. Following the completion of a tender process for a change in auditors and based on the recommen-
dation of its Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board also resolved to propose the appointment of Deloitte GmbH
Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft as auditors for TUlI AG’s consolidated and individual financial statements and all
relevant interim reports for financial year 2016/17.

Supplementing the resolution adopted on 30 June 2016, we resolved by written circulation on 19 August 2016 the
cash settlement of entitlements still held by Mr Waggott from the Share Awards taken over from TUI Travel PLC as
at 31 August 2016. (for further details: see Remuneration Report page 127).

During a strategy offsite meeting on 14 and 15 September 2016, we intensively debated various key topics: apart
from IT-supported customer relationship management, TUI's business model, and growth strategies for Hotels &
Resorts and Cruises, we addressed challenges in source market Germany and approaches for solutions. Further
topics included the sale of Specialist Group, potential business in China, the airline platform OneAviation and the
impact of Brexit. On the second day, we comprehensively debated the five-year plan submitted by the Executive
Board. We also discussed crisis management, the Security, Health & Safety structure, and were given a report on
the potential impact of the revision of the European Package Tour Directive. The Supervisory Board then approved
the acquisition of three Boeing 787-9s for Northern Region and the refinancing of the existing 2014/19 high-yield
bond worth €300.0 m. The Supervisory Board moreover debated Executive Board matters and D&O insurance.

addition to the Supervisory Board meetings, a further workshop with internal and external experts on 6 Novem-

ber 2015 was devoted to selected issues of German and British corporate governance.

The Presiding Committee is in charge of various Executive Board issues (including succession planning, new appoint-
ments, terms and conditions of service contracts, proposals regarding the remuneration system). It also prepares the
meetings of the Supervisory Board.

Members of the Presiding Committee:

Until 9 February 2016:

Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman)
Andreas Barczewski

Carmen Riu Guell

Sir Michael Hodgkinson

Frank Jakobi

Maxim Shemetov

Anette Strempel
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From 9 February 2016:
Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman)
Peter Bremme
Carmen Riu Guell
Sir Michael Hodgkinson
Frank Jakobi
Alexey Mordashov
Anette Strempel
Ortwin Strubelt

1. At a joint meeting of the Presiding Committee and Nomination Committee on 20 October 2015, we discussed the
determination of the personal performance factors for the annual performance bonus for financial year 2014/15
and the reference indicators for the Executive Board's annual performance bonus for financial year 2015/16. The
Presiding Committee also discussed the appropriateness of Executive Board remuneration and pensions. The
Committee furthermore prepared the Supervisory Board's proposal to the AGM for a new system of Supervisory
Board remuneration.

2. At a meeting on 27 October 2015, convened at short notice due to the urgency of the issue (conference call), the
Presiding Committee intensively debated the status of preparations and the latest developments regarding the IPO
of Hapag-Lloyd AG in the light of the current situation in container shipping.

3. At its meeting on 9 December 2015, the Presiding Committee discussed target achievement for the Executive
Board's annual performance bonus for financial year 2014/15 and the appropriateness of Executive Board remu-
neration and pensions. It also debated adjustment of the targets for the composition of the Supervisory Board.

4. At its meeting on 8 February 2016, the Presiding Committee discussed in particular Executive Board matters, the
activities of the Supervisory Board and its committees after the 2016 AGM and the status proceedings Erzberger
versus TUI AG on EU conformity of the German Industrial Co-Determination Act.

5. At its meetings on 9 May 2016, the Presiding Committee debated business allocation for the Executive Board
following the sale of Hotelbeds Group and the potential early redemption of the share awards rolled over from
TUI Travel PLC to TUI AG.

6. Atan extraordinary meeting on 29 June 2016, convened at short notice due to the urgency of the issue, the Presiding
Committee discussed the impact of the Brexit vote of 23 June 2016. It also prepared the extraordinary Supervisory
Board meeting on 4 July 2016, dealing with the same issue, and discussed Executive Board matters.

7. On 16 August 2016, using the written circulation process and based on relevant documents, the Presiding Committee
adopted a recommendation for a resolution to be adopted by the Supervisory Board about the early cash settle-
ment of Mr Waggott's entitlements from the share awards rolled over from TUI Travel PLC as at 31 August 2016.

8. On 14 September 2016, we prepared, inter alia, the resolution to be adopted by the Supervisory Board on the
cash settlement of the entitlements still held by Mr Long and Mr Burling from the share awards rolled over from
TUI Travel PLC as at 30 September 2016.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Members of the Audit Committee:

Until 9 February 2016:
Prof. Edgar Ernst (Chairman)
Andreas Barczewski
Prof. Klaus Mangold
Michael Pénipp
Minnow Powell
Prof. Christian Strenger
Ortwin Strubelt

From 9 February 2016:
Prof. Edgar Ernst (Chairman)
Andreas Barczewski
Dr Dierk Hirschel
Janis Kong
Prof. Klaus Mangold
Coline McConville
Michael Pénipp
Ortwin Strubelt

The Audit Committee held six ordinary meetings in the financial year under review. It elected Prof. Edgar Ernst as Chairman
of the Audit Committee on 19 February 2016 using the written circulation procedure. For the tasks and the advisory and
resolution-related issues discussed by the Audit Committee, we refer to the comprehensive report on page 20.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee proposes suitable shareholder candidates to the Supervisory Board for its election proposals
to the Annual General Meeting or appointment by the district court.

Members of the Nomination Committee:

Until 9 February 2016:
Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman)
Carmen Riu Gaell
Sir Michael Hodgkinson
Maxim Shemetov

From 9 February 2016:
Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman)
Carmen Riu Guell
Sir Michael Hodgkinson
Alexey Mordashov

1. Regarding the joint meeting of the Nomination Committee and Presiding Committee on 20 October 2015, we refer
to the above notes in the section on the Presiding Committee.

2. At its meeting on 8 December 2015, the Nomination Committee discussed the future composition of the Supervisory
Board and the composition of the shareholder side.

3. Atits meeting on 8 February 2016, the Nomination Committee reflected on the work of the Supervisory Board and
its committees after the AGM 2016.
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STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Strategy Committee was established on 9 February 2016 by resolution of the Supervisory Board. Its task is to
advise the Executive Board in developing and implementing the corporate strategy. Apart from the Committee
members, the meetings of the Strategy Committee are regularly attended by Sir Michael Hodgkinson, and by Ms Riu Guell
on hotel issues.

The members of the Strategy Committee are:
Peter Long (Chairman)
Angelika Gifford
Valerie Gooding
Frank Jakobi
Prof. Klaus Mangold
Alexey Mordashov

1. Atits first meeting on 6 May 2016, the Strategy Committee planned its mode of operation and defined the scope
and topics for further meetings. It also discussed potential focus areas for the Supervisory Board's strategy offsite
meeting in September. Detailed consideration included a strategy for customer growth and options for Specialist
Group.

2. Atits meeting on 30 June 2016, the Strategy Committee devoted full attention to the possible repercussions of the
Brexit vote and its potential impacts on TUI AG and its competitors. In a joint discussion with the Executive Board,
the Strategy Committee furthermore discussed the proposed topics for the Supervisory Board's strategy offsite
meeting in September 2016 and opportunities to re-invest the proceeds from the sale of Hotelbeds Group. Apart
from the strategic measures relating to the turnarounds in Germany and France, the debate also focused on
TUI AG's customer relationship management.

INTEGRATION COMMITTEE

The Integration Committee was established by the Supervisory Board for a period of two years after the completion of
the merger (until December 2016). Its task is to advise and oversee the Executive Board during the integration process
required after the merger. In this regard, the Supervisory Board had resolved to additionally seek external advice, above
all in monitoring the synergies, from Deloitte auditors whose experts also regularly attended the meetings of the
Integration Committee.

Members of the Integration Committee:

Until 9 February 2016:
Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman)
Sir Michael Hodgkinson (Deputy Chairman)
Prof. Edgar Ernst
Frank Jakobi
Minnow Powell
Prof. Christian Strenger

From 9 February 2016:
Prof. Klaus Mangold (Chairman)
Sir Michael Hodgkinson (Deputy Chairman)
Prof. Edgar Ernst
Valerie Gooding
Frank Jakobi
Coline McConville

1. At its meeting on 8 December 2015, the Integration Committee initially discussed a sharpening of its focus on
aspects of cultural integration. It also reviewed the status of synergy effects and the progress of implementation of
the global brand strategy oneBrand towards unified branding. The debate also focused on the results of the
TUIgether employee survey and measures to be derived from the survey.
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2. On 10 May 2016, the Integration Committee discussed a report on integration progress and the status of
the synergy effects. It also intensively debated a presentation by Deloitte on best practices in following up on
merger synergies. Following a continuation of the debate about ways to culturally embed the measures derived
from the TUlgether employee survey, the Committee’s deliberations focused on the remuneration structure
for the Group's top management level. The Committee also obtained information about the successful brand
migration in the Netherlands.

3. Atits meeting on 13 September 2016, the Integration Committee discussed the report on integration progress and
the status of synergy effects as well as TUI Group’s new unified HR strategy. It also received reports about the
status of numerous HR activities that had been initiated or planned.

Due to the primary quotation of the TUI AG share on the London Stock Exchange and the constitution of the Company
as a German stock corporation, the Supervisory Board naturally also regularly and comprehensively deals with German
and British corporate governance. Apart from the mandatory observance of the rules of the German Stock Corporation
Act (AktG), MitbestG, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, TUI AG had announced in the frame-
work of the merger that the Company was going to make every practicable effort to observe both the German Corporate
Governance Code (DCGK) and — as far as practicable — the UK GCG.

For the DCGK — conceptually founded, inter alia, on the German Stock Corporation Act — we issued an unqualified
declaration of compliance for 2016 pursuant to section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act, together with the
Executive Board. By contrast, there are some deviations from the UK CGC due for the most part to the different con-
cepts underlying a one-tier management system for a public listed company in the UK (one-tier board) and the two-tier
management system comprised of Executive Board and Supervisory Board in a stock corporation based on German law.

More detailed information on corporate governance, the declaration of compliance for 2016 pursuant to section 161 of
the German Stock Corporation Act and the declaration on deviations from the UK CGC is provided in the Corporate
Governance Report in the present Annual Report, prepared by the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board (page 117),
as well as on TUI AG's website.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Hanover, audited the annual financial
statements of TUI AG prepared in accordance with the provisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB), as well as the
joint management report of TUI AG and TUI Group, and the consolidated financial statements for the 2015/16 financial
year prepared in accordance with the provisions of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and issued
their unqualified audit certificate. The above documents, the Executive Board's proposal for the use of the net profit
available for distribution and the audit reports by the auditors had been submitted in good time to all members of the
Supervisory Board. They were discussed in detail at the Audit Committee meeting of 6 December 2016 and the Super-
visory Board meeting of 7 December 2016, convened to discuss the annual financial statements, where the Executive
Board provided comprehensive explanations of these statements. At those meetings, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the auditors reported on the audit findings, having determined the key audit areas for the financial year
under review beforehand with the Audit Committee. Neither the auditors nor the Audit Committee identified any
weaknesses in the early risk detection and internal control system. On the basis of our own review of the annual finan-
cial statements of TUI AG and TUI Group and the joint management report, we did not have any grounds for objections
and therefore concur with the Executive Board's evaluation of the situation of TUI AG and TUI Group. Upon the recom-
mendation of the Audit Committee, we approve the annual financial statements for financial year 2015/16; the annual
financial statements of TUI AG are thereby adopted. We comprehensively discussed the proposal for the appropriation
of profits with the Executive Board and approved the proposal in the light of the current and expected future financial
position of the Group.
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The composition of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board as at 30 September 2016 is presented in the tables on
pages 114 for the Supervisory Board and 116 for the Executive Board.

In financial year 2015/16, the composition of the boards changed as follows:

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Upon the close of the 2016 Annual General Meeting, Prof. Christian Strenger, Maxim Shemetov and Minnow Powell
stepped down from the Supervisory Board. At the same Annual General Meeting, Angelika Gifford, Peter Long and
Alexey Mordashov were elected for a term of five years. Members re-elected for a term of five years were Carmen Riu
Guell, Prof. Edgar Ernst, Sir Michael Hodgkinson and Prof. Klaus Mangold.

The term of all employee representatives on the Supervisory Board also ended at the close of the 2016 Annual Gener-
al Meeting. Rudiger Witt stepped down from the Supervisory Board at that date. Apart from Mag. Stephan Weinhofer,
replacing Rudiger Witt on the Supervisory Board in his first term of office, all previous employee representatives were
re-elected for a five-year term on 10 February 2016.

We were shocked and saddened by the sudden passing of Wilfried Rau on 30 March 2016. Wilfried Rau had been an
employee representative on our Supervisory Board, representing senior managers, since December 2014. With Mr Rau,
we have lost a highly esteemed, circumspect colleague who knew the Company in many different facets. Mr Rau had
earned great merit in many different managerial positions at TUI AG and in the Group. We miss his experience, his advice
and his sense of humour even in turbulent times. The Supervisory Board, the Executive Board and the employees of
TUI AG will honour his memory.

With effect from 13 June 2016, Wolfgang Flintermann was appointed as a member of the Supervisory Board by the
court of registration to represent employees in senior management.

PRESIDING COMMITTEE

Mr Shemetov stepped down from the Supervisory Board and therefore also the Presiding Committee at the close of
the Annual General Meeting 2016. In addition to re-electing the remaining previous shareholder representatives, the
Supervisory Board elected Mr Mordashov as the fourth shareholder representative on the Presiding Committee. The
new employee representatives on the Presiding Committee are Mr Strubelt and Mr Bremme, alongside the re-elected
employee representatives Ms Strempel and Mr Jakobi. Mr Barczewski has no longer been a member of the Presiding
Committee since it was newly formed on 9 February 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

At the close of the Annual General Meeting 2016, Prof. Strenger and Mr Powell also stepped down from the Audit Com-
mittee. Apart from re-electing the previous Audit Committee members, the Supervisory Board elected Ms McConville,
Ms Kong and Dr Hirschel as new members after the close of the AGM 2016.

INTEGRATION COMMITTEE

After the close of the 2016 AGM, the Supervisory Board re-elected the existing Integration Committee members and
elected Ms Gooding and Ms McConville to replace Prof. Strenger and Mr Powell, who stepped down from the Integration
Committee at the close of the 2016 AGM.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Apart from re-electing the previous members of the Nomination Committee, the shareholder representatives on the
Supervisory Board elected Mr Mordashov as a new Nomination Committee member after the close of the 2016 AGM.

EXECUTIVE BOARD

With effect from 15 October 2015, Dr Elke Eller was appointed as a member of the Executive Board and Labour Director.
The term of office of Peter Long, Joint-CEO on the Executive Board, ended at the close of the 2016 AGM. Since that
date, Friedrich Joussen has been sole Chairman of the Executive Board. With effect from 30 June 2016, William Waggott
also stepped down from the Executive Board.

The Supervisory Board thanks all Executive Board and Supervisory Board members who left in financial year 2015/16
for their cooperation in a spirit of constructive confidence.

Hanover, 7 December 2016
On behalf of the Supervisory Board:

Prof. Klaus Mangold
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

as the Audit Committee, it is our job to assist the Supervisory Board in carrying out its monitoring function during
the financial year, particularly in relation to accounting and financial reporting for the TUl Group, as required by legal
provisions, the German Corporate Governance Code and the Supervisory Board Terms of Reference.

In addition to these core functions, we are responsible in particular for monitoring the effectiveness and proper functioning
of internal controls, the risk management system, the Group Auditing department and the legal compliance system.

The Audit Committee's sphere of responsibility was extended substantially following the introduction of the Audit Reform
Act (AReG) in Germany. Among other things, this means that the Audit Committee is now responsible for selecting
external auditors within the framework of a public invitation to tender. The selected auditors are then required to be
put forward by the Supervisory Board to the Annual General Meeting for appointment. Following the appointment by
the Annual General Meeting, the Supervisory Board formally commissions the external auditors with the task of auditing
the annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements and reviewing the quarterly interim reports.

The Audit Committee is elected by the Supervisory Board directly after the annual general meeting and consists currently
of the following eight Supervisory Board members:

Prof. Edgar Ernst (Chairman)
Andreas Barczewski

Dr Dierk Hirschl

Janis Kong

Prof. Klaus Mangold

Coline McConville

Michael Pénipp

Ortwin Strubelt

There are no personnel changes to report in the composition of this committee since the last election.

Both the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the remaining members of the Audit Committee are seen by the Super-
visory Board as meeting the criterion of being independent. In addition to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, at
least one other member has expertise in the field of accounting and experience in the use of accounting principles and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee has six regular meetings a year; additional meetings can also be held on specific topics. No extraor-
dinary meetings were held during the period under review. The meeting dates and agendas are based both on the Group's
reporting cycle and on the Supervisory Board agendas.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports on the work of the Audit Committee and the proposals it has to make in
the Supervisory Board meeting that follows each Audit Committee meeting.
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Apart from the Audit Committee members, the meetings have been attended by the Chairman of the Executive Board,
the CFO and the following management members, based on the topics covered:

Director of Group Financial Accounting
Director of Group Audit

Director of Group Compliance & Risk
Director of Corporate Finance

Auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers AG Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft (PwC) have also been invited to meetings on
relevant topics. Wherever required, additional members of TUI Group senior management and operational management
have been asked to attend Audit Committee meetings, as have external consultants.

Where it was deemed necessary to go into further detail on specific topics or cases, the Chairman of the Audit Committee
held — in addition to Audit Committee meetings — individual meetings with the relevant Executive Board, senior manage-
ment or auditor representatives. The Chairman of the Audit Committee reported on the key findings and conclusions
from these meetings in the next Audit Committee meeting.

The members took part in the Audit Committee meetings as shown in the table on page 11. One Audit Committee
resolution was taken by circular decision.

In order to implement the regulations of the AReG governing the rotation of auditors, a public invitation to tender was
conducted in the period under review in order to select a new auditor for TUI AG and the TUI Group. Determining the
key process steps and the key decisions was the responsibility of the Audit Committee Chairman. In its planned meetings,
the entire Audit Committee received regular reports on the progress of the process by its Chairman and discussed the
further steps to be taken. Assistance in implementing the process at an operational level was provided by the company.

In keeping with EU regulations on public invitations to tender, the entire process was fair, transparent and non-discrim-
inatory.

By announcing the planned invitation to tender in the Federal Gazette, German and international auditing firms were
initially requested to communicate their interest in participating in the selection process. From these initial applicants,
a number of minimum criteria were then used to reduce the remaining applicants to a shortlist of five.

In the following stage, these remaining five applicants were provided with extensive documentation to enable them to
submit a comprehensive written offer. In addition, all competitors were given the opportunity to clarify any remaining
questions in a joint questions and answers session with various Group representatives. Of the five applicants, four ulti-
mately submitted written offers which were made available to the Audit Committee.

All written offers were then analysed and evaluated by the Audit Committee Chairman and by representatives of the
main business areas and Group functions in order to ensure maximum objectivity during the selection process. Based
on this analysis, the fourth-ranked applicant was eliminated.

On the basis of the written offer, the evaluation found the remaining three applicants to be virtually of equal merit, so
that all three applicants were invited by the Audit Committee to present their offer and the key team members in person.
In addition to the Audit Committee Chairman, these presentations were attended by the aforementioned representatives
of the main business areas and Group functions, and by the CFO as a guest. The evaluation of the presentations established
a clear ranking of the applicants, leading the third-ranked candidate to be eliminated.
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Up to this point, the quality of the service offered took clear precedence over any cost aspects. With the final two appli-
cants, the cost-related aspects of the offer were then discussed. In their final form, the offers did not vary significantly
as regards cost.

Accordingly, at the end of the procedure, the Audit Committee recommended to the Supervisory Board that it put
forward Deloitte GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft to the Annual General Meeting as the new Group auditors. As
well as this preference, the second-placed applicant was presented to the Supervisory Board as an alternative. The
Supervisory Board subsequently resolved to accept this recommendation.

The Executive Board of a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) is solely responsible for preparing its Annual
Report & Accounts (ARA). Section 243(2) of the German Commercial Code (HGB) requires the ARA to be clearly structured
and to give a realistic overview of the company's financial situation. This is equivalent to the requirement of the UK Code
for the ARA to be fair, balanced and understandable. Even though the evaluation of this requirement has not been
transferred to the Audit Committee, the Executive Board is comfortable that the submitted ARA satisfies the requirements
of both legal systems.

In order to be sure ourselves of the reliability of both the annual financial statements and interim (quarterly) reporting,
we have requested that the Executive Board inform us in detail about the Group's business performance and its financial
situation. This was done in the four Audit Committee meetings that took place directly before the financial statements
in question were published. In these meetings, the relevant reports were discussed and the auditors also reported in
detail on key aspects of the financial statements and on the findings of their audit or review.

In order to monitor accounting, we examined individual aspects in great detail. In addition, the accounting treatment of key
balance sheet items were reviewed, in particular goodwill, advance payments for tourism services, pension provisions
and other provisions.

In consultation with the auditors, we made certain that the assumptions and estimates underlying the balance sheet
were appropriate. In addition, any material legal disputes and key accounting issues arising from the operating businesses
were assessed by the Audit Committee.

In the period under review, we concerned ourselves above all with the following individual subjects:

Owing to the existing geopolitical risks, we stipulated that each of the quarterly financial statements be accompanied
by a report on the effects on earnings, the risks from guarantee and advance payment mechanisms related to Group
and third-party hotels in Turkey and North Africa and about the countermeasures being undertaken.

The status of the introduction of a new ERP system in the UK was also assessed in detail during our meetings. In this
connection, we received regular reports on the progress of the implementation and asked pointed questions about any
delays and, in particular, risks with regards to Group reporting.

Another aspect of our work was OneAviation, a project for optimising the operational efficiency and cost-base of the
Group-owned airlines. Given the strategic importance of the airline in the tourism value chain, we received an explanation
of the key factors driving cost advantages for certain competitors compared with TUI airlines and about the intended
measures for optimising these. In a further meeting, we also had the management representatives in question inform
us about the legal and operational organisational structure Technology.
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In addition to the operational flight business, however, we also examined TUI's investing activity in the following areas:
Airlines, Hotels & Resorts, Cruises and IT. We were given an explanation of how the investments were prioritised, including
how they were distributed throughout the Group areas. One particular point in connection with the investment analysis
was the disposal of the Hotelbeds Group in September 2016.

The valuation logic with regard to the Hapag-Lloyd AG shares was also discussed in detail on numerous occasions in the
course of the financial year. Here, particular attention was given to the impairment booked in the financial year owing
to the price performance of Hapag-Lloyd shares.

The Audit Committee also discussed the going concern and viability statement analysis prepared by the company to
support the statements made in the half-year report and the ARA.

In addition, the consistency of the reconciliation from profit before tax to the key figure “underlying earnings” and the
material adjustments were discussed for all quarterly reports and for the annual financial statements.

Our evaluation of all discussed aspects of accounting and financial reporting has been in line with that of both management
and the Group auditors.

The Audit Committee recognises that a robust and effective system of internal control is critical to achieving reliable and
consistent business performance.

To fulfil its legal obligation to examine the effectiveness of internal controls and the risk management system, the Audit
Committee is informed regularly about their current status and also about the further development of them.

The Group has continued to evolve its internal control framework which is underpinned by the COSO concept. In recent
years the larger businesses in the Group have completed documentation of their main financial processes and regular
testing by management of the key financial controls as a matter of routine is the next area of development. Some initial
testing was conducted in 2016 and management intend to increase the volume of testing in 2017.

Within the Group, the compliance function is further broken down into three areas: Finance, Legal and IT. These teams
play a crucial role in improving controls across the Group and identifying areas where more focus is required. The Group
auditors also report to us on any weaknesses they find in the internal control system of individual Group companies,
and management tracks these items to ensure that they are addressed on a timely basis.

As stated on page 49 of the risk report, the Audit Committee receives regular reports on the performance and effective-
ness of the risk management system. The Risk Oversight Committee is an important management committee within the
Group and we are satisfied that there is appropriate, active management of risk throughout the Group.

The Group Auditing department ensures the independent monitoring of implemented processes and systems and reports
directly to the Audit Committee in each regular meeting. In the period under review, the Audit Committee was not
provided with any audit findings indicating material weaknesses in internal controls or the risk management system. As
well as this, talks are held regularly between the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Director of Group Audit for
the purposes of closer consultation.
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The main aspects of the audits planned by the Group Auditing department for the following year were presented to the
Audit Committee in detail, discussed and approved. The Audit Committee feels that the effectiveness of the Group
Audit department is ensured through this regular consultation.

For added comfort, the effectiveness of the Group Audit department was examined by third-party experts during the
current financial year. This review concluded that the Group Audit department has already reached leading-edge maturity.

The legal compliance system was also examined by third-party experts which confirmed the suitability of the compliance
approach. The Groupwide, uniformly implemented system was presented to us and we received a report about the
conducted risk analysis and the measures derived from it. In addition to the core elements of the internal control and
risk management system, the Group's hedging policy and transactions and certain areas of insurance management were
part of the reporting to us during the year.

Whistleblower systems have been set up across the Group to enable employees to draw attention to potential breaches
of compliance guidelines.

Reporting on the legal compliance system included information about the groupwide standardisation of these whistle-
blower systems and we were also shown the main findings during the current financial year from this system.

In December 2015, the Audit Committee recommended to the Supervisory Board that it propose the existing auditors
PwC to the Annual General Meeting as auditors for financial year 2015/16 as well.

Following the commissioning of PwC as auditors by the Annual General Meeting in February 2016, the Supervisory Board
appointed PwC with the task of auditing the 2015/16 annual financial statements and reviewing the interim financial
statements.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee discussed with PwC in advance the audit plan for the annual financial statements
as at 30 September 2016, including the key areas of focus for the audit and the main companies to be audited from the
Group's perspective. Based on this, the Audit Committee firmly believes that the audit has taken into account the main
financial risks to an appropriate degree and is satisfied that the auditors are independent and objective in how they
conduct their work. The audit fees were discussed and we are confident that the amount in question is justified.

Based on the regular reporting by the auditors, we have every confidence in the effectiveness of the external audit. This
outlook is confirmed by an internal efficiency review, conducted during the period under review, of the collaboration
with PwC. In addition to the positive outcome of this review, all participants declared that, were it not for the obligation
to rotate auditors, they would have been able to envisage continuing to work with PwC without any restrictions.

Owing to the rotation requirement, PwC will no longer serve as auditors. PwC has been the external auditor for the TUI
Group for over 20 years and the Audit Committee has always held their work to be of high quality. We would like to take
this opportunity to thank PwC for their many years of trusted service.

In order to ensure the independence of the auditors, any non-audit services to be performed by the auditors must be
submitted to the Audit Committee for approval before commissioning. Depending on the amount involved, the Audit
Committee makes use of the option of delegating the approval to the company. The Audit Committee Chairman is only
involved in the decision once a specified cost limit has been reached. Insofar as the auditor has performed services that
do not fall under the Group audit, the nature and extent of these have been explained to the Audit Committee. This
process complies with the guideline regarding the approval of non-audit services which came into effect at the beginning
of financial year 2015/16, and it also takes into account the requirements from the AReG regulations on prohibited
non-audit services and on limitations of the scope of non-audit services.
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In financial year 2015/ 16, these non-audit services accounted for 37 % of the auditor’s overall fee of €19.5 million. These
non-audit services primarily include services in connection with the preparation of the Hotelbeds Group disposal, the
Travelopia Group disposal and the issue of a bond.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Audit Committee members, the auditors and the management for their
hard work over the past financial year.

Hanover, 6 December 2016

Prof. Edgar Ernst
Chairman of the Audit Committee






28
28
44
46
49
66

70
70

74
78
84
86
93
97
103
106
109
11

Principles underlying TUI Group

Goals and strategy

Structure and business model
Value-oriented Group management

Risk Report

Overall assessment by the Executive Board
and Report on expected development
Business Review

Macroeconomic industry and market
framework

Group earnings

Segmental performance

Net assets

Financial position of the Group
Sustainable development

Human resources

Annual financial statements of TUI AG
TUI share

Information required under takeover law
Report on subsequent events

*The present combined Management Report has been
drawn up for both the TUI Group and TUI AG. It was
prepared in accordance with sections 289, 315 and 315 (a)
of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and German
Accounting Standards (DRS) numbers 17 and 20.

The combined Management Report also includes the
Remuneration Report, the Corporate Governance Report
and the Financial Highlights.

Winter in Canada means busy season for
TUI's shareholding Sunwing. They need help
to fly so many North American tourists to
the Caribbean. Perfect! Some TUI aircraft in
Europe would otherwise be hibernating on
the ground.

READ MORE ABOUT AIRCRAFT LEASING IN THE
MAGAZINE UNDER “HEAD FOR THE HEAT"
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C

GOALS AND STRATEGY

As the world’s leading integrated tourism group, we operate in all stages
of our customers’ holiday experience, from marketing and sales to aviation,
destination services and accommodation.

The core of our offering will be our own hotel and cruise brands.

Growth in our hotel and cruise brands is enabled and de-risked by our strength
in direct distribution and our direct customer relationships, creating a virtuous
circle for sustainable growth.

We have a resilient model, prepared for current and future changes.

The strength of our integrated model is the monitoring and selective control
of all stages in the value chain. This allows us to mitigate capacity risks,
respond quickly and flexibly to market changes and actively shape overall
situations and markets.

We take advantage of global economies of scale resulting from our size and
international scope to deliver competitive advantages and have defined six
scaling platforms as a framework: TUl Brand, Aviation, Hotels, Cruises,
Destination Services, IT.

We use our local strength at crucial points in the competitive arena, to be
close to customers and their individual needs.

We believe a clear focus on sustainability differentiates us from the compe-
tition and generates value.

We have a common vision and values to achieve our goals.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have a leading position as an
integrated tourism company.

A=

MARKETING & SALES
Scale — over 20 million* customers per annum, over
13 million customers flying on Group airlines
Strength in direct distribution and direct customer
relationships — over 70 % of holidays distributed
directly to the customer through our websites, shops y
and call centres L/\J
Flexibility — approx. 75 % of our source market
accommodation requirement sourced from third
parties AVIATION
Scale — approx. 150 aircraft, transporting our
customers to their destination
Flexibility — approx. 95 % of aircraft are leased,
current average remaining lease life of approx. 4 years,
with additional capacity from third party airlines
Efficiency — OneAviation programme to develop
one virtual airline, short haul fleet renewal
commences 2018

ET\!E%}

* Including Canada and Russia joint ventures
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DESTINATION SERVICES
Scale — over 11 million customers per annum with
operations in over 100 destinations
Unique destination services bring the TUI brand
alive and bring us even closer to our customers

ACCOMMODATION -
Scale — growing portfolio of Group hotels and cruise
ships (currently over 7 million customers per annum)
with a further 10 million customers staying in third
party hotels, which are mostly exclusive to our
source markets
Wide distribution funnel — over 50 % of our hotel
customers purchase via our source markets, with
significant incremental volumes from other markets
Flexibility — balanced ownership model, with around
half of our hotels being managed or franchised,
utilisation of joint venture partnerships to reduce
investment risk, and a balanced destination portfolio

FURTHER INFORMATION
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Integration benefits our customers
and our performance, and gives us a
strong competitive advantage.

CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE TUI PERFORMANCE PERSPECTIVE
Easy & convenient Growth in differentiated hotels and cruises enabled
Seamless customer experience and de-risked by direct customer relationship
Unique & exclusive products Superior occupancy rates, yield management & risk
TUI as most trusted travel partner mitigation
Mobile service and inspiration Local freedom to actively shape markets

Flexibility to respond to changing environment

Growth in our hotel and cruise brands is enabled
by our strength in direct distribution and
by our direct customer relationships, creating
a virtuous circle for sustainable growth.

UNIQUENESS

T T

UNIQUE HOTEL & DIRECT DISTRIBUTION &
Flexibility: CRUISE BRANDS CUSTOMER RELATION- Flexibility:
Balanced ownership model Hotels SHIPS Complementary
Direct and Comg.lem.ent?ry Cruise Ships Marketing and Sales products
istribution
CRM
Yield and Pricing
Aviation

~__

SCALE
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We have a flexible model with a balanced
portfolio of businesses, which further enhances
our resilience.

Ability to remix flight and hotel capacity and adapt
cruise itineraries

Balanced source market & destination portfolio
Strong long-term supplier relationships

Risk assessed ownership/management model,
including joint venture partners

We combine local relevance
with global scale.

Customer platform, CRM, Shared international team to
yield system, customer app serve our guests in destinations

Central control of configuration, & IT & Customer Data Services International hotel management
purchasing, finance, and marketing of core brands
maintenance, ground handling L/\/ \

Aviation Hotel

Global TUI Cruise
Brand

SOURCE MARKETS

A global TUI brand enables Joint decisions about invest-

higher brand impact & seamless
customer experience

ments in new vessels

NORTHERN CENTRAL WESTERN
REGION REGION REGION

Market insight
Marketing and Sales
Yield and Pricing
3rd party product

.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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We believe a clear focus on
sustainability differentiates us from the
competition and generates value.

2015 - 2020
"Better Holidays, Better World"
STEP
LIGHTLY
Reducing the environmental impact of
holidays through our own operations
MAKE

A DIFFERENCE

Creating positive change for people and

[@] communities through our value chain and

customers

Pioneering sustainable tourism to influence
the wider industry and beyond

LEAD
THE WAY

The ambitious 2020 sustainability strategy “Better Holidays, Better World" is
built around three core pillars to help shape the future of sustainable tourism.

@ See from page 93




Principles underlying TUl Group —_

F
=
§
o
o

We have a common vision and values :
to achieve our goals. &
Our vision, values and customer proposition form the basis of our action and

our attitude — both inside and outside.

ENGAGING

OUR PROMISE CUSTOMERS

Discover your smile

5

OUR VALUES
=
ENGAGING EMPLOYEES E .
TRUSTED UNIQUE INSPIRING AND CUSTOMERS 5(
‘=
(%]
reliable, exclusive, fresh, -
consistent designed effortless -g
quality around you =
.
free
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OUR VISION ENGAGING EMPLOYEES S
AND CUSTOMERS _8-

THINK TRAVEL.
THINK TUL.

Discovering the world’s diversity, exploring new horizons, experiencing foreign
countries and cultures: travel broadens people's minds. At TUl we create
unforgettable moments for customers across the world and make their dreams
come true. We are mindful of the importance of travel and tourism for many | e
countries in the world and people living there. We partner with these countries
and help shape their future — in a committed and sustainable manner.

FURTHER INFORMATION
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GROWTH IN DIRECT BALANCE SHEET
HOTELS AND CUSTOMER STRENGTH &
CRUISE BRANDS RELATIONSHIPS FLEXIBILITY

@

1. GROWTH IN HOTEL AND CRUISE BRANDS

Accommodation (hotels and cruise ships) is the key differentiator in the
customer holiday experience and the key driver of satisfaction and retention
rates. We will therefore deliver growth through scaling up our unique hotel
and cruise brands.

Growth will be focused on our core, unique brands — these brands have
been selected due to their strong resonance with their respective customer
segments (and therefore competitive advantage) and their ability to be
further scaled.

Following the merger with TUI Travel PLC in December 2014 we targeted
circa 60 additional hotels by 2018/19. Having delivered 18 openings and two
repositioned hotels to date (30 September 2016), we expect approximately
40 to 45 further openings by the end of 2018/19 plus further repositioned
hotels. Taking into account the different ownership models and our current
portfolio, we expect each new hotel on average to deliver an additional €2 m
underlying EBITA.




RIU

3 to 5 star hotels at the best beach destinations in the
world, offering holidays from family all inclusive fun to
romance and luxury

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
94 hotels delivering €318 m underlying EBITA
Occupancy 90 %
ROIC 26 % (excl. goodwill)

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
2014/15: Aruba, Mauritius, Bulgaria, Berlin
2015/16: Dominican Republic, Sri Lanka,
New York, Dublin
Winter 2016/17: Jamaica
2017/18: Mexico (Costa Mujeres)

ROBINSON

Premium clubs in excellent beach or mountain locations

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
24 clubs delivering €39 m underlying EBITA
ROIC 13%

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
2014/15: Tunisia
2015/16: Greece, Turkey
Summer 2017: South East Asia

TUI SENSATORI

Modern luxury holidays designed to fuel the senses

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
10 resorts with 5 in Group hotels

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES IN GROUP HOTELS
2014/15: Cyprus, Turkey
2015/16: Dominican Republic
Summer 2017: Rhodes

Principles underlying TUl Group —_

TUI BLUE

Premium hotels in first class locations with strong
regional influences

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
TUI Blue launched with two repositioned
hotels this year

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
2015/16: Turkey (repositioned)
Winter 2016/17: Tenerife (new),
Germany and Austria (repositioned)
Summer 2017: Croatia (new), Italy (new),
(repositioned), Germany (repositioned)

TUI MAGIC LIFE

All inclusive club holidays in top beachside locations

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
13 clubs

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
2014/15: Ibiza, Rhodes

TUI SENSIMAR

Stylish 4 to 5 star hotels designed for adults with
space and relaxation in mind

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
48 resorts with 20 in Group hotels

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
In Group hotels — 2014 /15: Portugal, Croatia
In third party hotels — Winter 2016/17:
Lanzarote, Cape Verde, Mauritius
In third party hotels — Summer 2017:
Sardinia, Greece, Tunisia

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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TUI FAMILY LIFE

The ultimate environment for a family holiday to
remember

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
29 resorts with 17 in Group hotels

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES IN

THIRD PARTY HOTELS
Winter 2016 /17: Thailand, Spain
Summer 2017: Sardinia, Croatia, Spain,
Bulgaria

THOMSON CRUISES

UK leader in all inclusive fly cruise

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
Five ships
Underlying EBITA €61 m

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
Summer 2016: TUI Discovery
Summer 2017: TUI Discovery 2
Summer 2018: additional ship from
TUI Cruises (Mein Schiff 1)
Summer 2019: additional ship from
TUI Cruises (Mein Schiff 2)

TUI CRUISES

German speaking, premium all inclusive cruises

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
Five ships
Share of underlying EAT €100 m
ROIC 9%/ROE 36 %

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
Summer 2016: Mein Schiff 5
Three newbuild ships launched in each of
the next three years (2017 to 2019)

HAPAG LLOYD

Luxury and expedition cruises

CURRENT PORTFOLIO (2015/16)
Four ships
Underlying EBITA €30m

OPENINGS/LAUNCHES
Two new expedition ships launch in Spring
and Autumn 2019

Cruise growth will continue to focus on the underpenetrated European
cruise market, with capacity expansion in TUI Cruises and modernisation of
our UK and luxury/expedition cruise brands.

The European cruise market remains underpenetrated relative to the US,
but has the right demographics — age, wealth, leisure time available — for

future growth

@ See from page 73

TUI Cruises successfully launched Mein Schiff 5 in July 2016 and will add
three further newbuilds over the next three years, delivering around €25 m
to €30m share of earnings after tax for each new ship.
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Thomson Cruises is continuing its path of modernisation, with the launch
of TUI Discovery in Summer 2016 and the delivery of TUI Discovery 2 in
Summer 2017. In addition, Mein Schiff 1 and Mein Schiff 2 will move to
the UK from the TUI Cruises fleet in 2018 and 2019. We expect each new
ship to deliver around €25 m of underlying EBITA per annum, at constant
currency rates.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Following the successful turnaround of Hapag-Lloyd Cruises to profitability
this year, we have announced the modernisation and expansion of the
expedition cruise fleet, with two newbuilds arriving in 2019, delivering
around € 15 m additional EBITA per annum per ship.

Growth will focus on destinations with strong margin and ROIC character-
istics, and where we deliver a competitive advantage.

Year round destinations deliver higher occupancy, less seasonality in
earnings and therefore higher returns.

Year round destinations also add the opportunity to sell to other source
markets outside TUIl Group — for example, a significant proportion of
Riu's revenues in the Caribbean come from the US.

We can leverage off our existing strong presence in long haul and other
year round destinations — on a hotel basis, over 50 % of our current
Hotels & Resorts portfolio is in year round destinations, and around 40 %
of our source market customers travel to year round destinations
(defined as Canaries, Cape Verde, North Africa and long haul).
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Our 787 fleet enables us to take more customers, more efficiently to long
haul destinations. In our source markets in 2015/16, around 15 % of our
accommodated customers stayed in long haul destinations. We expect
our long haul package holiday customers to grow by over 500,000 over
the next three years.
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We will continue to build on our direct relationship with the customer in
resort.

Our unique Destination Services bring the TUI brand alive, operating in more
than 100 destinations with access to over 11 million customers, managing
airport transfers, excursions and resort services. In 2015/16 we completed
the separation of our Destination Services business from Hotelbeds Group
(which has subsequently been sold) and have so far delivered synergies worth
€10m as a result of service integration and cost efficiency measures. Growth | e

FURTHER INFORMATION
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in Destination Services will be driven by an increase in the proportion of
differentiated excursions (currently around 20%) and in sales of excursions
through online and mobile channels. In addition, we are continuing to expand
our network, with the launch of a destination management company in the
USA in November 2016, and exploring the potential for launches in other
countries.

Balanced ownership model for new and existing hotels and cruise ships,
with clear investment hurdle rates.

We have a balanced ownership model for hotels, with just under 50 % of
our hotels under management or franchise.

Investments will be made in differentiating products where there are
pockets of growth and scarcity of supply.

Our strong joint venture relationships bring significant operational benefits
for our hotels and cruises, as well as reducing levels of invested capital on
a consolidated basis.

We target ROIC (based on our Group definition) of at least 15 % on average
for our new investments (compared with our Group weighted average cost
of capital of 7.5 %).

@ See from page 46

Our Hotels & Resorts and Cruises segments deliver ROIC significantly in
excess of their cost of capital. In 2015/16 our Hotels & Resorts segment
delivered ROIC of 12.3 % (versus segment weighted average cost of capital
of 6.5 %) whilst Cruises delivered ROIC of 21.3 % (versus segment weighted
average cost of capital of 7.5 %).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

2. DIRECT CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

Growth in our hotel and cruise brands is enabled and de-risked through
the strength of our direct distribution and customer relationships, creating
a virtuous circle for sustainable growth. This also gives us a competitive
advantage compared with other hotel and cruise companies with lower
levels of direct distribution.

Capitalising on the strength of the TUI brand on a global scale - One
global distribution brand offers significant opportunities in terms of growth
potential, consistency of customer experience, digital presence, operational
efficiency and competitive strength. In the long run, it is our objective that
there will be one distribution brand wherever it is reasonable, but we will still
ensure that we maintain our local roots. We launched our brand migration
successfully in the Netherlands in October 2015, achieving strong unaided
awareness within weeks of the TUI brand in this source market. The TUI
brand roll-out has also taken place in France, with Belgium and Nordics
following in Autumn 2016 and the UK to follow in late 2017. Brand migration
will be funded from ongoing operational efficiency and additional revenues.
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More direct, more online sales — Having a direct relationship with the
customer enables delivery of a more personalised experience and gives us
a strong competitive advantage. In 2015/16, 72 % of our source market
customers booked through our direct channels (up two percentage points
on prior year), with 43 % booking online (up two percentage points on prior
year). In Northern Region (UK and Nordics) we now sell over 60% of our
holidays online. Further progress has also been made in Central Region (47 %
controlled, 15 % online) and Western Region (70 % controlled, 52 % online).

i e
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Leveraging our direct relationship with the customer using our global IT
platforms — IT is at the heart of TUI, providing the technology solutions
required to deliver the TUI Group strategy and help our customers create
unforgettable moments. Internet and mobile use among our customers
has increased rapidly, so at TUI we're using technology to create ever-more
innovative and engaging ways to showcase our great destinations and
inspire people's holiday choices, with best in class, more personal digital
experiences.

FURTHER INFORMATION
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Customer App — The "MyTUI App” is at the heart of our mobile vision.
Through this inspirational, effortless technology, we will drive customer
behaviour change that will lead to the creation of our biggest digital
sales channel of holidays, flights and ancillaries. It will be key to customer
acquisition and retention, winning new customers and bringing back old
customers time after time. In three years, we have moved from a standing
start to multiple awards for our TUI App, which has been rolled out to ten
European countries and has had over 3.5 million downloads. The App
provides a rich, immersive experience and not only helps customers
find and pay for the holiday they want, but allows them to explore their
destination, discover places to visit and book unforgettable trips and
excursions. We have built the App in such a way that it needs only minimal
development to amend it to suit each new country as it is rolled out. This
also makes it easier to enhance and update functionality as customers'
expectations develop. The roadmap is always evolving due to fast
paced technology driving product innovation and business requirements.
Currently in development we have inspirational video content, hotel check
in, live travel information, social feed, transfer times, native ancillary
sales, interactive maps, restaurant booking, and virtual reality, to mention
just a few.

Group Marketing Platform — We are investing in transformational capa-
bilities that improve how we interact with our customers, by using what
we know about them to provide more timely and personalised customer
service and marketing. This is aimed at delivering a better customer expe-
rience, driving higher levels of engagement and conversion, and creating
business value from every customer interaction by encouraging up-selling,
cross-selling and rebooking. We have made significant progress to date,
and have rolled out a common marketing platform and programmes to a
number of key source markets, aimed at supporting customers through
their holiday search and their post-booking holiday countdown. In addition
we are trialling other innovations such as a Concierge Service in the UK,
providing an enhanced level of service for selected customer segments.

Yield Management — We have developed our own bespoke yield solution
to automate the management and pricing of holidays in response to changes
in demand and costs throughout the day, seven days a week. This solution
contains forecasting algorithms and business logic tailored for the dynamics
of the tour operating industry, where flights and hotels are sold simulta-
neously. It also includes a sophisticated user interface which provides high
levels of transparency and control to support the yield process. Following
success in the UK, where the first phase went live in 2013 with full rollout
in 2014, the solution was rolled out to France in 2015 and to the Nordic
market in 2016. We are now targeting a rollout in further markets including
Germany over the next 24 months.
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Driving operational efficiency improvements — We will continue to drive 5

. . . . . o

efficiency improvements across our source markets, including the following: °

5
In Germany, we remain focused on further increasing market share
through a wider holiday offering, further increasing controlled and online
distribution, and delivering operational efficiency improvements.

In France we have completed the acquisition of Transat's French tour
operations for an enterprise value of €55 m. The acquisition will enhance
our existing turnaround plans for this source market, through market
consolidation and significant margin potential. It is expected to bring
underlying EBITA margin in France to around 2.5 %.

In addition, we are continuing to deliver our efficiencies through our
OneAviation programme, through the central control of configuration,
purchasing, finance, maintenance and ground handling.

Enhancing top line growth by adding further flexibility for our customers —
We utilise technology to deliver additional top line growth with minimal
capacity commitment, such as third party flying and dynamic packaging.

Market leading positions which we will continue to grow — Based on the
growth levers outlined above, we target profitable top line growth ahead
of the market, or around 3% CAGR Group turnover growth, at constant
currency rates. In 2015/16 we delivered brand turnover growth (including
turnover from our Canadian and TUI Cruises joint ventures) of 2.4 % and
turnover growth of 1.4 % at constant currency rates, with underlying growth
offset partly by the impact of the lower demand for Turkey within some of
our source markets. Customer volumes from our source markets (excluding
Canada and Russia) were broadly flat in the year at 19.2 million, with strong
growth in the UK and Netherlands offset by volume declines in Germany
and the Nordics, mainly as a result of lower demand for Turkey not being
fully offset by increased demand to other destinations.
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3. BALANCE SHEET STRENGTH & FLEXIBILITY

We have a strong and flexible balance sheet, which enables and supports
further growth. We will maintain our rigorous focus on financial discipline, to
deliver optimal allocation of capital.

Strong operating cash flow provides finance for investments and divi-
dend — We generate a significant level of operating cash flow. Together with
the proceeds from the Hotelbeds Group disposal, the high level of operating
cash generation will help to finance future investments in growth as well as
continuing to generate an attractive dividend yield.

Focus on meaningful investments aligned with our strategy — Our capital
expenditure reflects the reinvestment of proceeds in transformational
growth following the disposal of Hotelbeds Group. Our priorities for capital
allocation are investments in unique hotel and cruise brands. We also continue
to allocate capital to strengthen the core of our business — for example,
through synergetic acquisitions such as Transat — as well as maintaining a
strong and flexible balance sheet to support further growth. We have clear
ROIC hurdle rates for new investments, as outlined above, and material
investments are approved at Board level.

Deliver merger synergies — At the time of the merger with TUI Travel PLC
we outlined €100 m of merger synergies to be delivered by the end of 2016/17
from corporate streamlining (€50 m), occupancy improvement in Group
hotels (€30 m) and the integration of Destination Services with our Tourism
businesses (€20 m). By the end of 2015/16 we delivered €80 m of these
synergies, and we are on track to deliver the remaining €20 m to be delivered
by the end of 2016/ 17. In addition, we targeted a reduction in our underlying
effective tax rate as a result of the more efficient tax grouping in Germany.
This was achieved immediately after the merger, with the Group’s underlying
effective rate now at 25 %.
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Deliver against financial targets with a view to achieving re-rating — Our
focus on rating will allow us to obtain advantageous financing conditions and
continue to ensure access to debt capital markets. This has already delivered
benefits. Moody's upgraded TUI to Ba2 in April 2016, and Standard & Poor's
revised its outlook on TUI from Stable to Positive in February 2016. We
have delivered against our financial targets for 2015/16 with a leverage
ratio of 3.3 times (target 3.5 to 2.75 times), and an interest coverage ratio
of 4.8 times (target 4.5 to 5.5 times interest). For 2016/17 our financial
targets have been tightened — leverage ratio target is 3.25 to 2.5 times, and
interest cover target is 4.75 to 5.75 times.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Committed to paying an attractive dividend — We are committed to
delivering superior returns for our shareholders. Our growth strategy will
enable this. We will propose a dividend to our shareholders of 63 cents in
respect of 2015/16, reflecting 14.5% growth in the base dividend (in line
with underlying EBITA growth at constant currency) plus the additional
10 % outlined at the time of the merger in 2014. For 2016/17 we expect to
pay a dividend based on growth in underlying EBITA at constant currency
(calculated off the base dividend of 58 cents in 2015/ 16).

ET\!E%}

Continue to maximise value of non-core businesses — We successfully
completed the disposal of Hotelbeds Group for a total cash consideration of
€1.2bn in September 2016, realising significant value for this non-core
business. We are in the process of disposing Travelopia and continue to hold
our investment in Hapag-Lloyd AG for sale.
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PRINCIPLES UNDERLYING

TUlI GROUP

Structure and business model

[ ]
\/ TUIGROUP

ALL OTHER SEGMENTS™

TOURISM
SOURCE MARKETS HOTELS & RESORTS CRUISES
Northern Region Riu TUI Cruises
Central Region Robinson Hapag-Lloyd Cruises

Western Region Other Hotels

OTHER TOURISM
Central tourism functions Corporate Center

Corsair Real Estate

*As at 30 September 2016 and the financial stake in Hapag-Lloyd AG (Container shipping) are held for sale

TUI Group is the world’s leading tourism business, consisting of a large
portfolio of strong tour operators, 1,600 travel agencies and leading
online portals, five tour operator airlines with around 150 aircraft,
more than 300 hotels with around 214,000 beds, 14 cruise liners and
incoming agencies in all major holiday destinations around the globe.
This integrated offering enables us to provide our 20 million customers
with an unparalleled holiday experience.

TUI AG is TUI Group's parent company with registered offices in Hanover
and Berlin. It holds directly, via its affiliates, indirect interests in the
principal Group companies conducting the Group’s operating business
in individual countries. Overall, TUI AG's group of consolidated companies
comprised 417 direct and indirect subsidiaries at the balance sheet date.
A further 13 affiliated companies and 27 joint ventures were included
in TUI AG's consolidated financial statements on the basis of at equity
measurement.

ORGANISATION AND MANAGEMENT

TUI AG is a stock corporation under German law, whose basic principle
is dual management by two boards, the Executive Board and the Super-
visory Board. The Executive and Supervisory Boards cooperate closely in
governing and monitoring the Company. The Executive Board is respon-
sible for the overall management of the Company.

The appointment and removal of Board members is based on sections
84 et seq. of the German Stock Corporation Act in combination with
section 31 of the German Co-Determination Act. Amendments to the
Articles of Association are effected on the basis of the provisions of
sections 179 et seq. of the German Stock Corporation Act in combination
with section 24 of TUI AG's Articles of Association.

EXECUTIVE BOARD AND GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
As at the balance sheet date, the Executive Board of TUI AG consisted
of the CEO and four other Board members.

@ For details on Executive Board members see page 116

A Group Executive Committee was set up in order to manage TUI Group
strategically and operationally. As at 30 September 2016, the Committee
consisted of eleven members who meet under the chairmanship of CEO
Friedrich Joussen.

TUI Group's tour operating business is clustered into three regions,
each with a source market alignment. The three regions make up the
Tourism Division together with Hotels & Resorts, Cruises and Other
Tourism.



NORTHERN REGION

The Northern Region segment comprises the tour operators, airlines
and cruise business in the UK, Ireland and the Nordics. In addition, the
Canadian strategic venture Sunwing and the joint venture TUI Russia
have been included within this segment. In preparation for the disposal
of a large part of Specialist Group, Ski has been reclassified from the
segment to Northern Region. The prior year's numbers have been
restated accordingly.

CENTRAL REGION

The Central Region segment comprises the tour operators and airlines
in Germany and the tour operator activities in Austria, Switzerland and
Poland.

WESTERN REGION
The tour operators and airlines in Belgium and the Netherlands and the
tour operators in France are included within the segment Western Region.

Principles underlying TUl Group —_

HOTELS & RESORTS

The Hotels & Resorts segment comprises all Group-owned hotels and
hotel companies in TUl Group. The hotel activities of the former
TUI Travel Sector have also been allocated to Hotels & Resorts. The
segment comprises majority participations in hotels, joint ventures with
local partners, stakes in companies giving TUI a significant influence, and
hotels operated under management contracts.

In financial year 2015/16, Hotels & Resorts comprised a total of 303 hotels
with 213,503 beds. 279 hotels, i.e. the majority, are in the four- or five-star
category. 44 % were operated under management contracts, 38 % were
owned by one of the hotel companies, 15 % were leased and 3 % of the
hotels were managed under franchise agreements.

FINANCING STRUCTURE TUI HOTELS & RESORTS

GROUP HOTEL BEDS PER REGION

Franchise Other countries
(26) 26
Lease Western
(46) 44 Mediterranean Caribbean
M t
anagemen Ownership
North Africa/
Eastern Egypt
Mediterranean
In brackets: previous year
CATEGORIES OF HOTELS & RESORTS
Hotel brand 3 stars 4 stars 5 stars Total hotels Beds Main sites
Riu 4 48 42 94 86,184  Spain, Mexico, Caribbean, Cape Verdes, Portugal, Morocco
Robinson - 20 4 24 15,342 Spain, Greece, Turkey, Switzerland, Austria
Other hotel companies 20 114 51 185 111,977 Spain, Greece, Turkey, Egypt
Total 24 182 97 303 213,503
As at 30 September 2016
RIU ROBINSON

Riu is the largest hotel company in the portfolio of Hotels & Resorts.
The Majorca-based enterprise has a high proportion of repeat customers
and stands for professionalism and excellent service. Most of the hotels
are in the premium and comfort segments and they are predominantly
located in Spain, Mexico and the Caribbean.

Robinson, the leading provider in the premium club holiday segment, is
characterised by its professional sport, entertainment and event port-
folio. Moreover, the clubs offer high-quality hotel amenities, excellent
service and spacious architecture. Most of the hotels are located in
Spain, Greece and Turkey. The facilities also meet ambitious standards

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

o8

.
e

55
[TES,
=
<
S
(%]
|
<
O
Z
<<
=
e
o
w
=
<
DO
i
5o
\
-
©
4

L

FURTHER INFORMATION



__ Principles underlying TUI Group

in terms of promoting sustainable development and meeting specific
environmental standards.

OTHER HOTEL COMPANIES

Other hotel companies include TUI Blue Hotels as well as the brands
Grupotel, Iberotel, Magic Life and the other hotels previously managed
in the former TUI Travel sector. Many of the hotels are operated as tour
operator concepts, e.g. Sensatori, Sensimar and Family Life.

CRUISES
The Cruises segment consists of Hapag-Lloyd Cruises and the joint
venture TUI Cruises.

HAPAG-LLOYD CRUISES

Hamburg-based Hapag-Lloyd Cruises holds a leading position in the
German-speaking market with a fleet of four ships in the luxury and
expedition cruise segments.

Its flagships are the five-star-plus vessels Europa and Europa 2. They
were awarded this category by the Berlitz Cruise Guide and are the
world's only ships to be recognised in this way, in the case of Europa for
the seventeenth time in succession, and in the case of Europa 2 for the
fourth consecutive time. Europa primarily cruises on world tours, while
her sister ship Europa 2 takes shorter but combinable routes. The
Hanseatic is used, among other destinations, for expedition cruises to
the Arctic and Antarctic. It is the world's only five-star passenger vessel
in the highest Polar class. The Bremen, a four-star vessel - also awarded
the highest Polar class — is another expedition ship travelling to similar
destinations. Three of the ships are owned and one is chartered.

TUI CRUISES

Hamburg-based TUI Cruises is a joint venture formed in 2008 between
TUI AG and the US shipping company Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd., in
which each partner holds a 50 % stake. With five ships so far, TUI Cruises
is top-ranked in the German-speaking premium market for cruises. The
Berlitz Cruise Guide rated Mein Schiff 3, Mein Schiff 4 and Mein Schiff 5
among the world’s five best liners in the category “Large Ships".

Value-oriented Group management

As the world’s number one tourism group with one global brand, an
attractive hotel portfolio, a growing cruise business, a modern and effi-
cient aircraft fleet and direct access to more than 20 million customers,
we aim to secure our vertically integrated business model by means of
profitable growth and achieve a sustainable increase in the value of the
TUI Group.

A standardised management system has been created to implement
value-driven management across the Group as a whole and in its indi-

OTHER TOURISM
Other Tourism comprises central functions such as destination services,
IT, aviation control and the French airline Corsair.

ALL OTHER SEGMENTS

Apart from the segments described above, the accounts include the
category All other segments. This includes, in particular, the corporate
centre functions of TUI AG and the interim holdings, as well as the
Group's real estate companies.

The financial stake in Hapag-Lloyd Container Shipping has been carried
since December 2014 under financial assets available for sale as defined
by IFRS 5. The IPO of Hapag-Lloyd AG took place in November 2015. As
TUI did not take part in the associated cash capital increase and Hapag-
Lloyd shares were sold in the framework of the IPO, TUI's stake in Hapag-
Lloyd AG declined from 13.9 % to 12.3 % as at 30 September 2016.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Following the divestments made in financial year 2015/16 — the sale of
LateRooms Group in October 2015 and Hotelbeds Group in Septem-
ber 2016 — TUI Group also intends to sell Specialist Group. The Specialist
Group was reclassified as discontinued operation. The sector pools the
activities of specialist tour operators and had been managed as a separate
entity since the merger between TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC at the end
of December 2014. The portfolio of Specialist Group is to be sold in one
transaction from the autumn of 2016 with the exception of two tour
operator brands. Crystal Ski and Thomson Lakes & Mountains will not
be included in the sale as they have strong synergies and are closely
associated with core business Tourism. They have been integrated into
TUI UK's business.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

As a tourism service provider, the TUI Group does not engage in research
and development activities comparable with manufacturing companies.
This sub-report is therefore not prepared.

vidual business segments. The value-oriented management system is an
integral part of consistent Group-wide planning and controlling processes.

Key management variables used for regular value analysis are Return
On Invested Capital (ROIC) and absolute value added. ROIC is compared
with the segment-specific cost of capital. ROIC is calculated as the ratio
of underlying earnings before interest, taxes and amortisation of goodwill
(underlying EBITA) to average invested interest-bearing invested capital
(invested capital) for the segment.



Our definition of EBITA is earnings before net interest result, income
tax and impairment of goodwill excluding losses on container shipping
and excluding the result from the measurement of interest hedges.
While EBITA includes amortisation of intangible assets, it does not
carry the result of our investment in container shipping as our stake
in Hapag-Lloyd AG is a pure equity investment without an operating
character.

In order to explain and measure TUI Group's operating performance,
we use underlying EBITA adjusted for gains on disposal of investments,
restructuring expenses, primarily scheduled amortisation of intangible
assets from purchase price allocations and other expenses for and income
from one-off effects.

In the framework of our growth strategy, we aim to achieve an underlying
EBITA CAGR of at least 10 % over the years to financial year 2018/19 (on
a constant currency basis).

Principles underlying TUl Group —_

In order to follow the development of the business performance of our
segments in the course of the year, we monitor the financial indicators
turnover and EBITA, but also key non-financial performance indicators,
such as customer numbers in our tour operators, and capacity or passen-
ger days, occupancy and average prices in TUl Hotels & Resorts and
Cruises. In the framework of our sustainability reporting, we have
also defined a target indicator for specific CO, emissions per passenger
kilometre for our airlines. We measure achievement of that indicator on
an annual basis.

@ Information on operating performance indicators is provided in the sections
on “Business performance by segment” and “Environment” and in the Report
on Expected Developments .

COST OF CAPITAL (WACCQ)

Tour operator Hotels Cruises TUI Group

% 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
I I N

Risk-free interest rate 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Risk adjustment 9.40 6.03 6.35 8.42
Market risk premium 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Beta factor! 1.5659 1.0042 1.0591 1.4025
Cost of equity after taxes 9.90 6.53 6.85 8.92
Cost of debt capital before taxes 418 2.20 2.72 3.63
Tax shield 1.00 0.55 0.85 0.89
Cost of debt capital after taxes 3.18 1.65 1.87 2.74
Share of equity? 42.65 70.11 68.54 50.70
Share of debt capital? 57.35 29.89 31.46 49.30
WACC after taxes3 6.00 5.00 5.25 5.75
Tax rate 24.00 25.00 31.00 24.62
Cost of equity before taxes 12.55 8.46 9.61 11.50
Cost of debt capital before taxes 4.18 2.20 2.72 3.63
Share of equity? 42.65 70.11 68.54 50.70
Share of debt capital? 57.35 29.89 31.46 49.30
WACC before taxes3 7.75 6.50 7.50 7.50

1 Segment beta based on peer group, group beta based on weighted segment betas
2 Segment share based on peer group, group share based on weighted segment shares
3 Rounded to 1/4 percentage points

The cost of capital is calculated as the weighted average cost of equity
and debt capital (WACC). While the cost of equity reflects the return
expected by investors from TUI shares, the cost of debt capital is based
on the average borrowing costs of the TUI Group. The cost of capital

always shows pre-tax costs, i.e. costs before corporate and investor taxes.
The expected return determined in this way corresponds to the same
tax level as the underlying earnings included in ROIC.
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__ Principles underlying TUI Group

ROIC is calculated as the ratio of underlying earnings before interest,
taxes and amortisation of goodwill (underlying EBITA) to the average
for invested interest-bearing capital (invested capital) for the relevant
segment or sector. Given its definition, this performance indicator is not
influenced by any tax or financial factors and has been adjusted for
one-off effects. From a Group perspective, invested capital under the
financing approach is derived from liabilities, comprising equity (including
non-controlling interests) and the balance of interest-bearing liabilities
and interest-bearing assets. The cumulative amortisations of purchase
price allocations are then factored in to invested capital.

Apart from ROIC as a relative performance indicator, economic value
added is used as an absolute value-oriented performance indicator. Eco-
nomic value added is calculated as the product of ROIC less associated
capital costs multiplied by interest-bearing invested capital.

ROIC AND VALUE ADDED TUI GROUP

2015/16 2014/15

€ million restated
|

Equity 3,248.2 2,417.4
plus interest bearing financial liability
items 3,7691 3,500.0
less financial assets 3,137.2 2,522.3
plus purchase price allocation 300.5 572.9
Invested Capital 4,180.6 3,968.1
Invested Capital Prior year 3,968.1 3,544.7
Seasonal adjustment! 500.0 500.0
@ Invested capital 2 4,574.4 4,256.4
Underlying EBITA 1,000.5 953.3
ROIC % 21.87 22.40
Weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) % 7.50 10.00
Value added 657.4 527.7

1 Adjustment to net debt to reflect a seasonal average cash balance
2 Average value based on balance at beginning and year-end

For TUI Group, ROIC was down by 0.5 percentage points on the previous
year at 21.9%. With the cost of capital at 7.5%, this meant positive
economic value added of €657.4m (previous year €527.7m).



RISK REPORT

Successful management of existing and emerging risks is critical to the
long-term success of our business and to the achievement of our stra-
tegic objectives. In order to seize market opportunities and leverage the
potential for success, risk must be accepted to a reasonable degree.
Risk management is therefore an integral component of the Group's
Corporate Governance.

The current financial year has seen the risk management framework
which evolved last year after the merger become further embedded in the
organisation and within the business planning cycle. The major enhance-
ment in the current financial year was the upgrade of the risk and control
software and unification of the two previous legacy systems into a single
application, which has made reporting processes more efficient as a result.
Our risk governance framework is set out below.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION AND RISK APPETITE

The Executive Board, with oversight by the Supervisory Board, deter-
mines the strategic direction of the TUI Group and agrees the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve its strategic objectives.

To ensure that the strategic direction chosen by the business represents
the best of the strategic options open to it, the Executive Board is sup-
ported by the Group Strategy function. This function exists to facilitate
and inform the Executive Board's assessment of the risk landscape and
development of potential strategies by which it can drive long-term share-
holder value. On an annual basis the Group Strategy function develops
an in-depth fact base in a consistent format which outlines the market

Risk Report —_

attractiveness, competitive position and financial performance by division
and source market. These are then used to facilitate debate as to the
level and type of risk that the Executive Board finds appropriate in the
pursuit of its strategic objectives. The strategy, once fully defined, con-
sidered and approved by the Executive Board, is then incorporated into
the Group's three-year roadmap and helps to communicate the risk ap-
petite and expectations of the organisation both internally and externally.

Ultimate responsibility for the Group's risk management rests with the
Executive Board. Having determined and communicated the appropriate
level of risk for the business, the Executive Board has established and
maintains a risk management system to identify, assess, manage and
monitor risks which could threaten the existence of the company or
have a significant impact on the achievement of its strategic objectives:
these are referred to as the principal risks of the Group. This risk manage-
ment system includes an internally-published risk management policy
which helps to reinforce the tone set from the top on risk, by instilling
an appropriate risk culture in the organisation whereby employees are
expected to be risk aware, control minded and “do the right thing". The
policy provides a formal structure for risk management to embed it in
the fabric of the business. Each principal risk has assigned to it a member
of the Executive Committee as overall risk sponsor to ensure that there
is clarity of responsibility and to ensure that each of the principal risks
are understood fully and managed effectively.

The Executive Board regularly reports to the Audit Committee of the
Supervisory Board on the overall risk position of the Group, on the indi-
vidual principal risks and their management, and on the performance
and effectiveness of the risk management system as a whole.
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__ Risk Report

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

EXECUTIVE BOARD
Direct & Assure

o Overall responsibility for
risk management

o Determine strategic approach
to risk

o Approve risk policy including risk appetite
and set tone at the top

® Review the effectiveness of the
risk management system

e Agree how principal risks are managed,
mitigated & monitored

o

RISK OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE (ROC)
Review & Communicate

® formulate risk strategy and policy
e Discuss and propose risk appetite

® Summarise principal risks

e Embed risk within business planning

e Ensure effective monitoring

GROUP RISK TEAM
Support & Report

BUSINESSES & FUNCTIONS
Identify & Assess

e Understand key risks
® Review key risks and mitigation

e Manage and monitor risks
® Report on risk status

RISK CHAMPION COMMUNITY

The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) ensures on behalf of the Executive
Board that business risks are identified, assessed, managed and moni-
tored across the businesses and functions of the Group. Meeting on at
least a quarterly basis, the ROC's responsibilities include considering
the principal risks to the Group's strategy and the risk appetite for each
of those risks, assessing the operational effectiveness of the controls in
place to manage those risks and any action plans to further improve con-
trols, and reviewing the bottom-up risk reporting from the businesses
themselves to assess whether there are any heightened areas of concern.
The ROC helps to ensure that risk management is embedded into the
planning cycle of the Group and has oversight of the stress-testing of
cash flow forecasts.

Senior executives from the Group's major businesses are required to
attend the ROC on a rotational basis and present on the risk and control
framework in their business, so that the members of the ROC can ask
questions on the processes in place, the risks present in each business
and any new or evolving risks which may be on their horizon, and also to
seek confirmation that the appropriate risk culture continues to be in
place in each of the major businesses.

Chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, other members of the Committee
include the Group Director Controlling and Finance Director Tourism,
the directors of Compliance & Risk, Financial Accounting, Treasury &
Insurance, Group Reporting & Analysis, Assurance, MGA, Investor
Relations and representatives from the IT and Legal Compliance func-
tions. The director of Group Audit attends without having voting rights



to maintain the independence of their function. The ROC reports quar-
terly to the Executive Board to ensure that it is kept abreast of changes
in the risk landscape and developments in the management of principal
risks, and to facilitate regular quality discussions on risks and risk man-
agement at the Executive Board.

The Executive Board has also established a Group Risk team to ensure
that the risk management system functions effectively and that the risk
management policy is implemented appropriately across the Group. The
Group Risk team supports the risk management process by providing
guidance, support and challenge to management whilst acting as the
central point for co-ordinating, monitoring and reporting on risk across
the Group. The Group Risk team is responsible for the administration
and operation of the risk and control software which underpins the
Group's risk reporting and risk management process.

Each division and source market within the Group is required to adopt
the Group Risk Management policy. In order to do this, each either has
their own Risk Committee or includes risk as a regular agenda item at
their Board meetings to ensure that it receives the appropriate senior
management attention within their business. In addition, the divisions
and source markets each appoint a Risk Champion, who promotes the
risk management policy within their business and ensures its effective
application. The Risk Champions are necessarily in close contact with
the Group Risk team and they are critical both in ensuring that the risk
management system functions effectively and in implementing a culture
of continuous improvement in risk management and reporting.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Group Risk team applies a consistent risk methodology across all key
areas of the business. This is underpinned by risk and control software
which reinforces clarity of language, visibility of risks, controls and actions
and accountability of ownership. Although the process of risk identifica-
tion, assessment and response is continuous and embedded within the
day-to-day operations of the divisions and source markets, it is consoli-
dated, reported and reviewed at varying levels throughout the Group on
at least a quarterly basis.

Risk Report —_

Risk identification: On a quarterly basis, line management closest to
the risks identify the risks relevant to the pursuit of the strategy within
their business area in the context of four types of risk:

longer-term strategic and emerging threats;

medium-term challenges associated with business change programmes;
short-term risks triggered by changes in the external and regulatory
environment; and

short-term risks in relation to internal operations and control.

A risk owner is assigned to each risk, who has the accountability and
authority for ensuring that the risk is appropriately managed.

Risk descriptions: The nature of the risk is articulated, stating the
underlying concern the risk gives arise to, identifying the possible causal
factors that may result in the risk materialising and outlining the potential
consequences should the risk crystallise. This allows the divisions/
source markets and the Group to assess the interaction of risks and
potential triggering events and/ or aggregated impacts before developing
appropriate mitigation strategies to target causes and/or consequences.

Risk assessment: The methodology used is to initially assess the gross
risk. The gross risk is essentially the worst case scenario, being the
product of the impact together with the likelihood of the risk material-
ising if there were no controls in place to manage, mitigate or monitor
the risk. The key benefit of assessing the gross risk is that it highlights
the potential risk exposure if controls were to fail completely or not be
in place at all. Both impact and likelihood are scored on a rating of 1 to
5 using the criteria outlined below.

The next step in the process is to assess the controls which are currently
in place and which help to reduce the likelihood of the risk materialising
and/or its impact if it does. The details of the controls including the
control owners are documented. Consideration of the controls in place
then enables the current or net risk score to be assessed, which is essen-
tially the reasonably foreseeable scenario. This measures the impact and
likelihood of the risk with the current controls identified in operation.
The key benefit of assessing the current risk score is that it provides an
understanding of the current level of risk faced today and the reliance
placed on the controls currently in operation.
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__ Risk Report

IMPACT ASSESSMENT

INSIGNIFICANT

MINOR

MODERATE

MAJOR

CATASTROPHIC

QUANTITATIVE

<3% EBITA*

3-<5%EBITA*

5-<10% EBITA*

10 -<15% EBITA*

> 15% EBITA*

(<€30m) (30-<€50m) (50-<€105m) (105-<€160m) (2€160m)
QUALITATIVE Minimal impact on Limited impact on Short term impact on Medium term impact on Detrimental impact on
Global reputation Global reputation Global reputation Global reputation Global reputation
Programme delivery Programme delivery Programme delivery Programme delivery Programme delivery
Technology reliability Technology reliability Technology reliability Technology reliability Technology reliability
Health & Safety Health & Safety Health & Safety Health & Safety Health & Safety
standards standards standards standards standards
*Budgeted underlying EBITA for the financial year ended 30 September 2016
LIKELIHOOD ASSESSMENT
RARE UNLIKELY POSSIBLE LIKELY ALMOST CERTAIN

<10% Chance

10-<30% Chance

30-<60% Chance

60—-<80% Chance

>80 % Chance

Risk response: If management are comfortable with the current risk
score, then the risk is accepted and therefore no further action is required.
The controls in place continue to be operated and management monitor
the risk, the controls and the risk landscape to ensure that the risk
score stays stable and in line with management's tolerance of the risk.

If, however, management assesses that the current risk score is too high,
then an action plan will be drawn up with the objective of introducing
new or stronger controls which will reduce the impact and/ or likelihood
of the risk to an acceptable, tolerable and justifiable level. This is known
as the target risk score and is the parameter by which management can
ensure the risk is being managed in line with the Group’s overall risk
appetite. The risk owner will normally be the individual tasked with en-
suring that this action plan is implemented within an agreed timetable.

Each division/source market will continue to review their risk register on
an ongoing basis through the mechanism appropriate for their business
e.g. local Risk Committee. The risk owner will be held to account if action
plans are not implemented within the agreed delivery timescales.

This bottom-up risk reporting is considered by the ROC alongside the
Group's principal risks. New risks are added to the Group's principal risk
register if deemed to be of a significant nature so that the ongoing status
and the progression of key action plans can be managed in line with the
Group's targets and expectations.

AD HOC RISK REPORTING

Whilst there is a formal process in place aligned to reporting on risks
and risk management on a quarterly basis, the process of risk identifi-
cation, assessment and response is continuous and therefore if required
risks can be reported to the Executive Board outside of the quarterly
process if events dictate that this is necessary and appropriate. Ideally
such ad hoc reporting is performed by the business or function which is
closest to the risk, but it can be performed by the Group Risk team if
necessary. The best example of ad hoc risk reporting in the year was an
early assessment ahead of the UK referendum of the possible risks
posed by a vote in favour of the UK leaving the EU (“Brexit"). A Brexit
Steering Committee has now been created to monitor developments in
this area.

@ See “Overall risk assessment” on page 62 for further details



RISK MATURITY & CULTURE

During the current financial year, the Risk Champions and the Group
Risk team have continued to work together on risk management actions
plans for the businesses as part of the culture of continuous improve-
ment. Periodically we ask the businesses to formally assess the risk
maturity and culture of their business, primarily through the Risk
Champions completing self-assessment questionnaires, validating this
with their local boards and then discussing their responses with the
Group Risk team.

ENTITY SCOPING

A robust exercise is conducted each year to determine the specific entities
in the Group which need to be included within the risk and control soft-
ware and therefore be subject to the full rigour of the risk management
process. The scoping exercise starts with the entities included within
the Group's consolidation system, and applies materiality thresholds to
a combination of revenue, profit and asset benchmarks. From the entities
this identifies, the common business management level at which those
entities are managed is identified to dictate the entities which need to
be set in the risk and control software itself to facilitate completeness
of bottom-up risk reporting across the Group. This ensures that the
risks and controls are able to be captured appropriately at the level at
which the risks are being managed.

EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Executive Board regularly reports to the Audit Committee of the
Supervisory Board on the performance and effectiveness of the risk
management system, supported by the ROC and the Group Risk team.
Additionally, the Audit Committee receives assurance from Internal Audit
through its programme of audits over a selection of principal risks and
business transformation initiatives most critical to the Group's continued
success. Finally, the Group's auditor assess the risk management system
in accordance with section 317 (4) of the German Commercial Code.

The conclusion from all of the above assurance work is that the risk
management system has functioned effectively throughout the year and
there have been no significant failings or weaknesses identified. Of course
there is always room for improvement and as noted earlier, the Risk
Champions and the Group Risk team have continued to work together on

Risk Report —_

risk management actions plans for the businesses. Broadly this concerns
ensuring consistency of approach in assessing risk scores, clearer identi-
fication of controls currently in place as well as any action plans to intro-
duce further controls, and ensuring that risk identification has considered
the four risk categories.

There are some principal risks which are inherent to the tourism sector
and necessarily face all businesses in the sector. For these inherent risks
we have controls, processes and procedures in place as a matter of course
which serve to mitigate each risk to either minimise the likelihood of the
event occurring and/or minimise the impact if it does occur. These risks
are on our risk radar and we regularly monitor the risk, the controls and
the risk landscape to ensure that the risk score stays stable and in line
with our risk appetite in each case.

Furthermore, the tourism industry is fast-paced and competitive, with
the emergence of new market participants operating new business
models, combined with consumer tastes and preferences evolving all
the time. As a result as a business we always have to adapt to the
changing environment, and it is this process of constant change which
generally gives rise to a number of principal risks which we have to
actively manage in order to bring the risk into line with our overall risk
appetite. We have action plans in place to increase controls around each
of these risks and reduce the current net risk score to the target level
indicated in the heat map overleaf.

In the heat map the assessment criteria used are shown on page 52
below. Note that the quantitative impact assessment is based on the
budgeted underlying EBITA for the financial year ended 30 Septem-
ber 2016.

If the risk detail in the subsequent tables does not suggest otherwise,
the risks shown below relate to all segments of the Group. The risks
listed are the principal risks to which we are exposed and are not exhaus-
tive. They will necessarily evolve over time due to the dynamic nature of
our business.
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__ Risk Report

RISK POSITIONS

INHERENT RISKS

. CURRENT RISK POSITION

Macroeconomic Risks

Health & Safety

Seasonal Cash Flow Profile

Competition and Consumer Preferences

Destination Disruptions
Input Cost Volatility

Legal & Regulatory Compliance

IMPACT
©
)

Joint Venture Partnerships

@G ©m
° ®® (4]
LIKELIHOOD

CURRENT RISK POSITION TARGET RISK POSITION

Supply Chain Risk

ACTIVE RISKS

@ CURRENT RISK POSITION (O TARGET RISK POSITION

1 IT Development & Strategy

Brand Change

Growth Strategy

Integration & Restructuring Opportunities
Sustainable Development

This shows the current level of risk faced
today after taking in to account the
controls that are in place and which are

This shows the target level of risk deemed to be
an acceptable, tolerable and justifiable risk posi-
tion after further actions have been implemented

Information Security
Talent Management

operating as intended. to mitigate the risk.

0w N o0 V1 A W N

Corporate Streamlining

NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

DESTINATION DISRUPTION RISK

Providers of holiday and travel services are exposed to the inherent risk of
incidents affecting some countries or destinations within their operations.
This can include natural catastrophes such as hurricanes or tsunamis;
outbreaks of disease such as Ebola; political volatility as has been seen
in Egypt and Greece in recent years; the implications of war in countries
close to our source markets and destinations; and terrorist events such
as the tragic incident in Tunisia last year and in Turkey in January 2016.

There is the risk that if such an event occurs which impacts on one or more
of our destinations that we could potentially suffer significant operational
disruption and costs in our businesses. We may possibly be required to
repatriate our customers and/or the event could lead to a significant de-
cline in demand for holidays to the affected destinations over an extended
period of time.

e Whilst we are unable to prevent such events from occurring, we have
well defined crisis management procedures and emergency response
plans which are implemented when an event of this nature occurs,
with the focus being on the welfare of our customers.

e Where the appropriate course of action is to bring customers home
immediately, our significant fleet of aircraft allows us to do this smooth-
ly and efficiently.

e Our policy is to follow foreign office advice in each of our source
markets with regards to non-essential travel. This serves to minimise
the exposure of our customers to turbulent regions.

e Due to our presence in all key holiday regions, when a specific destina-
tion has been impacted by an external event, we are able to offer
alternative destinations to our customers and to remix our destination
portfolio away from the affected area in future seasons if necessary.
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NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

e We always assume some level of destination disruption each year
when setting financial plans and targets, so that we are able to cope
with a "normal” level of disruption without it jeopardising achievement
of our targets.

MACROECONOMIC RISKS

Spending on travel and tourism is discretionary and price sensitive. The
economic outlook remains uncertain with different source markets at
different points in the economic cycle. Furthermore, terrorist incidents
in source markets can influence the overall demand for overseas travel
in those markets. Consumers are also waiting longer to book their trips
in order to assess their financial situation.

There is the risk that fluctuations in macroeconomic conditions in our
source markets will impact on the spending power of our customers which
could impact on our short-term growth rates and lead to margin erosion.

Furthermore, changes in macroeconomic conditions can have an impact
on exchange rates which, particularly for the £/€ rate, has a direct im-
pact on the translation of non-euro source market results into euros,
the reporting currency of our Group.

e Many consumers prioritise their spending on holidays above other
discretionary items.

e Creating unique and differentiated holiday products which match the
needs of our customers.

e |everaging our scale to keep costs down and prices competitive.

* Having a range of source markets so that we are not over exposed to
one particular economic cycle.

e Expressing our key profit growth target in constant currency terms
so that short term performance can be assessed without the distor-
tion caused by exchange rate fluctuations.

e Promoting the benefits of travelling with a recognised and leading
tour operator to increase consumer confidence and peace of mind.

COMPETITION & CONSUMER PREFERENCES

The tourism industry is fast-paced and competitive with the emergence
of new market participants operating new business models, combined
with consumer tastes and preferences evolving all the time.

In recent years there has been an emergence of successful substitute
business models such as web-based travel and hotel portals which allow
end users to combine the individual elements of a holiday trip on their
own and book them separately.

Consumer tastes and preferences have evolved in recent years as well,
with more consumers booking their holidays online and via mobiles and
tablets, and booking closer to the time of travel.

There is the risk that if we do not respond adequately to such business
model disruption or if our products and services fail to meet changing
customer demands and preferences, that our turnover, market share
and profitability will suffer as a result.

e Our outstanding market position as a leading tourism group, the
strength of our brands and our vertically integrated business model
enables us to respond robustly to competitive threats.

e The TUI Group is characterised by the continuous development of
unique and exclusive holidays, developing new concepts and services
which match the needs and preferences of our customers.

e Qur vertically integrated business model offers end-to-end customer
services, from consultation and booking of holidays via flights with
the Group's own airlines through to Group-owned or operated hotels,
resorts and cruise ships. Vertical integration thus facilitates the de-
velopment and marketing of individual, tailored holiday offerings for
customers which it is difficult for competitors to replicate.

e Building strong and lasting relationships with our key hotel partners,
which further reinforces our ability to develop new concepts exclusive
to the TUI Group which competitors struggle to match.

e Focusing on being online throughout the whole of the customer jour-
ney — from inspiration, to booking, to the holiday itself, as well as
returning and sharing experiences through social media.
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__ Risk Report

NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

INPUT COST VOLATILITY

A significant proportion of operating expenses are in non-local currency
and/or relate to aircraft fuel which therefore exposes the business to
changes in both exchange rates and fuel prices.

There is the risk that if we do not manage adequately the volatility of
exchange rates, fuel prices and other input costs, then this could result
in increased costs and lead to margin erosion, impacting on our ability
to achieve profit targets.

There is also the risk that if our hedging policy is too rigid, we may find
ourselves unable to respond to competitive pricing pressures during
the season without it having a direct detrimental impact on our market
position and/or profitability.

e Ensuring that the appropriate derivative financial instruments are
used to provide hedging cover for the underlying transactions involving
fuel and foreign currency.

e Maintaining an appropriate hedging policy to ensure that this hedging
cover is taken out ahead of source market customer booking profiles.
This provides a degree of certainty over input costs when planning
pricing and capacity, whilst also allowing some flexibility in prices so
as to be able to respond to competitive pressures if necessary.

e Tracking the foreign exchange and fuel markets to ensure the most
up-to-date market intelligence and the ongoing appropriateness of
our hedging policies.

e Detailed information on currency and fuel hedges can be found in
Note Financial Instruments of the consolidated financial statements.

SEASONAL CASHFLOW PROFILE

Tourism is an inherently seasonal business with the majority of profits
earned in the European summer months. Cash flows are similarly season-
al with the cash high occurring in the summer as advance payments and
final balances are received from customers, with the cash low occurring
in the winter as liabilities have to be settled with many suppliers after
the end of the summer season.

There is the risk that if we do not adequately manage cash balances
through the winter low period this could impact on the Group's liquidity
and ability to settle liabilities as they fall due whilst ensuring that financial
covenants are maintained.

e Asour business is spread across a number of source markets within the
Tourism division there are some counter-cyclical features e.g. winter is
a more important season for the Nordic and Canadian source markets.
Some brands, such as the UK ski brand Crystal Ski, have a different
seasonality profile which helps to temper the overall profile.

e The business produces regularly both short term and long term cash
forecasts during the year which the Treasury team use to manage
cash resources effectively.

e Existing credit facilities are considered to be more than sufficient for
our requirements and provide ample headroom.

¢ We continue to maintain high-quality relationships with the Group’s
key financiers and monitor compliance with the covenants contained
within our financing facilities.

¢ Raising additional finance from the Capital Markets, should it be
required, remains an option.

LEGAL & REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

Most providers of holiday and travel services operate across a number
of economies and jurisdictions which therefore exposes them to a range
of legal, tax and other regulatory laws which must be complied with.

As the TUI Group is the world's leading tourism business operating from
31 source markets and providing holidays in 180 destinations, we are
exposed to a range of laws and regulations with which we must comply
or else risk incurring fines or other sanctions from regulatory bodies.

¢ Communication and strong tone from the top concerning compliance
with laws and regulations.

e |egal Compliance Committee established to ensure appropriate over-
sight, monitoring and action plans and to further drive the compliance
culture across the Group.

e Embedded legal and tax expertise in all major businesses responsible
for maintaining high quality relationships with the relevant regulators
and authorities.

¢ Ongoing review conducted by the Group Legal Compliance team to
centrally monitor compliance with regulations and provide expert
advice to local teams on specific areas.
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NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

HEALTH & SAFETY

For all providers of holiday and travel services, ensuring the health and
safety of customers is of paramount importance. This is especially so
for TUI as we are the world’s leading tourism business selling holidays
to over 20 million customers per annum.

There is the risk of accidents or incidents occurring causing illness, injury
or death to customers or colleagues whilst on a TUI holiday. This could
result in reputational damage to the business and/or financial liabilities
through legal action being taken by the affected parties.

e Health and safety functions are established in all businesses in order
to ensure there is appropriate focus on health and safety processes
as part of the normal course of business.

¢ Ongoing monitoring is conducted by the Group Health & Safety
function to ensure compliance with minimum standards.

e Appropriate insurance policies are in place for when incidents do occur.

SUPPLY CHAIN RISK

Providers of holiday and travel services are exposed to the inherent risk
of failure in their key suppliers, particularly hotels. This is further height-
ened by the industry convention of paying in advance (“prepayment”)
to secure a level of room allocation for the season.

There is the risk that we do not adequately manage our financial exposure
should demand drop either for individual hotels and/ or for the destina-
tion in which the hotels are located and to which the tour operator still
has a level of prepayment outstanding which could result in financial
losses.

¢ Owned and joint venture partner hotels form a substantial part of
our programme which reduces our inherent risk in this area.

e Established and embedded a robust prepayment authorisation process
to both limit the level of prepayments made and ensure that they are
only paid to trusted, credit-worthy counterparties.

e Where prepayments are made to external hoteliers this is to secure
access to unique and differentiated product for which demand is
inherently higher and more resilient to external events than for
commodity product.

¢ Prepayments are monitored on a timely and sufficiently granular
basis to manage our financial exposure to justifiable levels.

JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIPS

It is common for tourism groups to use joint venture partnerships in
some of their operations in order to reduce the risk of new ventures
or to gain access to additional expertise. TUI has four significant joint
ventures — Riu; TUI Cruises; Sunwing; TUl Russia & Ukraine.

There is the risk that if we do not maintain good relations with our
key partners that the ventures' objectives may not remain consistent
with that of the Group which could lead to operational difficulties and
jeopardise the achievement of financial targets.

¢ Good working relationships exist with all of our main joint venture
partners and they are fully aligned with and committed to the growth
strategy of TUI Group.
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__ Risk Report

NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

IT DEVELOPMENT & STRATEGY

Our focus is on enhancing customer experience by providing engaging,
intuitive, seamless and continuous customer service through delivery of
leading digital solutions, core platform capabilities, underlying technical
infrastructure and IT services required to support the Group’s overall
strategy for driving profitable top-line growth.

There is a risk that we fail to keep up with or outpace the market and
evolving consumer preferences, we do not concentrate our activities on
the correct areas for overall business success, do not address legacy
inefficiencies and complexities of our existing infrastructure, do not en-
sure continuity of service for critical IT systems and/or do not execute
our strategy and developments in line with expectations.

If we are ineffective in our strategy or technology development this
could impact on our ability to provide leading technology solutions in our
markets thereby impacting on our competitiveness, our ability to provide
a superior customer experience and associated impact on quality and
operational efficiency. This would ultimately impact on our customer
numbers, revenue and profitability.

e Developed and communicated (in conjunction with Executives, Busi-
ness & IT Leadership Teams) the Group's IT Strategy which is clearly
aligned to our overall business objectives and considers external
factors such as the pace of technology change and internal factors
such as the underlying quality required throughout IT

e Continuing to implement our online platform in order to enhance
customer experience and drive higher conversion rates

* Implementing a SAP-based central customer platform to collate all
information on our customers across their journey to provide a single
view of the customer alongside an eCRM platform which will support
strategic marketing

e Placing increased focus on ensuring continuity plans for critical IT
systems are in place and regularly tested

e Defined and implemented a programme and project management
framework and software delivery lifecycle management methodolo-
gies, including associated training and coaching

e (Cascaded clear technology standards and associated delivery road-
maps which are linked to Group wide and source market objectives

BRAND CHANGE

Our long term strategy is to migrate our many local tour operating brands
in to one global brand, with the aim of strengthening and enhancing our
competitive position, particularly in the online world. We are aiming to
capitalise on the strength of the TUI brand on a global scale whilst
ensuring we maintain local roots.

There is an inherent risk when executing such a large scale global brand
strategy that we may not be able to maintain the benefits of local brand
equity throughout the process and we recognise that such a large
programme should take place with respect for the interests of all our
stakeholders and existing contractual obligations.

If we do not successfully deliver against our strategy this could result in
a decline in brand awareness and loyalty with associated decline in
customer demand or it could impact on our ability to maximise on the
opportunities facilitated by having one brand on a global scale.

® Undertaken detailed market research in each source market to assess
current brand positioning and likely impact of the brand change

e Approved incremental marketing spend to raise the profile of the TUI
brand locally in order to promote the benefits and to manage the
expectations of our customers in relation to the future of our enhanced
products and services

e Established a ‘'One Brand' programme team responsible for coordi-
nating and monitoring the brand change activity across all source
markets, with KPlIs identified and tracked on a regular basis by both
local and group colleagues and prompt corrective action taken to
address issues as they arise

e Taking a phased and focussed approach to the brand change by imple-
menting in one source market at a time. This minimises the risk at a
given point in time and allows us to gain learnings from the source
markets undergoing transition and implement those learnings in the
next source market. Our first brand transition successfully occurred
in the Netherlands in the current financial year 2015/16, with Nordics
and Belgium source markets due to transition in financial year 2016/17.

e Communicating both internally & externally across multiple media
channels to drive brand awareness, with further plans to increase
awareness through consistent marketing in key destination airports
and changing of the livery on our aircraft in order to support greater
awareness of the TUl Brand
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NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

GROWTH STRATEGY

We have set ourselves a short-term target of achieving underlying EBITA
CAGR of at least 10 % (see page 66). The achievement of this target is
likely to require us to achieve growth in revenues of c. 3% pa. Our focus
is on achieving growth in accommodation by:

® opening new hotels;
e growing our powerful and exclusive international hotel concepts;
e continuing to expand the Cruise fleet

Additionally, we are looking to broaden our offering to customers by
introducing extra flexibility into our packages, and to expand our long-
haul offering by taking advantage of the capabilities of the Boeing 787
Dreamliners which we have and are due to receive via our order book.
Note that availability of aircraft finance is a key assumption of our business
model.

Whilst managing this expansion, we must continue to adapt to changes
in consumer tastes and booking profiles, and we must continue to
match our capacity to consumer demand. Asset utilisation — of aircraft,
cruise ships and hotels — is critical to our financial success particularly
when in a growth phase.

There is a risk that we could be unsuccessful in maximising opportunities
to execute our expansion strategy. This could mean that we fail to
achieve some of the initiatives we have embarked upon, which could
result in us falling short against the overall growth targets we have set
for the business.

e The Executive Board is very focussed on the strategy and mindful of
the risks, so there is strong direction and commitment from the top.

e The Group Tourism Board plays an important role in co-ordinating,
executing and monitoring the various growth initiatives.

e There are a number of initiatives underway to achieve growth which
reduces the risk through diversification.

e FEach of the business teams tasked with achieving an element of the
growth strategy are still required to maintain sound financial discipline.
The Group's investment criteria and authorisation processes must
still be adhered to as we are not prepared to be reckless in the pursuit
of growth.

e We continue to maintain strong relationships with the providers of
aircraft finance.

e Monitoring of overall market conditions continues to occur so that
plans can be adapted or contingency plans invoked if required.

INTEGRATION & RESTRUCTURING OPPORTUNITIES

Our key rationale for the merger of TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC was
growth and delivery of significant synergies and to act ‘as one’ wherever
it makes sense to do so, maintaining local differences where the benefit
of that differentiation is greater than that of harmonisation.

There are a number of restructuring projects underway across the
Group as a result to enable us to achieve these opportunities. There is
an inherent risk with any large restructuring programme that we face
challenges in managing the complexities associated with further integrat-
ing our business, and reducing overlapping activities in order to develop
a more lean and streamlined operating model.

Furthermore, the strategic review of the Group has identified businesses
which would be better positioned outside of the TUI Group. One disposal
(Hotelbeds Group) was successfully completed in the year, one disposal
is underway (Travelopia) and further restructuring opportunities may
present themselves in the future.

If we are not successful in leveraging and optimising the identified op-
portunities this could have a significant impact on our ability to deliver
the identified benefits in line with expectations and enhance shareholder
value.

e Strong project management structures exist for all of the major re-
structuring and disposal programmes which are underway to ensure
that they are managed effectively.

* Project reporting tool ensures enhanced visibility of the progress of
major projects as a matter of routine.

e Regular reporting by the major projects to the Executive Board to
ensure swift resolution of any issues or to enhance co-ordination
across the Group where required.
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__ Risk Report

NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Our focus is to reduce the environmental impact of our holidays, creating
positive change for people and communities and being a pioneer of sus-
tainable tourism across the world.

There is a risk that we are not successful in driving forecast environ-
mental improvements across our operations, that our suppliers do not
uphold our sustainability standards and we fail to influence destinations
to manage tourism more sustainably.

If we do not maximise our positive impact on destinations and minimise
the negative impact on the environment to the extent that our stake-
holders expect, this could result in a decline in stakeholder confidence,
reputational damage, reduction in demand for our products and services
and loss of competitive advantage.

Furthermore, if TUI Group falls short of achieving its sustainable develop-
ment targets and at the same time the objectives of the UN Paris Climate
Change Agreement (December 2015) are not met, this could lead to
sustained long-term damage to certain of the TUI Group's current and
future destinations, which could also have a material adverse effect on
demand for our products and services.

e Developed and launched in 2015 the ‘Better Holidays, Better World’
2020 sustainability strategy framework which includes specific targets
for key sustainability indicators

e Established a dedicated sustainability team to work closely with the
business and other stakeholders to implement the sustainability
strategy

e Operating the most carbon efficient airlines in Europe with continued
investment in new, more efficient aircraft (e. g. Boeing 787 Dreamliner)
and cruise ships

* Implemented an environmental management system with 5 of our
airlines having achieved ISO 14001 certification

¢ Increased measures to influence accommodation suppliers to achieve
third party sustainability certification recognised by the Global
Sustainable Tourism Council (GSTC)

e TUI Care Foundation expanded to focus on the achievement of 2020
target for charitable donations and sustainability projects, with par-
ticular emphasis on sustainable tourism, environmental protection
and the welfare of children

INFORMATION SECURITY

Our responsibility is to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availabil-
ity of the data we have and the services we provide to our customers,
our employees, our suppliers and service delivery teams.

There is a risk that our increasing dependence on online sales and cus-
tomer care channels (web/mobile) increases our exposure and suscepti-
bility to cyber-attacks and hacks.

If we do not ensure we have the appropriate level of security controls in
place across the Group, this could have a significant negative impact on
our key stakeholders, associated reputational damage and potential for
financial implications.

e Renewed commitment from the Executive Board in support of key
initiatives to ensure all existing and future IT systems are secure by
design, that exposure to vulnerability is managed effectively, user
access is sufficiently controlled and colleagues are made aware of
information security risks through appropriate training

e Continuous review and testing of all external devices and ongoing
monitoring of logs in order to identify any potential threats as and
when they arise
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NATURE OF RISK

MITIGATING FACTORS

TALENT MANAGEMENT

Our success depends on the ability to attract and retain key talent and
it relies on having good relations with colleagues.

There is a risk that we are unable to attract and retain key talent, build
future leadership capability and maintain the commitment and trust of
our employees. This risk is enhanced in periods of uncertainty and in
areas of the business impacted by restructuring programmes.

As we approach the second anniversary of the merger which created
TUI Group, our view is that we have successfully navigated our way
through the initial period of post-merger concern with regards to retain-
ing key talent. The heightened risk we perceived in this area has now
gone back to normal “business as usual” levels.

If we face challenges in managing and maintaining our talent pipeline in
order to deliver against our strategy, drive competitiveness and maximise
on our operating performance, this could impact on our ability to future
proof the Group and the associated potential for negative impact on
shareholder confidence.

¢ Continuing to extend and embed our established talent management
framework across the Group in order to engage and empower people
whilst delivering results and managing performance

e Assessing our current organisational competence and capability
against that required to maximise current and future shareholder
value

e Ensuring succession plans are in place for all identified business critical
roles, in particular emergency successors for all senior management
roles, and that these plans are reviewed every six months

e Developed a structured and standard approach to be applied where
necessary to key individuals during periods of uncertainty and/or
organisational change in order to retain top talent in business critical
roles

¢ Implemented a process to identify and deliver programmes targeted
at high potential talent in order to drive competiveness and maximise
operating performance

e Building our pipeline of leadership talent through our International
Graduate Leadership Programme which attracts, develops and retains
high quality graduates to become our future senior Commercial
Leaders

¢ Driving high performance and engagement through our performance
review, development plans and career planning process

CORPORATE STREAMLINING

The merger of TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC has presented us with the
opportunity to reduce Corporate overheads by eliminating duplicate
costs.

If we do not deliver the targeted savings of €50 m this may impact on
our ability to achieve our overall underlying EBITA growth target.

¢ Close monitoring of the delivery of corporate streamlining cost savings
to ensure that they have been achieved in line with expectations.

e To date 80% of the target savings had been achieved by the end of
the current financial year, with the remainder set to be achieved
during financial year 2016/17. The Integration Committee which has
overseen the achievement of these savings met for the last time in
September 2016.
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__ Risk Report

RISKS WITH NO IMPACT ON UNDERLYING EBITA

Impairment risk related to the investment in container shipping (Hapag-
Lloyd AG).

TUI Group continues to hold a substantial investment in the container
shipping company, Hapag-Lloyd AG. Significant deterioration in the
market value of the investment will require an impairment to be booked
in the income statement of the TUI Group — as has occurred in the finan-
cial year ended 30th September 2016. Whilst this risk has been reduced
by the impairment already taken in the current and prior years, the value
of the investment on our balance sheet is still material and therefore
the risk continues to exist. We are committed to our plan to fully exit
this investment in the medium term.

German trade tax risk.

As noted in prior years, the German tax authorities have issued guidance
on how certain items of expenditure should be treated for the purposes
of German trade tax. The Group continues to disagree with the German
tax authorities’ interpretation of this matter and it is possible that the
issue will have to be litigated through the German tax courts which
could take a considerable amount of time to bring it to a resolution.
However due to a judgement from the fiscal court Munster on 4 Febru-
ary 2016, a reassessment of the trade tax risk for the purchase of hotel
accommodation was undertaken in the current financial year, resulting in
a separately recognised tax expense of €37 m in the income statement.

OVERALL RISK ASSESSMENT

Destination disruption is an inherent risk to which all providers of holiday
and travel services are exposed. This disruption can take place in many
forms such as natural catastrophes, outbreaks of diseases, social unrest,
terrorist attacks and the implications of war in countries close to our
source markets and destinations. Whilst thankfully we did not directly
experience a tragic event like the Tunisia incident of June 2015, incidents
in various destinations (e.g. Sharm el-Sheikh in October 2015) continue
to keep the risk of disruption in some North African destinations at a
high level. Furthermore, general customer concerns over safety and
security in eastern Mediterranean destinations (particularly Turkey) has
led to a general decline in demand across all our source markets for
these destinations. Due to our geographic reach, we have been able to
respond to this shift in demand by remixing capacity away from North
Africa and the eastern Mediterranean towards destinations customers
are currently favouring such as Spain, Canary Islands, Cape Verde etc.
Despite this current shift in demand, Turkey remains an important
destination for our Group. Our general policy in respect of destinations
remains to follow foreign office advice in each of our source markets
relating to non-essential travel to specific destinations. It is noted that in
January 2017 there will be an inquest in the UK into the Tunisia incident
of June 2015 and we await any industry recommendations that may
arise as a result.

One of the biggest events in 2015/16 which has the potential to signifi-
cantly alter the risk landscape of the Group is the UK referendum at the
end of June which resulted in a vote for the UK to leave the EU (“Brexit").
The exchange rate volatility seen earlier in the year has continued as a
result, which has an immediate impact on the translation of the sterling
results from our UK business into euros, the reporting currency of the

Group. The depreciation of sterling against the euro means that each £
of profit translates into a smaller euro value. The outcome of the referen-
dum has led to a greater degree of uncertainty over the future economic
performance of the UK economy. Whilst we have not seen any apparent
slow-down in bookings in our UK business to date, there is a greater
potential for this to occur in the medium term. Therefore for both of these
reasons we see our macroeconomic risk as having increased compared
to this time last year, although the strength and differentiation of our
customer offering means that we are well positioned to deal with the
changing macroeconomic environment. The depreciation of sterling also
has a cost impact through making foreign denominated input costs in
the UK business more expensive in sterling terms. Whilst the standard
hedging policy we follow means that for the 2015/ 16 financial year the UK
business was largely immune to these cost pressures, the risk crystallises
to a greater extent in 2016/17, as S17 was partially hedged (c. 40 %) at
the time of the referendum, if sterling stays at current levels. Normal
business practice is to increase holiday prices to offset these higher input
costs and protect margins, however competitive pressures may prevent
prices from rising to the full extent required. The other immediate impact
of the Brexit vote has been the reduction in UK interest rates and
therefore discount factors applied to UK pension liabilities, which has
resulted in a significant increase in the pension liability at the year-end.
Whilst this does not of itself present a risk at the moment, it may do so
when the next actuarial valuation is performed on the UK pension
scheme if it then leads to a requirement to make higher cash pension
contributions over a sustained period of time. Please see note Pension
provisions and similar obligations of the financial statements for further
details on the pension deficit.

The Group has created a Brexit Steering Committee to monitor devel-
opments as the political negotiations take place concerning the specifics
of the terms of the UK exit from and future trading relationship with the
EU and how this may affect the TUI Group's business model. At this
stage it is too early to assess whether there will be any impact on areas
such as flying rights, customer visa requirements or employee contracts
and therefore we view Brexit as being an emerging risk around which
more clarity will be gained in the future once Article 50 is triggered by
the UK government and exit negotiations begin.

The completion in December 2014 of the merger between TUI AG and
TUI Travel PLC has had an impact on our risk landscape by opening up
new business opportunities but also introducing new risks in the pursuit
of those opportunities (e.g. brand change) and in the context of the
delivery of specific merger synergies. We are pleased that the post-
merger integration of the Group has progressed well and at a faster
pace than originally anticipated. We are on track to deliver our specific
merger synergy targets, integration-related restructuring programmes
are ongoing as expected, and we have successfully navigated our way
through the initial period of post-merger concern with regards to retain-
ing key talent. We therefore perceive these risks to be at a lower level
than they were 12 months ago.

In the course of the restructuring of our tourism activities, we have
completed the disposal in September 2016 of Hotelbeds Group and
commenced the marketing of Travelopia (formerly part of Specialist



Group). Such large disposal transactions have inherent risks associated
with them due to the amount of management time they require to bring
them to a successful conclusion, combined with continuing obligations
and customary representation and warranties.

Finally, the risk of a deterioration in the valuation of our container ship-
ping investment crystallised again during the year and a further impair-
ment has been taken. Whilst this has therefore reduced the risk for future
periods, the value of the investment on our balance sheet is still material
and therefore the risk continues to exist.

Other than the items noted above, the Executive Board is of the opinion
that there has been no other significant change to the risk landscape of
the Group.

VIABILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with provision C2.2 of the 2014 revision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Executive Board has assessed the prospect of
the Company over a longer period than the 12 months required by the
‘Going Concern’ provision. The Executive Board considers annually and
on a rolling-basis a three year strategic plan for the business as outlined
earlier in the “Strategic direction and risk appetite” section. The latest
three year plan was approved in October 2016 and covers the period to
30th September 2019. A three year horizon is considered appropriate
for a fast-moving competitive environment such as tourism, and it is
noted that the Group's current €1,535.0m revolving credit facility,
which is used to manage the seasonality of the Group's cash flows and
liquidity, matures in December 2020 which is beyond the timeframe of
the three year horizon. The three year plan considers cash flows as well as
the financial covenants which the credit facility requires compliance with.
A key assumption underpinning the three year plan and the associated
cash flow forecast is that aircraft and cruise ship finance will continue to
be readily available.

The Executive Board has conducted a robust assessment of the princi-
pal risks facing the company, including those that would threaten its
business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. Sensitivity
analysis is applied to the cash flow to model the potential effects should
certain principal risks actually occur, individually or in unison. This in-
cludes modelling the effects on the cash flow of significant disruption to
a major destination in the summer season.

Taking account of the company's current position, principal risks and
the aforementioned sensitivity analysis, the Executive Board has a rea-
sonable expectation that the company will be able to continue in oper-
ation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three year period
of the assessment.

Risk Report —_

1. DEFINITION AND ELEMENTS OF THE INTERNAL CONTROL
AND RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IN THE TUI GROUP

The TUI Group's internal control system comprises all the principles,

processes and measures that are applied to secure effective, efficient

and accurate accounting which is compliant with the necessary legal

requirements.

In the completed financial year, the TUI Group's existing internal control
system was further developed, drawing on the internationally recognised
framework of COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission), which forms the conceptual basis for the internal
control system.

The TUI Group's internal control system consists of internal controls
and the internal monitoring system. The Executive Board of TUI AG, in
exercising its function of managing business operations, has entrusted
responsibility for the internal control system in the TUI Group to specific
Group functions.

The elements of the internal monitoring system in the TUI Group com-
prise both measures integrated into processes and measures per-
formed independently. Besides manual process controls, e. g. the “four-
eyes principle”, another key element of the process-related measures
are automated IT process controls. Process-related monitoring is also
secured by bodies such as the Risk Oversight Committee of TUI AG and
by specific Group functions.

The Supervisory Board of TUI AG, in particular its Audit Committee, as
well as the Group Auditing department at TUI AG and the decentralized
audit departments within Group companies, are incorporated into the
TUI Group's internal monitoring system through their audit activities
performed independently from business processes. On the basis of
section 107 (3) of the German Stock Corporation Act, the Audit Com-
mittee of TUI AG deals primarily with the auditing of the annual financial
statements, monitoring the accounting process and the effectiveness of
the internal control and risk management system.

The Group's auditors have oversight of the TUI Group's control environ-
ment through their non-process-related activities. The audit of the con-
solidated financial statements by the Group auditor and the audit of the
individual financial statements of Group companies included in the con-
solidated financial statements, in particular, constitute a key non-pro-
cess-related monitoring measure with regard to Group accounting.
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__ Risk Report

In relation to Group accounting, the risk management system, intro-
duced as an Enterprise Risk Management System (ERM System) as a
component of the internal control system, also addresses the risk of
misstatements in Group bookkeeping and external reporting. Apart
from operational risk management, which includes the transfer of risks
to insurance companies by creating cover for damage and liability risks
and also hedging transactions to limit foreign currency and fuel price
risks, the TUI Group's risk management system embraces the systemat-
ic early detection, management and monitoring of risks across the
Group. A more detailed explanation of the risk management system is
provided in the section on the Risk Governance Framework in the Risk
Report.

2. USE OF IT SYSTEMS

Bookkeeping transactions are captured in the individual financial state-
ments of the subsidiaries of TUI AG, through local accounting systems
such as SAP or Oracle. As part of the process of preparing their individ-
ual financial statements, subsidiaries complete standardized reporting
packages in the Group’s Oracle Hyperion Financial Management 11.1.2.3
(HFM) reporting system. HFM is used as the uniform reporting and con-
solidation system throughout the Group so that no additional interfaces
exist for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

All consolidation processes used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of TUI AG, e. g. capital consolidation, assets and liabilities
consolidation and expenses and income elimination including at equity
measurement, are generated and fully documented in HFM. All elements
of TUI AG's consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures
in the Notes, are developed from the HFM consolidation system. HFM also
provides various modules for evaluation purposes in order to prepare
complementary information to explain TUl AG's consolidated financial
statements.

The HFM reporting and consolidation system has an in-built workflow
process whereby when businesses promote their data within the sys-
tem, to signal that their reporting package is complete, they are then
locked out from making any further changes to that data. This ensures
data integrity within the system and also facilitates a strong audit trail
enabling changes to a reporting package to be identified. This feature of
the HFM system has been checked and validated by the TUI AG Group
Audit department on several occasions since the system was intro-
duced.

At their own discretion, TUI AG's Group auditors select certain individual
financial statements from the financial statements entered in the HFM
reporting and consolidation system by the Group companies, which are
then reviewed for the purposes of auditing the consolidated financial
statements.

3. SPECIFIC RISKS RELATED TO GROUP ACCOUNTING

Specific risks related to Group accounting may arise, for example, from
unusual or complex business transactions, in particular at critical times
towards the end of the financial year. Business transactions not routinely
processed also entail special risks. The discretion necessarily granted to
employees for the recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities
may result in further Group accounting-related risks. The outsourcing
and transfer of accounting-specific tasks to service companies may also
give rise to specific risks. Accounting-related risks from derivative financial
instruments are outlined in the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

4. KEY REGULATION AND CONTROL ACTIVITIES TO ENSURE
PROPER AND RELIABLE GROUP ACCOUNTING
The internal control measures aimed at securing proper and reliable
Group accounting ensure that business transactions are fully recorded
in a timely manner in accordance with legal requirements and the Articles
of Association. This also ensures that assets and liabilities are properly
recognised, measured and presented in the consolidated financial
statements. The control operations also ensure that bookkeeping re-
cords provide reliable and comprehensive information.

Controls implemented to secure proper and reliable accounting include,
for instance, analysis of facts and developments on the basis of specific
indicators. Separation of administrative, execution, settlement and
authorisation functions and the implementation of these functions by
different persons reduces the potential for fraudulent operations. Or-
ganisational measures also aim to capture any corporate or Group-wide
restructuring or changes in sector business operations rapidly and ap-
propriately in Group accounting. They also ensure, for instance, that
bookkeeping transactions are correctly recognised in the period in
which they occur in the event of changes in the IT systems used by
the accounting departments of Group companies. The internal control
system likewise ensures that changes in the TUI Group's economic or
legal environment are mapped and that new or amended accounting
standards are correctly applied.



The TUI Group's accounting policies together with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in compliance with EU legislation,
govern the uniform accounting and measurement principles for the
German and foreign companies included in TUI's consolidated financial
statements. They include general accounting principles and methods,
policies concerning the statement of financial position, income state-
ment, notes, management report, cash flow statement and segment
reporting.

The TUI Group's accounting policies also govern specific formal require-
ments for the consolidated financial statements. Besides defining the
group of consolidated companies, they include detailed guidance on the
reporting of financial information by those companies via the group re-
porting system HFM on a monthly, quarterly and year end basis. TUl's
accounting policies also include, for instance, specific instructions on
the initiating, reconciling, accounting for and settlement of transactions
between group companies or determination of the fair value of certain
assets, especially goodwill.

At Group level, specific controls to ensure proper and reliable Group
accounting include the analysis and, where necessary, correction of the
individual financial statements submitted by the Group companies,
taking account of the reports prepared by the auditors and meetings to
discuss the financial statements which involve both the auditors and
local management. Any further content that requires adjusting can be
isolated and processed downstream.

Risk Report —_

The control mechanisms already established in the HFM consolidation
system minimize the risk of processing erroneous financial statements.
Certain parameters are determined at Group level and have to be ap-
plied by group companies. This includes parameters applicable to the
measurement of pension provisions or other provisions and the interest
rates to be applied when cash flow models are used to calculate the fair
value of certain assets. The central implementation of impairment tests
for goodwill recognized in the financial statements secures the applica-
tion of uniform and standardized evaluation criteria.

5. DISCLAIMER

With the organisational, control and monitoring structures established
by the TUI Group, the internal control and risk management system
enables company-specific facts to be captured, processed and recog-
nised in full and properly presented in the Group's accounts.

However, it lies in the very nature of the matter that discretionary
decision-making, faulty checks, criminal acts and other circumstances,
in particular, cannot be ruled out and will restrict the efficiency and
reliability of the internal control and risk management systems, so that
even Group-wide application of the systems cannot guarantee with
absolute certainty the accurate, complete and timely recording of facts
in the Group's accounts.

Any statements made relate exclusively to subsidiaries according to
IFRS 10 included in TUI AG's consolidated financial statements.
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__ Overall assessment by the Executive Board and Report on expected development

OVERALL ASSESSMENT BY THE
EXECUTIVE BOARD AND REPORT
ON EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT

In the second post-merger financial year, TUI Group's performance
again exceeded our original forecast, despite a challenging geopolitical
framework. TUI Group’s underlying EBITA rose by 5.0 % to €1,000.5m in
financial year 2015/16. Excluding the negative foreign exchange effects in-
cluded in these earnings due to the decline of sterling against the euro in
the period under review, this corresponds to an improvement of 14.5 %.
We have thus outperformed our guidance of achieving an increase in our
operating result of at least 10 % on a constant currency basis.

Due to the sound operating performance and lower net one-off charges,
the Group also achieved an increase in its reported EBITA, which grew
by 13.0 % to €898.1 m.

Brand turnover and TUI Group turnover grew less than expected, but
delivered growth of 2.3 % and 1.4 % respectively on the prior year on a
constant currency basis.

At €691.0m, the Group's net capital expenditure on property, plant and
equipment and financial investments fell slightly short of the target of
€750.0m. These amounts include the investments and capital expend-
iture of Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group, which were sold in the
period under review. The net debt of €31.8m carried at the end of
financial year 2015/16 also reflected the broadly neutral net finance
position for TUI Group we had expected after the agreement to sell
Hotelbeds Group.

EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT

Var. % 2017 2016
|

World +34 +3.41
Eurozone +15 +1.7

Germany +1.4 +1.7

France +1.3 +1.3
UK +1.1 +1.8
us +2.2 +1.6
Russia +1.1 -08
Japan +0.6 +0.5
China +6.2 +6.6
India +7.6 +7.6

Source: International Monetary Fund (IMF), World Economic Outlook, October 2016

MACROECONOMIC SITUATION

The International Monetary Fund (IMF, World Economic Outlook, Octo-
ber 2016) expects gross domestic product to grow 3.1% in calendar
year 2016, as economic momentum has declined in the developed econo-
mies following the UK vote to exit the European Union and growth in the
United States has been weaker than expected. For 2017, the IMF expects
the global economy to grow by 3.4 %. The experts believe the economy
will gain some momentum again due to several factors, including an in-
crease in investments and a better outlook for the emerging markets.

MARKET TREND IN TOURISM

UNWTO expects international tourism to continue growing globally in
this decade. For the next few years, average weighted growth of around
3% per annum has been forecast (source: UNWTO, Tourism Highlights,
2016 edition). In the first six months of 2016, international arrivals grew
by 4.0%. UNWTO expects growth of 3.5% to 4.5% for calendar year
2016 (source: UNWTO, World Tourism Barometer, September 2016).

EFFECTS ON TUI GROUP

As a leading provider of tourism services, TUl Group depends on the
development of consumer demand in the large source markets in which
we operate with our tour operator and hotel brands. Our budget is
based on the assumptions used as a basis by the IMF to predict the
future development of the global economy.
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Apart from the development of consumer sentiment, political stability in
the destinations is a further crucial factor affecting demand for holiday
products. In our view, our business model is sufficiently flexible to com-
pensate for the currently identifiable challenges.

The expected turnover growth assumed for our tour operators in our
budget for financial year 2016/17 is in line with UNWTO's long-term
forecast. Our strategic focus is to create unified branding in our source
markets, broaden our portfolio of Group-owned hotels and expand our
cruise business.

TUlI GROUP

The translation of the income statements of foreign subsidiaries in our
consolidated financial statements is based on average monthly exchange
rates. TUl Group generates a considerable proportion of consolidated
turnover and large earnings and cash flow contributions in non-euro
currencies, in particular GBP, USD and SEK. Taking account of the sea-
sonality in tourism, the development of these currencies against the euro
in the course of the year therefore strongly impacts the financial indi-
cators carried in TUI Group's consolidated financial statements. The
comments on the expected development of our Group in financial
year 2016/17 provided below are based on the assumption of constant
currencies for the completed financial year 2015/16.

EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT OF GROUP TURNOVER, UNDERLYING
EBITA AND ADJUSTMENTS

Expected Development vs. PY

€ million 2015/16 2016/17*

|
Turnover 17,185 around 3 % growth
Underlying EBITA 1,001 at least 10 % growth
Adjustments 103 approx. €80 m cost

*Variance year-on-year assuming constant foreign exchange rates are applied to the result
in the current and prior period and based on the current group structure; guidance
relates to continuing operations and excludes any disposal proceeds for Travelopia and
Hapag-Lloyd AG.

TURNOVER

We expect turnover to grow by around 3 % in financial year 2016/17
on a constant currency basis, primarily due to an expected increase in
customer numbers and higher average prices for our large tour operators,
driven by the delivery of our growth roadmap.

UNDERLYING EBITA

TUI Group's underlying EBITA in financial year 2016/17 is expected to
grow by at least 10 % at constant currency as we deliver our growth
roadmap. Risks relate to the development of customer numbers against
the backdrop of continued volatility in the economic environment in our
key source markets, demand for Group-owned hotels and cruise ships
and the delivery of all merger synergies.

@ See Goals and Strategy section from page 28
See Risk Report from page 49

ADJUSTMENTS
For financial year 2016 /17, we expect purchase price allocations and net
one-off costs of around €80 m, to be carried as adjustments.

ROIC AND ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED

Due to the enhanced operating result, we expect ROIC to improve slightly
in financial year 2016/17; depending on the development of TUI Group's
capital costs, this is also expected to result in an increase in economic
value added.

DEVELOPMENT IN THE SEGMENTS

The expected development outlined below is based on current trading,
our growth roadmap and the relative performance of our segments
during financial year 2015/ 16. Future development depends on demand
in our source markets and customer segments and on input cost curves.
In our view, the benefit of our diversified business model is that devel-
opments in individual segments can be offset by opposite trends in
other segments.

SOURCE MARKETS

Based on current trading and assuming constant currency exchange rates,
we would expect the source markets to deliver at least 10 % underlying
earnings growth at constant currency. Besides a continuous good devel-
opment in UK and a further improvement in Nordics we expect and in-
crease of our tour operating result in France which should also benefit
from the recent Transat acquisition. In addition, Germany should benefit
from efficiency measures.

HOTELS & RESORTS

We expect that the result improvement following the delivery of our
growth strategy should more than offset the non-recurring gain on
disposal of a Riu hotel in the past financial year. Taking into account the
non-recurring gain on disposal of a Riu hotel in financial year 2015/16
we expect growth in Hotels & Resorts above our Group underlying
EBITA guidance of at least 10 %.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

9

EN

Vo SRR

FURTHER INFORMATION

>
L
=
<
S
(%]
=]
<
O
Z
<<
=
e
o
w
=
<
(a)
N
Q
-,
-
©
4




__ Overall assessment by the Executive Board and Report on expected development

CRUISES

Due to first-time full-year operation of Mein Schiff 5 and the planned
launch of Mein Schiff 6 in financial year 2016/17, we expect growth in
underlying EBITA in Cruises to considerably exceed our Group guidance
of at least 10 %.

EXPECTED DEVELOPMENT OF GROUP FINANCIAL POSITION

Expected development vs. PY in %

€ million 2015/16 2016/17

|
Net cash capex and investments® 642.3 around €1.0bn
Net financial position -31.8 around €0.8bn

* Excl. aircraft orderbook financing

NET CAPEX AND INVESTMENTS

In the light of investment decisions already taken and projects in the
pipeline, we expect TUI Group's net funding requirements to be around
€1.0bn for financial year 2016/17 excluding aircraft orderbook finance.
Capex mainly relates to the launch of new production and booking
systems for our tour operators, maintenance and expansion of our hotel
portfolio and the acquisition of the cruise ship Legend of the Seas.
Planned investments mainly include the acquisition of the French
Transat tour operation business.

NET FINANCIAL POSITION

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s net financial position amounted
to €31.8m net cash. Due to the planned increase in net cash capex and
investments, we expect TUl Group's net debt to increase to around
€0.8bn in financial year 2016/17.

CLIMATE PROTECTION AND EMISSIONS

Greenhouse gas emissions and the impact of these emissions on climate
change pose one of the major global challenges for the tourism sector.
The goals we set ourselves in our sustainability strategy “Better Holidays,
Better World”, launched in September 2015, include operating Europe’s
most carbon-efficient airlines by 2020 and defending this top position.
Specific carbon emissions (g CO,/PKM) are to be reduced by 10 % by
2020. We also aim to reduce the carbon intensity of our global operations
by 10 % by 2020 (against the baseline of 2013/ 14).

At the date of preparation of the Management Report (6 December 2016),
we uphold our positive assessment of TUI Group's economic situation
and outlook for financial year 2016/17. With its finance profile, strong
brand and services portfolio, TUl Group is well positioned in the market.
In the first few weeks of the new financial year 2016/17, the overall
business performance has matched expectations.

As against the prior year reference period, we expect TUI Group's
underlying operating result to grow by at least 10 % year-on-year on a
constant currency basis, driven by improved operating performance in
the segments.

In the light of our growth strategy, we have updated our medium-term
guidance, aiming to deliver at least 10 % underlying EBITA CAGR in the
three years to 2018/19. Our long-term target for TUI Group's gross
capex (excluding aircraft orderbook finance) is at 3.5 % of consolidated
turnover.

TUI Group's opportunity management follows the Group strategy for
core business Tourism. Responsibility for systematically identifying and
taking up opportunities rests with the operational management of the
source markets and the TUI Hotels & Resorts and Cruises segments.
Market scenarios and critical success factors for the individual sectors
are analysed and assessed in the framework of the Group-wide planning
and control process. The core task of the Group's Executive Board is to
secure profitable growth for the TUI Group by optimising the shareholding
portfolio and developing the Group structure over the long term.

Overall, TUI Group is well positioned to benefit from opportunities result-
ing from the main trends in its markets.

OPPORTUNITIES FROM THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE OVERALL
FRAMEWORK

Should the economy perform better than expected, the TUI Group and
its sectors would benefit from the resulting increase in demand in the
travel market. Moreover, changes in the competitive environment could
create opportunities for the TUI Group in individual markets.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY

We see opportunities for further organic growth in particular by ex-
panding our hotel portfolio and cruise business. As market leader, we
also intend to benefit in the long term from demographic change and
the resulting expected increase in demand for high-quality travel at an
attractive price/performance ratio.

OPERATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES
We intend to improve our competitive position further by offering unique
product and further expanding controlled distribution in the source

markets, in particular online distribution. We also see operational
opportunities arising from stronger integration of our content and tour
operation business.

OTHER OPPORTUNITIES
We also regard a potential sale of Specialist Group and our remaining
stake in container shipping as an opportunity to further improve TUI
Group's key financial ratios.
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___ Business Review

BUSINESS REVIEW

Macroeconomic industry and market framework

DEVELOPMENT OF GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT

EXCHANGE RATE STERLING

Var. % 2016 2015
|

World +3.1 +3.2
Eurozone +1.7 +2.0

Germany +1.7 +1.5

France +1.3 +1.3
UK +1.8 +2.2
us +1.6 +2.6
Russia -08 -37
Japan +0.5 +0.5
China +6.6 +6.9
India +7.6 +7.6

Source: International Monetary Fund (IMF), World Economic Outlook, September 2016

In calendar year 2016, the global economy continued to grow moderately.
In its most recent outlook (IMF, World Economic Outlook, October 2016),
the International Monetary Fund forecasts growth of 3.1 % for 2016,
which is less than the previous year. With Britain voting to leave the
European Union and growth in the United States weaker than expected,
the experts expect economic momentum in the advanced economies to

decline overall.

EXCHANGE RATE US DOLLAR
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The exchange rate charts are presented on the basis of the indirect quotation format
customary in the foreign exchange market. If the exchange rate falls, the foreign currency
is appreciating against the euro. By contrast, if the exchange rate rises, the foreign

currency is depreciating against the euro.

TUI Group companies operate on a worldwide scale. This presents
financial risks for TUI Group, arising from changes in exchange rates and

commodity prices.

The essential financial transaction risks from operations relate to euros
and US dollars. They mainly result from foreign exchange items in the
individual Group companies, for instance aircraft fuel and bunker oil



invoices, ship handling costs or products and services sourced by hotels.
The parity of sterling against the euro is of relevance for the translation
of results generated in the UK market in TUl's consolidated financial
statements.

Following the UK referendum at the end of June 2016, which resulted in
a vote for Brexit, the currency fluctuations already described in our
Half-Year Financial Report 2015/16 continued. They impacted the
translation of results from our UK business. Thanks to our consistent
hedging policy, input costs in foreign currencies incurred for our UK
business in financial year 2015/16 remained largely unaffected by the
weakness of sterling. Although the Brexit vote has caused growing
uncertainty about the future performance of the UK economy there is
no apparent decline in bookings in our UK business to date.

In financial year 2015/16, the average exchange rate of the US dollar
against the euro rose by around 3.5% from 1.15 $/€ to 1.11 $/€. The
average exchange rate of sterling against the euro fell by around
16.2% from 0.74 £/€ to 0.86 £/€ in the period under review. Sterling
significantly depreciated against the euro, especially after the UK’s Brexit
decision.

Changes in commodity prices affect TUI Group, in particular when pro-
curing fuels such as aircraft fuel and bunker oil. Following relatively
moderate fluctuations, the price of Brent oil stood at $49.06 per barrel
as at 30 September 2016, which all in all reflects the low level recorded
at the beginning of the financial year.

In Tourism, most risks relating to changes in exchange rates and price
risks from fuel sourcing are hedged by derivatives. Information on hedging
strategies and risk management as well as financial transactions and the
scope of such transactions at the balance sheet date is provided in the
sections Financial Position and Risk Report in the Management Report
and the section Financial Instruments in the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

@ Financial Position see page 87, Risk Report see page 56, Notes see page 170

Since the merger between TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC in December 2014,
TUI Group has been the world’s number one leisure tourism business.
The development of the international leisure tourism market impacts all
businesses of TUI Group.

Business Review __

TOURISM CONTINUES GLOBAL GROWTH

According to the United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO),
tourism comprises the activities of persons travelling to and staying in
places outside their usual environment for not more than one consecutive
year for leisure, business and other purposes. The key tourism indicators
to measure market size are the number of international tourist arrivals,
and international tourism receipts. With international tourism receipts
amounting to $1,260bn and international arrivals amounting to 1.2 m in
2015, the tourism industry is one of the most important sectors in the
world economy. International tourist arrivals worldwide are expected
to increase by around 3% a year between 2010 and 2030, reaching
1.8bn per annum by 2030 (UNWTO Tourism Highlights 2016).

CHANGE OF INTERNATIONAL TOURIST ARRIVALS VS. PRIOR YEAR

Var. % 2016" 2015

I 4
World +4.0 +4.6
Europe +2.6 +4.7
Asia and the Pacific +8.8 +5.6
Americas +4.2 +5.9
Africa +5.4 -3.1
Middle East -8.6 +1.7

Source: UNWTO World Tourism Barometer, September 2016
*Period January till June

In calendar year 2015, international tourist arrivals grew by 4.6 % world-
wide to 1.19bn. This trend continued in the first half of calendar year
2016 at a growth rate of 4.0 %. Travel for leisure, recreation and holidays
accounted for 53 %, i.e. just over half of all international tourist arrivals
(UNWTO, Tourism Highlights, 2016 Edition).

At minus 0.7 %, TUI Group customer numbers did not match this growth
trend in financial year 2015/16; strong growth in customer numbers in
the UK and the Netherlands was offset by the impact of lower demand
for Turkey and as a result of other geopolitical events.

@ Business performance in the source markets see page 79

Europe remained the largest and most mature tourism market in the
world, accounting for 51 % of international tourist arrivals and 36 % of
receipts in 2015. Five European countries (France, Spain, Italy, Germany
and the United Kingdom) figured in the top ten international tourism
destinations in 2015. Our three main source markets UK, Germany and
France were in the top five of all source markets worldwide measured
by international tourism expenditure.
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INTERNATIONAL TOURIST ARRIVALS AND RECEIPTS BY SOURCE

Europe

Americas

World

Asia and
the Pacific

Middle East

®

Africa

@ international tourism receipts (in bn$) international tourist arrivals (in million)

®

Source: UNWTO, Tourism Highlights, 2016 Edition

Germany continues to be the third largest source market in the world
with international tourism expenditure of approximately $77.5bn in
2015, after China (approximately $292.2 bn) and the US (approximately
$112.9bn). In terms of expenditure per capita, Germany ranks second
globally, with approximately $ 946 spent by the average German tourist
in 2015 (Source: UNWTO, Tourism Highlights, 2016 Edition). Key opera-
tors in the German tourism market are TUI Deutschland, Thomas Cook,
DER Touristik, FTI and Alltours (FVW, Dossier, Deutsche Veranstalter,
December 2015).

The United Kingdom is the fourth largest source market in the world,
with approximately $63.3 bn spent on tourism activities in 2015 and on
average $972 spent per capita over the same period (source: UNWTO,
Tourism Highlights, 2016 Edition), the highest amount worldwide. The
British tourism market is characterised by a high degree of concentration
around two key operators TUI Group and Thomas Cook (Euromonitor,
Intermediaries in the United Kingdom, August 2016).

France was the fifth largest source market in 2015, with international
tourism expenditure of approximately $38.4bn (source: UNWTO, Tourism
Highlights, 2015 Edition). With its main tour operator brands Nouvelles
Frontiéres and Marmara, TUI has a strong position in the French tourism
market, which has been highly fragmented in the past but has under-
gone consolidation in recent months. TUI France will continue to expand
its market position with the purchase of the French tour operator in the
tourism group Transat completed in October 2016. The merger is to
enable TUI France to achieve robust profitability. In 2015, France was
the largest destination market in the world with 84.5 million arrivals.

HOTEL MARKET

The total worldwide hotel market for business and leisure travel was worth
€440bn in 2015. By 2020, average annual growth (CAGR) is expected to
amount to 3.1 % (Euromonitor; September 2016). The hotel market is
divided between business and leisure travel. A number of characteristics
differentiate leisure travel hotels from business hotels, including longer
average lengths of stay for guests in leisure hotels. Locations, amenities



and service requirements also differ. From a demand perspective, the
leisure hotel market in Europe is divided into several smaller submarkets
which cater to the individual needs and demands of tourists. These sub-
markets include premium, comfort, budget, family/apartment, and club-
or resort-style hotels. Hotel companies may offer a variety of hotels for
different submarkets, often defined by price range, star ratings, exclu-
sivity, or available facilities.

Consumers in our three main source markets prefer the following des-
tinations: the most popular leisure hotel destinations for consumers in
source market Germany are Spain, Italy, Turkey, Austria, France, Croatia,
Greece and the Netherlands. The most popular leisure hotel destinations
for consumers in source market United Kingdom are Spain, France, Italy,
the United States, Portugal, Greece and Turkey. The most popular leisure
hotel destinations for consumers in source market France are Spain,
Italy, the United Kingdom, Belgium and Luxembourg (Mintel, European
Leisure Travel Industry, September 2015).

Hotel operations can generally be divided into the following models: asset
owners whose primary business is to own real estate assets; brand
owners and operators who typically manage hotel assets themselves or
enter into franchising arrangements with independent operators who,
in turn, manage the hotel property assets; and independent operators
combining the roles of asset owners, brand owners and operators by
managing diverse assets under different brands, often through franchise
agreements.

The upper end of the leisure hotel market is characterised by a high
degree of sophistication and specialisation, with the assets managed by
large international companies and investors. There are also many small,
often family-run businesses, particularly in Europe, not quite so upscale
and with fewer financial resources. Most family-owned and -operated
businesses are not branded and customers cannot typically access
these hotels through global distribution systems. Given the variety of
models for owning and operating leisure hotels and the fragmented
competitive landscape which, at least in Europe, is not dominated by
large hotel chains, conditions differ greatly between locations.

CRUISE MARKET

The global cruise industry estimates that it generated approximately
$39.6bn of revenue in 2015 (Cruise Market Watch website, www.cruise-
marketwatch.com/market-share, September 2016). The North American
market is by far the largest and most mature cruise market in the world,
with approximately 12.1 million guests in 2015 and a strong penetration
rate of 3.8 % of the total population taking a cruise in 2015. By contrast,
the European cruise markets recorded approximately 6.6 million European
passengers, with penetration rates varying significantly from country to
country, but considerably lower overall (Mintel, Cruises - International,
June 2016; CLIA Statistics & Markets, March 2016). In 2015, the global
cruise market grew by around 2.4 %.

Business Review __

WORLDWIDE CRUISES PASSENGERS BY SOURCE REGION

Latin America Australasia

and others

UK and Ireland

m212.1

North America

Asia (including
Japan)

Continental
Europe

Note: All total except North America (which included a share of river cruises now account-
ing for about 4 % of passengers) are for ocean-cruises passengers only
Source: Mintel, Cruises - International, June 2016

Germany, the United Kingdom & Ireland and France are among the five
largest cruise markets in Europe (CLIA Statistics & Markets, March 2016).
Germany is Europe’s largest cruise market, with 1.8 million passengers
in 2015. Germany has thus witnessed average passenger growth of
8.3 % over the past five years. At 2.2 %, its penetration rate was lower
than in the United Kingdom & Ireland in 2015.

The United Kingdom & Ireland is the second largest cruise market in
Europe, with approximately 1.8 million cruise passengers in 2015. The
market has thus grown by 2.1 % on average over the past five years. It
shows the strongest penetration rate in Europe: in 2015, 2.7% of the
total British population took a cruise. (Mintel, Cruises — International,
June 2016).

The European cruise market is divided into submarkets that cater to a
variety of customers: budget, discovery/expedition, premium and luxury.
Cruise operators utilise different cruise formats to target these sub-
markets and the specific demands of their customers. In addition to
traditional formats, operators offer club ship cruises and also more
contemporary-style cruises in the premium submarket. As a cruise ship
is often perceived as a destination in itself, cruise companies, especially in
the luxury and premium cruise submarkets, compete with other destina-
tions such as leading hotels and resorts.
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STRONG MASTER BRAND TUI

Our brand with the “smile” — the smiling logo formed by the three letters
of our brand name TUI — stands for a consistent customer experience,
digital presence and competitive strength. In 2016, TUI (or the local
power brand) was one of the best-known travel brands in core European
countries with a brand awareness rate of almost 90 %. The red “TUl smile”
is a clear recognition feature and plays in the “Champions League” of
international brands in almost all markets.

We are aiming to create one global branding and a consistent brand
experience in order to further leverage the appeal and strength of our
core brands and tap the associated growth potential. To achieve that
goal, our core brand TUI will be rolled out in our European source markets
to replace the big local tour operator brands. At the beginning of financial
year 2015/16, the TUI brand was introduced in the Netherlands, where

Group earnings

Financial year 2015/16 brought a markedly positive development in the
TUI Group's earnings position. The operating result (underlying EBITA)
of TUI Group's continuing operations improved by 5.0% to €1,000.5m

it has successfully replaced the previous world of Arke brands for tour
operator, distribution and flight activities. TUI has rapidly become one
of the strongest travel markets in the Netherlands in terms of brand
awareness and preference. In October 2016 , our rebranding campaign
was launched in Belgium, with the Nordics to follow in Winter 2016/17.
Brand migration in the UK will follow at the end of 2017.

In Germany, travel products have been offered under the TUI brand for
more than 45 years. In a survey carried out in 2016, TUl was again rated
as Germany's most trusted travel brand (Source: Reader’s Digest Trusted
Brands 2016).

In financial year 2015/ 16, there were no changes in the legal framework
with material impacts on TUI Group's business performance.

in the period under review, or by 14.5% year-on-year on a constant
currency basis. This growth was driven in particular by the continued
good performance of Northern Region and in the segments Hotels &
Resorts and Cruises.

INCOME STATEMENT OF THE TUI GROUP FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 OCT 2015 TO 30 SEP 2016

2015/16 2014/15 Var. %

€ million restated
|

Turnover 17,184.6 17,515.5 -1.9
Cost of sales 15,2781 15,549.5 -1.7
Gross profit 1,906.5 1,966.0 -3.0
Administrative expenses 1.216.9 1,352.6 -10.0
Other income 363 429 -15.4
Other expenses 7.4 5.7 +29.8
Financial income 58.5 35.8 +63.4
Financial expenses 345.9 364.5 -5.1
Share of result of joint ventures and associates 187.2 143.9 +30.1
Earnings before income taxes 618.3 465.8 +32.7
Income taxes 153.4 58.2 +163.6
Result from continuing operations 464.9 407.6 +14.1
Result from discontinued operations 687.3 -280 n.a.
Group profit for the year 1,152.2 379.6 +203.5
Group profit for the year attributable to shareholders of TUI AG 1.037.4 3404 +204.8
Group profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interest 114.8 39.2 +192.9
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TURNOVER
2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
€ million restated
|
Northern Region 7,001.5 73484 -4.7
Central Region 5,566.6 5,600.9 -0.6
Western Region 2,869.9 2,847.0 +0.8
Hotels & Resorts 618.6 574.8 +7.6
Cruises 296.7 2733 +8.6
Other Tourism 665.5 704.8 -56
Tourism 17,018.8 17,349.2 -1.9
All other segments 165.8 166.3 -03
TUI Group 17,184.6 17,515.5 -1.9
Discontinued operations 2,321.6 2,565.8 -9.5
Total 19,506.2 20,081.3 -29

In financial year 2015/16, turnover by TUI Group declined by 1.9 % to
€17.2 bn due to foreign exchange effects. On a constant currency basis,
turnover grew by 1.4% despite the year-on-year decline in customer
numbers of 0.7 %. Turnover is presented alongside the cost of sales,
which was down 1.7 % in the period under review.

GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit, i.e. the difference between turnover and the cost of sales,
decreased by €59.5m to around €1.9bn in financial year 2015/16.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses declined by € 135.7 m year-on-year to €1,216.9 m.
The decrease was driven by the synergies delivered in the period under
review and higher one-off expenses incurred in the previous year.

OTHER INCOME/OTHER EXPENSES

In financial year 2015/16, other income of €36.3 m comprised gains from
the sale of a Riu Group hotel, a joint venture, a cruise ship, commercial real
estate and vehicles of incoming agencies. Other expenses in 2015/16
totalled €7.4m, primarily for the disposal of aircraft spare parts.

FINANCIAL RESULT

The financial result improved by €41.3m to €-287.4m. The increase
was essentially due to the year-on-year decline in expenses resulting
from the measurement of the stake in Hapag-Lloyd AG.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
The result from joint ventures and associates comprises the propor-
tionate net profit for the year of these companies measured at equity
and where appropriate impairments of goodwill for these companies. In
the period under review, the at equity result totalled €187.2m. The
significant increase of €43.3 m partly resulted from the improvement in
the operating performance of Riu hotels and a higher profit contribution
by TUI Cruises.

INCOME TAXES

The year-on-year increase in income taxes in financial year 2015/16 is
mainly attributable to the one-off effect recognised in the previous year
of the revaluation of deferred tax assets for loss carryforwards following
the merger between TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC.

RESULT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The result from discontinued operation shows the after-tax result of
Specialist Group, classified as a discontinued operation, as well as
LateRooms Group and Hotelbeds Group until these operations were
sold.

GROUP PROFIT
Group profit increased by €772.6 m year-on-year to €1,152.2m in finan-
cial year 2015/16.

SHARE IN GROUP PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO TUI AG
SHAREHOLDERS

The share in Group profit attributable to the TUI AG shareholders im-
proved from €340.4m in the prior year to €1,037.4m in financial year
2015/16. Apart from the sound operating performance of the Group,
the increase is attributable to the gain on disposal from the sale of
Hotelbeds Group.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interests in Group profit for the year totalled €114.8 m.
They related to companies in Hotels & Resorts and, in the prior year,
the external shareholders of TUI Travel PLC until the completion of
the merger with TUI AG. The share in Group results attributable to
non-controlling interests in Hotels & Resorts mainly derives from the
RIUSA Il Group.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The interest in Group profit for the year attributable to TUI AG share-
holders after deduction of non-controlling interests totalled €1,037.4m
(previous year €340.4m) in 2015/16. Basic earnings per share therefore
amounted to €1.78 (previous year €0.64) in financial year 2015/16.

Key indicators used to manage the TUI Group are EBITA and underlying
EBITA. We consider EBITA to be the most suitable performance indicator
for explaining the development of the TUI Group's operating performance.
EBITA comprises earnings before interest, taxes and goodwill impair-
ments; it does not include the results from container shipping operations
nor the results from the measurement of interest hedging instruments.

RECONCILIATION TO UNDERLYING EARNINGS

2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
€ million restated
|
Earnings before income taxes 618.3 465.8 +32.7
less: Profit on Container Shipping measured at equity - -09 n.a.
plus: Loss on measurement of financial investment in Container Shipping 100.3 1471 -31.8
plus: Net Interest expense and expense from the measurement of interest hedges 179.5 182.6 -1.7
EBITA 898.1 794.6 +13.0
Adjustments:
plus: Loss on disposals/less: Gain on disposals 0.8 -33 n.a.
plus: Restructuring expense 12.0 59.4 -79.8
plus: Expense from purchase price allocation 4.9 421 -05
plus: Expense from other one-off items 47.7 60.5 -21.2
Underlying EBITA 1,000.5 953.3 +5.0
Reported earnings (EBITA) of TUI Group rose by €103.5m to €898.1m
due to the very good operating performance in financial year 2015/16.
EBITA
€ million 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|
Northern Region 440.4 513.4 -14.2
Central Region 67.3 72.9 -7.7
Western Region 721 57.7 +25.0
Hotels & Resorts 285.1 195.7 +45.7
Cruises 129.6 80.5 +61.0
Other Tourism -6.2 -41 -51.2
Tourism 988.3 916.1 +7.9
All other segments -90.2 -1215 +25.8
TUI Group 898.1 794.6 +13.0
Discontinued operations 14.7 2.6 +465.4
Total 912.8 797.2 +14.5

In order to explain and evaluate the operating performance of the
segments, earnings adjusted for special one-off effects (underlying
EBITA) are presented below. Underlying EBITA has been adjusted for
gains on disposal of financial investments, restructuring expenses

according to IAS 37, all effects from purchase price allocations, ancillary
acquisition costs and conditional purchase price payments and other
expenses for and income from one-off items.



One-off items carried here include adjustments for income and expense
items that reflect amounts and frequencies of occurrence rendering an
evaluation of the operating profitability of the segments and the Group
more difficult or causing distortions. These items include in particular
major restructuring and integration expenses not meeting the criteria
of IAS 37, material expenses for litigation, gains and losses from the
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sale of aircraft and other material business transactions with a one-off
character.

TUI Group's underlying EBITA rose by €47.2 m to €1,000.5 m in financial
year 2015/16.

UNDERLYING EBITA

€ million 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|
Northern Region 460.9 538.4 -14.4
Central Region 88.5 103.5 -14.5
Western Region 86.1 68.7 +25.3
Hotels & Resorts 287.3 234.6 +225
Cruises 129.6 80.5 +61.0
Other Tourism 4.6 8.4 —452
Tourism 1,057.0 1,034.1 +2.2
All other segments -56.5 -80.9 +30.2
TUI Group 1,000.5 953.3 +5.0
Discontinued operations 929 107.3 -13.4
Total 1,093.4 1,060.5 +3.41

In financial year 2015/16, adjustments worth €3.2m were carried for
income, compared with adjustments on underlying expenses amounting to
€63.8m, without taking account of the expenses for purchase price alloca-
tions. Overall, net one-off expenses worth €11.1 m were incurred in con-
nection with the merger between TUI AG and the former TUI Travel PLC.
They included an amount of €4.2m for restructuring the corporate
centre and €6.9 m for integrating the incoming agencies into Tourism.

The adjustments primarily related to the following facts and circum-
stances:

GAINS ON DISPOSAL
In financial year 2015/16, gains on disposal worth €0.8m had to be ad-
justed for. They related in particular to capital reductions in subsidiaries.

RESTRUCTURING COSTS

In financial year 2015/16 ,restructuring costs of €12.0m had to be ad-
justed for. They related to smaller reorganisations in Northern, Central
and Western Regions and the restructuring of the corporate centre as well
as the transfer of incoming agencies to the source market organisations.

EXPENSES FOR PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATIONS

In financial year 2015/ 16, expenses for purchase price allocations worth
€419 m were adjusted for; they related in particular to scheduled amor-
tisation of intangible assets from acquisitions made in previous years.

ONE-OFF ITEMS

Net expenses for one-off items of €47.7m included in particular an
amount of €17.9 m relating to reorganisation in Central and Western
Regions and at Corsair, an amount of €5.7m for consultancy costs for
planned corporate transactions, and €4.7 m for the restructuring of the
corporate centre and the transfer of incoming agencies to the source
market organisations.

PRO FORMA UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE

In order to provide a comparable basis for TUl Group's underlying earnings
per share going forward, a pro forma calculation is included below. The
calculation is based on the issued share capital at the balance sheet date
and therefore adjusts for the impact of bond conversions in 2014/15.
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PRO FORMA UNDERLYING EARNINGS PER SHARE TUI GROUP

2015/16 2014/15

€ million restated
|

EBITA (underlying) 1,000.5 953.3
less: Net interest expense -179.5 -182.6
plus: Interest expense on convertible bonds - 19.0
Underlying profit before tax 821.1 789.7
Income taxes (underlying) 205.3 197.4
Underlying Group profit 615.8 592.3
Minority interest 115 90.0
Hybrid interest expense - 11.0
Underlying Group profit attributable to TUI shareholders of TUI AG 504.3 491.3
Number of shares (pro forma) No. million 587.0 587.0
Pro forma underlying earnings per share 0.86 0.84

Segmental performance

In Tourism, travel products are booked on a seasonal basis with different
lead times. The release of bookings for individual seasons takes place at
different points in time, depending on the design of the booking and
reservation systems in each source market. Moreover, load factor man-

agement ensures that the tour operator capacity available for bookings

is seasonally adjusted to actual and expected demand.

At the end of financial year 2015/16, current trading by source market
for Winter 2016/17 compared as follows with the previous year:

CURRENT TRADING®

Winter season 2016/17

Average
Var. % selling price? Total sales?  Total customers?
Northern Region +3 +14 +11
UK +6 +26 +18
Nordics -3 -6 -3
Central Region +7 +4 -3
Germany +7 +2 -5
Western Region +3 +7 +4
Benelux +3 +4 +1
Total source markets +5 +9 +4

1 As at 20 November 2016 (on a constant currency basis)
2 These statistics relate to all customers whether risk or non-risk.



For the 2017 Summer season, already available for bookings in the UK,
booked revenues were around 15 % ahead of the prior year in Novem-
ber 2016.

Trading by the Hotels & Resorts segment largely mirrors customer
volumes in the source markets, as a high proportion of the Group-
owned hotel beds are taken up by TUI tour operators. In the Cruises
segment, advance bookings were up year-on-year at the balance sheet
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date with sound demand levels, primarily due to continued fleet expansion
by TUI Cruises in the period under review.

Disclosures on current trading are regularly published on TUI's website
in the framework of TUI Group's quarterly reporting.

@ See www.tuigroup.com/en-en/investors

Our key operating indicators developed as follows in our source markets:

DIRECT DISTRIBUTION MIX' in % ONLINE MIX? in%

CUSTOMERS? in 000

(@)
(o
oA
M

2015/16 ~
&

Q (2014/15)

O 2015/16

(2014/15)

2015/16

(2014/15)

SOURCE MARKETS

72 0)

43 4 19,231 (19361)

NORTHERN REGION*#

92 o)

62 55 7,388 (7,240)

CENTRAL REGION

47 s

15 @s5) 6,828 (7.168)

WESTERN REGION

70 ©s)

52 us) 5,016 (4953

1 Share of sales via own channels (retail and online)
2 Share of online sales
3 Previous year's figures included Italy which has been transferred to All other Segments.

4 Customer numbers of Northern Region now include Crystal Ski and Thomson Lakes & Mountains (formerly Specialist Group)

Northern Region comprises TUI's tour operators and airlines and the
cruise business in the UK, Ireland and the Nordics. In the run-up to the
sale of large parts of Specialist Group, the skiing tour operators previous-

ly forming part of Specialist Group were allocated to source market UK.
The segment also comprises the strategic stake held in Sunwing in
Canada, and TUI Russia, which operates in the CIS countries.
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NORTHERN REGION - KEY FIGURES

CENTRAL REGION - KEY FIGURES

2015/16 2014/15 Var. % 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
€ million restated € million restated
| |
Turnover 7,001.5 7.348.4 -4.7 Turnover 5,566.6 5,600.9 -0.6
Underlying EBITA 460.9 538.4 -14.4 Underlying EBITA 88.5 103.5 -14.5
EBITA 440.4 513.4 -14.2 EBITA 673 72.9 =17

In financial year 2015/16, the Northern Region tour operators continued
their positive development. In particular due to the increase in TUI UK
customers, customer volumes rose by 2.0 % year-on-year in Northern
Region. Due to the year-on-year weakening of the exchange rate for ster-
ling during the key travel months, turnover by Northern Region declined
by 4.7% to €7,001.5 m. By contrast, turnover rose by 2.6 % on a constant
currency basis. Northern Region underlying EBITA declined by €77.5m
year-on-year to €460.9 m due to foreign exchange effects. By contrast,
earnings by Northern Region improved by 3.3 % year-on-year on a
constant currency basis.

In the UK, tour operators again delivered a sound business performance,
driven in particular by the strength of customer demand for TUI's
unique holidays with growth across short-, medium- and long-haul desti-
nations. The cruise business benefited from the launch of TUI Discovery
in June 2016. Customer volumes, adjusted for the skiing tour operator
customers during the reporting periods, rose by 4.0 % overall in 2015/16.
We continued to drive growth in online bookings, with that channel
accounting for 58 % of all holidays, up around 4 percentage points
year-on-year.

In the Nordics, our performance in the financial year was impacted by
growing price pressure in the lates market and lower demand for Turkey.
This impact was not fully mitigated by the increase in the proportion of
the programme remixed to alternative destinations and the inclusion of
Riu hotels in the long-haul segment. Upfront costs were also incurred for
the TUI brand migration in the Nordics. The online channel accounted
for around 75 % of all bookings, up by around three percentage points.

Sunwing recorded an increase in direct costs driven by the small decline
in the Canadian dollar against the US dollar. Despite a good Summer
season, it therefore posted an overall decline year-on-year. On the other
hand, there was a positive impact from the continued expansion of our
differentiated hotel portfolio in the Caribbean and Mexico.

Central Region comprises the TUI tour operators in Germany, Austria,
Switzerland and Poland and the TUI fly airline.

With customer volumes down by 4.7 % year-on-year, turnover by Central
Region was almost flat on the prior year on a slight decline of 0.6 % in
financial year 2015/16. Central Region underlying EBITA was also broadly
stable. In the period under review, a major adverse effect was caused by
the geopolitical events in Egypt and Turkey and the resulting subdued
demand for these important destinations and an intensification of price
competition for flights to Spain. In Germany, market conditions therefore
remained challenging in a highly competitive environment. The result
includes the impact of a court ruling in November regarding airport
services and marketing agreements with an Austrian airport, and the
partial impact on holidays commenced in September of unexpectedly high
levels of sickness among TUI fly flight crew. However, TUI Deutschland
continued to strengthen its core brand TUI through stronger marketing
measures and managed to further grow its market share.

Western Region combines TUI tour operators and Group-owned airlines
in Belgium and the Netherlands as well as tour operators in France.

WESTERN REGION - KEY FIGURES

2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
€ million restated
|
Turnover 2,869.9 2,847.0 +0.8
Underlying EBITA 86.1 68.7 +253
EBITA 721 57.7 +25.0

With customer volumes up by 1.3 % in Western Region, turnover grew
by 0.8 % in financial year 2015/16. Underlying EBITA grew by €17.4m to
€86.1m. The French tour operating business improved year-on-year due
to the expansion of its offering to EU destinations and positive effects
from restructuring measures. Business in the Netherlands benefited
from the TUI brand migration in Autumn 2015 and a 3.0 % increase in
customer volumes. These positive effects were partly offset by the
weaker performance of the Belgian market, which was adversely impacted
by the aftermath of the terrorist attacks in Brussels in March 2016.



The Hotels & Resorts segment comprises all TUl Group hotels and hotel
companies, including the hotel business of former TUI Travel. They include
subsidiaries, joint ventures with local partners, associates over which
significant influence is held, and hotels operated under management
contracts.

HOTELS & RESORTS - KEY FIGURES

€ million 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|

Total turnover 1,278.4 1,252.2 +2.1

Turnover 618.6 574.8 +7.6

Underlying EBITA 287.3 234.6 +22.5

EBITA 285.1 195.7 +45.7

HOTELS & RESORTS
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Total turnover by the Hotels & Resorts segment rose by 2.6 % to €1,278.4m
year-on-year in 2015/ 16. Capacity declined overall; the expanded offering
of our core brands Riu and Robinson was offset by cuts in hotel capacities
in North Africa and Turkey driven by geopolitical events. Occupancy of
TUI hotels was slightly down year-on-year, while average revenues per
bed grew considerably in the period under review. Turnover with third
parties grew to €618.6m in 2015/16, up by 7.6 % year-on-year. Under-
lying EBITA amounted to €287.3 m, up by €52.7 m on the prior year. This
significant increase was mainly driven by the sustained positive business
development of hotel brand Riu, which benefited in particular from its
strong market position in the western Mediterranean and in the long-
haul segment.

CAPACITY"' in 000

OCCUPANCY RATE2in%

AVERAGE REVENUE PER BED3 in€

2015/16 2

(2014/15)

2015/16

(2014/15)

2015/16

(2014/15)

HOTELS TOTAL*

35,031 @35.706)

77.5 gs7) 58.00 (s5.00)

RIU

17,396 (17.272)

89.6 (59 60.34 (57.13)

ROBINSON

3,081 (2.898)

67.1 726 90.10 (90.67)

1 Group owned or leased hotel beds multiplied by opening days per annum
2 QOccupied beds dividied by capacity

3 Arrangement revenue divided by occupied beds

4 Incl. former TUI Travel hotels

RIU

Riu, one of Spain's leading hotel chains, operated a total of 94 hotels
(prior year: 104) with 86,184 beds at the end of financial year 2015/16.
The year-on-year decline was driven by the termination of management
contracts in Tunisia following the terrorist attacks in Summer 2015.
Capacity increased slightly by 0.7 % year-on-year. Average occupancy of

Riu hotels rose slightly by 3.7 percentage points to 89.6 %. This increase
above all reflects strong demand for hotels in Spain and Portugal, and
for the Cape Verde Islands, Mauritius and St Martin in the long-haul
segment. Average revenues per bed rose by 5.6 %. The individual regions
developed as follows in the period under review:
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Riu hotels in the Canaries recorded strong demand and benefited from
the shift in demand driven by geopolitical events in the eastern Medi-
terranean. Occupancy of hotel beds rose by 4.7 percentage points to
97.2%. Moreover, average revenues per bed also increased by 9.3 %.

Riu hotels in the Balearics also recorded a very positive performance in
the period under review. At 84.7 %, occupancy was 2.1 percentage points
up year-on-year. Average revenues per bed rose by 8.3 % in the period
under review.

At 90.5 %, average occupancy of Riu hotels in mainland Spain was 5.0 per-
centage points up year-on-year, with average revenues per bed up by
7.8%.

Riu hotels in long-haul destinations reported average occupancy of
84.7 %. This was an increase of 2.3 percentage points on the prior year,
driven by higher occupancy in the hotels in St Martin, Mauritius and the
Cape Verde lIslands. Average revenues per bed posted for long-haul
destinations grew by 5.4 % year-on-year, driven partly by exchange rate
fluctuations.

ROBINSON

Robinson, market leader in the premium club holiday segment, operated
a total of 24 club facilities with 15,342 beds in twelve countries at the
end of the financial year under review, as in the prior year. Capacity rose
by 6.3 % year-on-year. This growth was mainly driven by the additional
club facility Kyllini Beach in Greece and the first-time full-year inclusion of
the club resort in Tunisia. Occupancy of Robinson Group was 5.5 percent-
age points down year-on-year in financial year 2015/16, with the club
resorts in Turkey, Morocco and Tunisia, in particular, falling short of the
prior year's levels. Average revenues per bed were slightly down at 0.6 %
under the prior year's level.

OTHER HOTELS

Other hotels mainly comprise the hotel brands TUI Blue, Grupotel,
Iberotel and Magic Life and the further hotel activities by former
TUI Travel. The indicators for Other hotels were also impacted by the
aftermath of the geopolitical situation.

The first two hotels to operate under our new hotel brand TUI Blue
opened in Turkey in May 2016. The portfolio has been further expanded
for the current financial year; a total of seven hotels are now available in
six countries (Germany, Austria, Italy, Spain, Croatia and Turkey). They
offer our customers a consistent TUI holiday experience with a premium
all-inclusive concept.

The Cruises segment comprises Hapag-Lloyd Cruises and the joint
venture TUI Cruises.

CRUISES - KEY FIGURES

€ million 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|

Turnover 296.7 2733 +8.6

Underlying EBITA 129.6 80.5 +61.0

EBITA 129.6 80.5 +61.0

At €296.7 m, turnover by Hapag-Lloyd Cruises was 8.6 % up on the prior
year in financial year 2015/16. No turnover is carried for TUI Cruises as
the joint venture is measured at equity in the consolidated financial
statements.

Cruises underlying EBITA increased to €129.6 m in 2015/16, up by €49.1m
year-on-year. On a persistently sound operating performance for the
two companies, this was also driven by the expansion of the TUI Cruises
fleet. With the successful market launch of Mein Schiff 4 in June 2015
and Mein Schiff 5 in July 2016, TUI Cruises continued to build on its
competitive position. In the period under review, Hapag-Lloyd Cruises
also benefited from lower financing costs due to the acquisition of
Europa 2 in the prior year.



CRUISES
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OCCUPANCY in %

PASSENGER DAYS in 000

AVERAGE DAILY RATES” in€

© 2015/16

(2014/15)

LL
LL
LL

2015/16

(2014/15)

2015/16

(2014/15)

HAPAG-LLOYD CRUISES

76.8 762)

355 @4 579 36

TUI CRUISES

102.6 (1027)

3,482 (2679 171 (169)

*Per day and passenger

HAPAG-LLOYD CRUISES

In financial year 2015/16, the sound operating performance of Hapag-
Lloyd Cruises benefited from the successful realignment of the brand,
which had resulted in a turnaround in the previous year. Occupancy of
its fleet was stable at 76.8 %, a slight increase of 0.6 percentage points
versus the prior year. The average daily rate grew substantially by 8.0 %
to €579. In the period under review, passenger days grew by 1.9 % year-
on-year to 354,611.

TUI CRUISES

In financial year 2015/16, occupancy of TUI Cruises’ ships was 102.6 %
(based on the double occupancy calculation conventionally used in the
sector), maintaining the very high level recorded in the prior year.
Due to the successful expansion of the TUI Cruises fleet to include
Mein Schiff 4 in June 2015 and Mein Schiff 5 in July 2016, capacity grew
to 3.5 m passenger days in financial year 2015/ 16, considerably up year-
on-year. The average daily rate rose by 1.2% to €171 year-on-year. In
November 2015, cruises in South East Asian lanes were newly included
in the programme served by TUI Cruises’ fleet.

At the end of financial year 2015/16, the fleet consisted of five ships.
The maiden voyage of Mein Schiff 6 is expected for Summer 2017. In
2018 and 2019, two further newbuilds will be launched. They will then
replace Mein Schiff 1 and Mein Schiff 2, currently still in service, as part
of the fleet modernisation programme.

The category "All other segments” refers, in particular, to the corporate
centre functions of TUI AG and the intermediate holdings as well as the
Group's real estate companies.

ALL OTHER SEGMENTS - KEY FIGURES

2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
€ million restated
|
Turnover 165.8 166.3 -03
Underlying EBITA -56.5 -80.9 +30.2
EBITA -90.2 -121.5 +25.8

All other segments underlying EBITA cost declined by 30.1 % year-on-year
to €56.5m in the period under review. The improvement was driven by
the delivery of corporate streamlining synergies worth €30m, higher
proceeds from sales of land, and positive impacts of foreign exchange
translation.
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Net assets

DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP'S ASSET STRUCTURE

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|
Fixed assets 8,345.0 8,902.7 -63
Non-current receivables 786.8 7113 +10.6
Non-current assets 9,131.8 9,614.0 -5.0
Inventories 105.2 1345 -21.8
Current receivables 2,218.2 2,623.1 -15.4
Cash and cash equivalents 2,072.9 1,672.7 +239
Assets held for sale 929.8 422 n.a.
Current assets 5,326.1 4,472.5 +19.1
Assets 14,4579 14,086.5 +2.6
Equity 3,248.2 2,417.3 +34.4
Liabilities 11,209.7 11,669.2 -39
Equity and liabilities 14,4579 14,086.5 +2.6

The Group's balance sheet total increased by 2.6 % as against 30 Sep-
tember 2015 to €14.5bn.

Non-current assets accounted for 63.2 % of total assets, compared with
68.2 % in the previous year. The capitalisation ratio (ratio of fixed assets
to total assets) decreased from 63.2 % to 57.5 %.

Current assets accounted for 36.8% of total assets, compared with
31.8% in the previous year. The Group's cash and cash equivalents

increased by €400.2 m year-on-year to €2,072.9. They thus accounted
for 14.3 % of total assets, as against 11.9 % in the previous year.

At the balance sheet date, the ratio of equity to non-current assets was
35.6%, as against 25.1% in the previous year. The ratio of equity to
fixed assets was 38.9 % (previous year 27.2 %). The ratio of equity plus
non-current financial liabilities to fixed assets was 56.9 %, compared
with 48.3 % in the previous year.

STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP'S NON-CURRENT ASSETS

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|
Goodwill 2,853.5 3,220.4 -11.4
Other intangible assets 545.8 911.5 —40.1
Investment property - 72 n.a.
Property, plant and equipment 3,714.5 3,636.8 +2.1
Companies measured at equity 1,180.8 1,077.8 +9.6
Financial assets available for sale 50.4 56.2 -103
Fixed assets 8,345.0 8,902.7 -6.3
Receivables and assets 4421 380.6 +16.2
Deferred tax claims 344.7 330.7 +4.2
Non-current receivables 786.8 711.3 +10.6
Non-current assets 9,131.8 9,614.0 -5.0




GOODWILL

Goodwill declined by €366.9m to €2,853.5. The decrease in the carrying
amount is essentially due to the translation of goodwill not managed in
the TUI Group's functional currency into euros. It was also driven by the
disposal of Hotelbeds Group and recognition of Specialist Group as a
discontinued operation. In the period under review, no adjustments
were required as a result of impairment tests.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment increased to €3,714.5m in the period
under review, primarily driven by the acquisition of a cruise ship in
Northern Region and the capitalisation of one aircraft as well as down
payments on aircraft orders, partly offset by the reclassification of
the segments Hotelbeds Group and Specialist Group to assets held
for sale. Property, plant and equipment also comprised leased assets
in which Group companies held economic ownership. At the balance
sheet date, these finance leases had a carrying amount of €1,230.0m,
up 21.8 % year-on-year.

DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|

Real estate with hotels 978.9 971.2 +0.8

Other land 155.4 170.2 -87

Aircraft 1,202.0 1,166.0 +3.1

Ships 6743 706.7 -4.6

Machinery and fixtures 3355 3919 -14.4

Assets under construction, payments on accounts 368.4 230.8 +59.6

Total 3,714.5 3,636.8 +2.1

COMPANIES MEASURED AT EQUITY

Thirteen associated companies and 27 joint ventures were measured at

equity. At €1,180.8 m, their value increased by 9.6 % year-on-year as at

the balance sheet date.

STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP'S CURRENT ASSETS

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|

Inventories 105.2 134.5 -21.8

Financial assets available for sale 265.8 3349 -20.6

Trade accounts receivable and other assets” 1,864.7 2,229.7 -16.4

Current tax assets 87.7 58.5 +49.9

Current receivables 2,218.2 2,623.1 -15.4

Cash and cash equivalents 2,072.9 1,672.7 +23.9

Assets held for sale 929.8 42.2 n.a.

Current assets 5,326.1 4,472.5 +19.1

*incl. receivables from derivative financial instruments

FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE
Financial assets available for sale comprised the remaining interests in
Hapag-Lloyd AG as at 30 September 2016.

CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Current receivables comprise trade accounts receivable and other re-
ceivables, current income tax assets and claims from derivative financial
instruments. At €2,218.2m, current receivables decreased by 15.4%
year-on-year.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
At €2,072.9m, cash and cash equivalents increased by 23.9 % year-
on-year.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets held for sale increased by €887.6 m to €929.8 m. The increase is
primarily attributable to the reclassification of Specialist Group to
assets held for sale.

UNRECOGNISED ASSETS

In the course of their business operations, Group companies used
assets of which they were not the economic owner according to the
IASB rules. Most of these assets were aircraft, hotel complexes or ships
for which operating leases, i.e. rental, lease or charter agreements, were
concluded under the terms and conditions customary in the sector.

OPERATING RENTAL, LEASE AND CHARTER CONTRACTS

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|
Aircraft 1,886.3 2,144.7 -12.0
Hotel complexes 7319 793.6 -7.8
Travel agencies 22941 263.7 -13.1
Administrative buildings 271.2 327.5 -17.2
Ships, Yachts and motor boats 204.6 195.0 +49
Other 1143 118.8 -38
Total 3,437.4 3,843.3 -10.6
Fair value 3,319.6 3,540.6 -6.2

The fair value of financial liabilities from operating rental, lease and
charter agreements declined by €221.0m to €3,319.6 m. At 54.9 %,
aircraft accounted for the largest portion, with hotel complexes ac-
counting for 21.3 %.

Further explanations as well as the structure of the remaining terms of
the financial liabilities from operating rental, lease and charter agree-
ments are provided in the section Other financial liabilities in the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial position of the Group

PRINCIPLES

TUI Group's financial management is centrally operated by TUI AG,
which acts as the Group's internal bank. Financial management covers
all Group companies in which TUI AG directly or indirectly holds an in-
terest of more than 50 %. It is based on policies covering all cash flow-
oriented aspects of the Group's business activities. In the framework of
a cross-national division of tasks within the organisation, TUI AG has
outsourced some of the operating finance operations to First Choice
Holidays Finance Ltd, TUI Travel's former financing company. However,
the operating finance operations are carried out on a coordinated and
centralised basis.

Information on other intangible, non-recognised assets in terms of
brands, customer and supplier relationships and organisational and
process benefits is provided in the section on TUI Group fundamentals;
relationships with investors and capital markets are outlined in the
section on TUI share performance.

C—)) TUI Group fundamentals see from page 28; TUI share performance from
page 106

GOALS

TUI's financial management goals include ensuring sufficient liquidity for
TUI AG and its subsidiaries and limiting financial risks from fluctuations
in currencies, commodity prices and interest rates.

LIQUIDITY SAFEGUARDS
The Group's liquidity safeguards consist of two components:

In the course of the annual Group planning process, TUIl draws up a
multi-annual finance budget, which forms the basis to determine the
long-term financing and refinancing requirements. Using this informa-
tion and observing the financial markets in order to identify refinancing
opportunities create a basis for decision-making to enable appropriate
financing instruments for the long-term funding of the Company to
be adopted early on.



TUI uses syndicated credit facilities and bilateral bank loans as well as
its liquid funds to secure sufficient short-term cash reserves. Through
intra-Group cash pooling, the cash surpluses of individual Group
companies are used to finance the cash requirements of other Group
companies. Planning of bank transactions is based on a monthly rolling
liquidity planning system.

LIMITING FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group companies operate on a worldwide scale. This gives rise to
financial risks for the TUI Group, mainly from changes in exchange rates,
commodity prices and interest rates.

The key operating financial transaction risks relate to the euro, US dollar
and pound sterling and changing fuel prices. They mainly result from
cost items in foreign currencies held by individual Group companies, e.g.
hotel sourcing, aircraft fuel and bunker oil invoices or ship handling costs.

The Group has entered into derivative hedges in various foreign cur-
rencies in order to limit its exposure to risks from changes in exchange
rates for the hedged items. Changes in commodity prices affect the
TUI Group, in particular in procuring fuels such as aircraft fuel and bunker

Business Review __

oil. These price risks related to fuel procurement are largely hedged
with the aid of derivative instruments. Where price increases can be
passed on to customers due to contractual agreements, this is also
reflected in our hedging behaviour. In order to control risks related to
changes in interest rates arising on liquidity procurement in the inter-
national money and capital markets and investments of liquid funds,
the Group uses derivative interest hedges on a case-by-case basis as
part of its interest management system.

The use of derivative hedges is based on underlying transactions; the
derivatives are not used for speculation purposes.

@ Risk report see from page 49
Financial instruments see from page 233

More detailed information on hedging strategies and risk management as
well as financial transactions and the scope of such transactions at the
balance sheet date is provided in the Risk Report within the Management
Report and the section Financial instruments in the Notes to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|
Non-current assets 9,131.8 9,614.0 -5.0
Current assets 5,326.1 4,472.5 +19.1
Assets 14,4579 14,086.5 +2.6
Subscribed capital 1,500.7 1,499.6 +0.1
Reserves including net profit available for distribution 1.174.4 413.8 +183.8
Non-controlling interest 5731 503.9 +13.7
Equity 3,248.2 2,417.3 +34.4
Non-current financial liabilities 22133 1,860.8 +18.9
Current provisions 415.4 495.8 -16.2
Provisions 2,628.7 2,356.6 +11.5
Non-current liabilities 1,503.4 1,6533 -91
Current financial liabilities 537.7 2331 +130.7
Financial liabilities 2,041.1 1,886.4 +8.2
Other non-current financial liabilities 272.7 4561 —40.2
Other current financial liabilities 5,794.9 6,938.6 -16.5
Other financial liabilities 6,067.6 7.394.7 -17.9
Debt related to assets held for sale 4723 315 n.a.
Liabilities 14,4579 14,086.5 +2.6
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CAPITAL RATIOS

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|
Non-current capital 7,237.6 6,387.5 +13.3
Non-current capital in relation to balance sheet total 50.1 453 +4.7"
Equity ratio 22.5 172 +53"
Equity and non-current financial liabilities 4,751.6 4,070.6 +16.7
Equity and non-current financial liabilities in relation to balance sheet total 329 289 +4.0"
Gearing 419 487 -68"

*percentage points

Overall, non-current capital increased by 13.3% to €7,237.6m. As a
proportion of the balance sheet total it amounted to 50.1 % (previous
year 45.3 %).

The equity ratio was 22.5% (previous year 17.2%). Equity and non-
current financial liabilities accounted for 32.9 % (previous year 28.9 %)

of the balance sheet total at the reporting date.

EQUITY

The gearing, i.e. the ratio of average net debt to average equity, moved
to 41.9 %, down from the previous year (48.7 %).

COMPOSITION OF EQUITY

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|

Subscribed capital 1,500.7 1,499.6 +0.1

Capital reserves 419222 4,187.7 +0.1

Revenue reserves -3,017.8 -3,773.9 +20.0

Non-controlling interest 573.1 503.9 +13.7

Equity 3,248.2 2,417.3 +34.4

Subscribed capital and the capital reserves rose slightly year-on-year.
The increase of 0.1 % each was driven by the issue of employee shares.
Revenue reserves rose by €756.1 m to €-3,017.8 m. Non-controlling in-
terests accounted for €573.1 m of equity.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PROVISIONS

Provisions mainly comprise provisions for pension obligations, current
and deferred tax provisions and provisions for typical operating risks
classified as current or non-current, depending on expected occur-
rence. At the balance sheet date, they accounted for a total of
€2,628.7m, up by €272.1 m or 11.5 % year-on-year.

COMPOSITION OF LIABILITIES

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|

Bonds 306.5 293.7 +4.4

Liabilities to banks 410.8 4941 -16.9

Liabilities from finance leases 1.231.7 982.0 +25.4

Other financial liabilities 92.1 116.6 -21.0

Financial liabilities 2,0411 1,886.4 +8.2




STRUCTURAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group's financial liabilities rose by a total of € 154.7m to €2,041.1 m,
in particular due to the increase in finance leases. The change was driv-
en in particular by the acquisition of a new Boeing B787-9 aircraft,
which was refinanced by means of a sale-and-lease-back arrangement
via finance leases as well as a cruise ship financed by a finance lease
arrangement. Apart from that, the structure of financial liabilities was
basically retained.

Business Review __

OVERVIEW OF TUI'S LISTED BONDS
The tables below list the maturities, nominal volumes and annual inter-
est coupon of listed bonds.

On 26 October 2016, TUI AG issued bonds with a nominal value of
€300.0 m with a 5-year team. On 18 November 2016, the proceeds from
this bond issuance were used to repay the five-year bonds issued in
September 2014 with a nominal value of €300.0 m.

LISTED BONDS

Nominal value Nominal value

initial outstanding Interest rate
Capital measures Issuance Maturity € million € million % p.a.
Senior Notes 20141 September 2014 October 2019 300.0 300.0 4.500
Senior Notes 20162 October 2016 October 2021 300.0 300.0 2125

1 Early termination and repayment on 18 November 2016
2 Not included in the consolidated financial statements

BANK LOANS AND OTHER LIABILITIES FROM FINANCE LEASES
Apart from the bonds worth €300.0 m, used for general corporate
financing, the Hotels & Resorts segment, in particular, incurred sepa-
rate bank loans, primarily in order to finance investments by these
companies. Most liabilities from finance lease contracts are attributable
to aircraft leases.

More detailed information, in particular on the remaining terms, is
provided under Financial liabilities in the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

@ See Notes page 244

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other liabilities totalled €6,067.6 m, down by €1,327.1 m or 17.9 % year-
on-year.

OPERATING LEASES
The development of operating rental, leasing and charter contracts is
presented in the section Net assets in the Management Report.

@ See page 86

More detailed explanations and information on the structure of the
remaining terms of the associated financial liabilities are provided in
the section Other financial liabilities in the Notes to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no contingent liabilities related to
special-purpose vehicles.

SYNDICATED CREDIT FACILITIES OF TUIl AG

TUI AG signed a syndicated credit facility worth €1.75bn in Septem-
ber 2014. This syndicated credit facility is available for general corpo-
rate financing purposes (in particular in the winter months). It carries a
floating interest rate which depends on the short-term interest rate
level (EURIBOR or LIBOR) and TUI's credit rating plus a margin. This
syndicated credit facility was originally to mature in June 2018, but in
the financial year under review, its maturity was extended ahead of the
due date to December 2020. At the balance sheet date, an amount of
€120.5m from this credit facility had been utilised in the form of bank
guarantees.

BILATERAL GUARANTEE FACILITIES OF TUI AG WITH
INSURANCE COMPANIES

In September 2015 and in the completed financial year, TUI AG concluded
several bilateral guarantee facilities with various insurance companies
with a total volume of £98.5m and €100.0 m. These guarantee facilities
are required in the framework of the delivery of tourism services in order
to ensure that Group companies are able to meet, in particular, the
requirements of European oversight and regulatory authorities on the
provision of guarantees and warranties. The guarantees granted usually
have a term of 12 to 18 months. The guarantees granted give rise to a
commission in the form of a fixed percentage of the maximum guarantee
amount. At the balance sheet date, an amount of £48.6m and €43.0m
from these guarantee facilities had been utilised.

The €300.0m bond from October 2016 (and the bond worth €300.0m
from September 2014, repaid in November 2016) and the credit and
guarantee facilities of TUI AG contain a number of obligations.
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TUI AG has a duty to comply with certain financial covenants (as defined
in the respective contracts) from its syndicated credit facility worth
€1.75bn and a number of bilateral guarantee lines. These require (a)
compliance with an EBITDAR-to-net interest expense ratio measuring
TUI Group's relative charge from the interest result and the lease and
rental expenses; and (b) compliance with a net debt-to-EBITDA ratio,
calculating TUI Group's relative charge from financial liabilities. The
EBITDAR-to-net interest expense ratio must have a coverage multiple
of at least 1.5; net debt must not exceed 3.0 times EBITDA. The financial
covenants are determined every six months. They restrict, inter alia,

TUI's scope for encumbering or selling assets, acquiring other compa-
nies or shareholdings and effecting mergers.

The bond worth €300.0m from October 2016 (and the bond worth
€300.0m from September 2014, repaid in November 2016) and the credit
and guarantee facilities of TUl AG also contain additional contractual
clauses typical of financing instruments of this type. Non-compliance
with these obligations awards the lenders the right to call in the facili-
ties or terminate the financing schemes for immediate repayment.

TUI AG RATINGS

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 Outlook

|
Standard & Poor's B- B B+ BB - BB - positive
Moody’s B3 B3 B2 Ba3 Ba2 stable

Due to the level of certain metrics relevant for the credit rating in finan-
cial year 2014/15 and the Company’s goal to further improve these
metrics, Standard & Poor's assigned a “positive” outlook to the corpor-
ate rating ("BB-") in February 2016. In the light of improved metrics
and the resilience shown in facing negative geopolitical events, Moody's
also upgraded its corporate rating from “Ba3" to “Ba2” in April 2016.

TUI AG's bonds worth €300.0 m from September 2014 was and TUI AG's
bonds worth €300.0m from October 2016 are assigned a "BB-" rating
by Standard & Poor's and a “Ba2" rating by Moody's. TUI AG's syndicated
credit facility worth €1.75bn is assigned a “BB-" rating by Standard &
Poor's.

TUI considers a stable credit rating to be a prerequisite for the further
development of the business. In response to the merger between
TUI AG and TUI Travel and the operating performance observed over
the past few years, Standard & Poor’s and Moody's both lifted their TUI
ratings. Apart from advantageous financing conditions, we are seeking
further improvements so as to ensure better access to the debt capital
markets even in difficult macroeconomic situations. The financial stabil-
ity ratios we have defined are leverage ratio and coverage ratio, based
on the following basic definitions:

Leverage ratio = (gross financial liabilities + fair value of financial com-
mitments from lease, rental and leasing agreements + pension provi-
sions and similar obligations)/ (reported EBITDA + long-term leasing
and rental expenses)

Coverage ratio = (reported EBITDA + long-term leasing and rental
expenses)/(net interest expense + 5 of long-term leasing and rental
expenses)

These basic definitions are subject to specific adjustments in order to
reflect current circumstances.

For the completed financial year, the leverage ratio was 3,3(x), while the
coverage ratio was 4,8(x). We aim to achieve a leverage ratio between
3.25(x) and 2.50(x) and a coverage ratio between 4.75(x) and 5.75(x) for
financial year 2016/17.

In the period under review, short-term interest rates remained at an
extremely low level compared with historical rates. In some currency
areas, the interest rate was even negative, with corresponding impacts
on returns from money market investments but also on reference inter-
est rates for floating-rate debt.

Quoted credit margins (CDS levels) for corporates in the sub-invest-
ment trade area remained almost flat year-on-year. On overall weak
demand for CDS titles, quotations were on a very low level for TUI AG.
Refinancing options were available against the backdrop of the recep-
tive capital market environment, and TUI AG took advantage of this
towards the end of the financial year by preparing for issuing bonds
worth €300.0 m which occurred in October 2016.

TUI also took advantage of the sound condition of the syndicated credit
market in order to extend the maturity of TUI AG's syndicated credit
facility worth €1.75bn to December 2020 ahead of the due date.



In the completed financial year, no major new large-volume financing
schemes were incurred apart from a refinancing of a collateralised air-
craft financing scheme and finance lease contracts.

LIQUIDITY RESERVE

In the completed financial year, the TUI Group's solvency was secured at
all times by means of cash inflows from operating activities, liquid
funds, and bilateral and syndicated credit agreements with banks.

At the balance sheet date, cash and cash equivalents of TUI AG, TUI
Group's parent company, totalled €637.0m.

RESTRICTIONS OF THE TRANSFER OF LIQUID FUNDS

At the balance sheet date, there were restrictions worth around €0.1 bn
on the transfer of liquid funds within the Group that might significantly
impact the Group's liquidity, such as restrictions on capital movements
and restrictions due to credit agreements concluded.

CHANGE OF CONTROL

Significant agreements taking effect in the event of a change of control
due to a takeover bid are outlined in the chapter on Information re-
quired under takeover law.

@ See chapter Information required under takeover law, from page 109

SUMMARY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Business Review __

The cash flow statement shows the flow of cash and cash equivalents
with cash inflows and outflows presented separately for operating,
investing and financing activities. The effects of changes in the group of
consolidated companies are eliminated.

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

In the financial year under review, the cash inflow from operating activities
amounted to €1,034.7m (previous year €790.5m). It included interest
of €21.1m and dividends of €84.7m in the reporting period. A cash
outflow of €186.4 m resulted from income tax payments. Tax payments
of €94.9m in connection with the sale of Hotelbeds Group were included
in the cash inflow from investing activities.

NET CASH OUTFLOW/INFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

In the financial year under review, the cash inflow from investing activities
including the payments received for the sale of Hotelbeds Group totalled
€239.0m (previous year cash outflow of €216.8 m). The cash outflow of
€605.6m for capital expenditure related to property, plant and equip-
ment and intangible assets primarily included 243.1 m for tour operators
and airlines and €262.3m for Hotels & Resorts. The cash inflow from the
disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets totalled
€72.2m. The cash outflows for capital expenditure on property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets and the corresponding cash inflows
do not match the additions and disposals shown in the development
of fixed assets, as these also include the non-cash investments and
disposals.

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
In the period under review, the cash outflow from financing activities

declined by €454.6 m year-on-year to €662.1 m.

Major cash outflows resulted from the repayment of finance lease obli-

£ million 2015/16 2014/15  gations (€78.1m) and other financial liabilities (197.3 m), interest pay-
I ments (€92.3m) and dividend payments to TUI AG shareholders
Net cash inflow from operating activities +1,034.7 +790.5  (€327.0m).
Net cash in-/outflow from investing
activities +239.0 -216.8
Net cash outflow from financing activities —662.1 -1.116.7 CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Change in cash and cash equivalents £ million 2015/16 2014/15
with cash effects +611.6 -543.0 I
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of period +1,682.2 +2,258.0
Changes due to changes in exchange rates +105.8 —331
Change in cash and cash equivalents due
to changes in the group of consolidated
companies +4.0 +0.3
Cash changes +611.6 —543.0
Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of period +2,403.6 +1,682.2
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise all liquid funds, i.e. cash in hand,
bank balances and cheques.

The detailed cash flow statement and additional explanations are pro-
vided in the consolidated financial statements and in the section Notes
to the cash flow statement in the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

@ See Cash flow statement page 152, Notes to the cash flow statement see
page 248

The development of fixed assets, including property, plant and equip-
ment, intangible assets and shareholdings and other investments is
presented in the section on Net assets in the Management Report.
Additional explanatory information is provided in the Notes to the con-
solidated financial statement.

ADDITIONS TO PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The table below lists the cash investments in intangible assets and prop-
erty, plant and equipment. This indicator does not include financing
processes such as the taking out of loans and finance leases.

NET CAPEX AND INVESTMENTS

2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
€ million restated
|
Northern Region 86.4 69.9 +23.6
Central Region 20.6 23.6 -12.7
Western Region 21.6 235 -8.1
Hotels & Resorts 262.3 1733 +51.4
Cruises 10.7 88.5 -87.9
Other Tourism 101.0 102.2 -1.2
Tourism 502.6 481.0 +4.5
All other segments 20.8 45.7 —545
TUI Group 523.4 526.7 -0.6
Discontinued operations 82.2 753 +9.2
Sum of the segments 605.6 602.0 +0.6
Net pre delivery payments on aircraft 48.7 -11.9 n.a.
Financial investments 132.0 158.0 -16.5
Divestments (without proceeds from Hotelbeds sale) -953 —89.1 -7.0
Net capex and investments 691.0 659.0 +49
Investments in other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment ~ RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
totalled €605.6 m in the period under review, up 0.6 % year-on-year.
2015/16 2014/15
In the period under review, investments mainly related to the construction £ million restated
of hotels in the Caribbean, Mexico and the Mediterranean, the develop- I
ment and launch of new booking and reservation systems and down pay-  Capital expenditure 605.6 602.0
ments on ordered aircraft. Investments were also effected for renovation ~ Debt financed investments - 211.0
and maintenance in all areas. Finance leases 315.5 4774
Advance payments 91.8 2244
The table below shows a reconciliation of investments to additions to  Additions to the group of consolidated
TUI Group's other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. ~ companies 2.7 8.6
Additions to discontinued operations -20.6 -
Additions to other intangible assets
and property, plant and equipment 995.0 1,523.4
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AMORTISATION (+)/WRITE-BACKS (-) OF OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (+)/WRITE-BACKS (-)

OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

€ million 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|
Northern Region 94.2 105.9 -11.0
Central Region 22.7 28.2 -19.5
Western Region 25.8 203 +27.1
Hotels & Resorts 95.0 113.0 -15.9
Cruises 193 1741 +129
Other Tourism 60.7 64.7 -6.2
Tourism 317.7 349.2 -9.0
All other segments 89.3 71.0 +258
TUI Group 407.0 420.2 -341
Discontinued operations 70.9 1325 —46.5
Sum of the segments 477.9 552.7 -13.5

ORDER COMMITMENTS

Due to agreements concluded in financial year 2015/16 or in prior years,
order commitments for investments totalled €4,786.7 m; this total in-
cludes an amount of €657.1 m for scheduled deliveries in financial year
2016/17.

Sustainable development

For TUI Group, economic, environmental and social sustainability is a
fundamental management principle and a cornerstone of our strategy
for continually enhancing the value of our Company. This is the way
we create the conditions for long-term economic success and assume
responsibility for sustainable development in the tourism sector.

At the balance sheet date, order commitments for aircraft comprised
73 planes (3 B787s and 70 B737s), to be delivered by the end of financial
year 2022/23. Delivery of one aircraft has been scheduled for financial
year 2016/17.

More detailed information is provided in the section Other financial lia-
bilities in the Notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In 2015, TUI Group presented its sustainability strategy for the period
until 2020. The strategy was devised with the involvement of managers
from across the business operations and fine-tuned in cooperation
with international stakeholders (e. g. non-governmental organisations,
partners, customers and academics).

@ More on TUI's sustainability strategy at www.tui-sustainability.com

Under the title "Better Holidays, Better World", TUI's sustainability efforts

comprise three major ambitions: “step lightly”, “make a difference” and
“lead the way".
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TUI'S SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY 2015-2020

betterholidays

betterworld
step ;) Make lead
lightly & a difference the way

Reducing the environmental
impact of holidays

Creating positive change for
people and communities

Pioneering sustainable tourism
across the world

AMBITIONS BY 2020

We will operate Europe's most carbon-efficient We will deliver
airlines and reduce the carbon intensity of our

operations by by 2020.

greener and fairer holidays
per year by 2020, enabling more local people to
share in the benefits of tourism.

We will invest per year by 2020, to
support good causes and enhance the positive
impacts of tourism, using the TUI Care Foundation

to support this work.

COMMITMENTS BY 2020

We will drive environmental improvements
across our aviation operations.

We will drive environmental improvements
across our cruise operations.

We will work with hotel suppliers to increase
their positive impact on the local community and
to protect the environment.

We will showcase world-class sustainability
standards across our own TUI hotels and concept

We will innovate for a more sustainable future
for tourism, and share our findings with the
industry.

We will invest in youth, tourism skills and
education to create employment opportunities

We will drive environmental improvements partner hotels.

across our ground operations.

We will help customers and colleagues to create

positive change.

in our source markets and destinations.

We will collaborate with destinations on the
sustainable management of tourism.

Our goal is to make positive contributions towards sustainable environ-
mental and social development, both in the host countries and at our
home markets. We also consistently work to prevent and minimise
any negative impacts from our business activities on our natural and
social environment. To play our part in shaping the future of sustainable
tourism, TUI invests in young people, skills and tourism training pro-
grammes, and works in partnership with the destination markets.

In the period under review, our strategy was implemented more broadly
within our Group, and the first results were measured. In July 2016,
TUI Group published its first status report on “Better Holidays, Better
World". The report is available for download on the Group's website. It

offers comprehensive information about our goals, activities, progress
and metrics in the field of sustainability.

@ Report online at
www.tuigroup.com/en-en/sustainability/reporting-downloads

A further key milestone was the Group-wide launch of TUI Care Foun-
dation in the period under review. It pools and expands the social commit-
ment expressed across TUI Group. TUI Care Foundation operates globally
but always focuses on the local situation. It thus builds on strong partner-
ships with regional and international organisations in order to create
sustainable, positive change. The non-profit foundation has committed



to transparency and an efficient use of funds. 100 % of the donations go
to projects and project partnerships, with all overhead costs for the
foundation covered by TUI.

@ More on TUI Care Foundation in the Magazine on page 58 and on the Internet
at www.tuicarefoundation.com

The TUI Care Foundation supports projects for children and young people,
nature conservation and environmental protection, and development
for destinations, e.g. through education and training.

Current projects and initiatives are regularly published on our website.
In addition, many TUI Group companies describe their sustainability
activities in detail on their local websites and integrate sustainability
information into customer communication.

@ Current projects and initiatives at www.tui-sustainability.com

In September 2016, TUI AG was once again listed in the renowned Dow
Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) for the eleventh time in succession. TUI
is the only tourism group admitted to the World and Europe indices. TUI
is also listed as industry leader. At this year's review of the composition
of the index, TUI achieved particularly high scores in the categories
Corporate Citizenship, Climate Strategy and Eco-Efficiency.

TUI AG is also represented in the sustainability indexes FTSE4Good,
STOXX Global ESG Leaders Index, Ethibel Excellence Index and ECPI
Ethical Index €uro. TUI is listed in the Climate Disclosure Leadership
Index (CDLI) in the UK and in Germany.
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Respecting the environment in our products, services and processes is an
essential feature of our quality standards. Conserving natural resources
and mitigating negative environmental impacts secure TUI's success. We
place priority on climate protection, resource efficiency and biodiversity.

GROUP-WIDE ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING

Group-wide processes to monitor environmental performance and de-
termine meaningful indicators were further pursued in financial year
2015/16. These are based on internationally acknowledged standards
such as the Greenhouse Gas Protocol. Group-wide monitoring focuses
on business activities impacting the environment and is used as a control
parameter to improve environmental performance.

To establish the relevant indicators, our businesses use an internal
system to report their consumption and activities on an annual basis. The
quantitative data is then consolidated at Group level and aggregated into
metrics. A web-based system is used to further enhance data quality
and increase the efficiency of the data capture process for the companies
concerned.

FOCUS ON CLIMATE PROTECTION AND EMISSIONS

Our special focus is on improving carbon emissions, in particular by
the TUI Group's airlines, which account for more than 80 % of our CO,
emissions.

@ Details about our carbon footprint can be found in TUI Group's Sustainability
Report at www.tui-sustainability.com

CARBON DIOXIDE EMISSIONS (CO,)

tons 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|
Airlines & Aviation 5,842,427 5,615,386 +4.0
Hotels & Resorts 510,719 510,492 +0.0
Cruises 686,791 639,119 +7.5
Major Premises/Shops 32,617 38115 -14.4
Ground Transport 17,751 17,761 -0.1
Scope 3 (Other) 71,713 68,403 +4.8
Group 7,162,018 6,889,276 +4.0

In financial year 2015/16, TUI Group's total emissions rose year-on-year
in absolute terms, primarily due to growth in its airlines and aviation
segment. The increase in absolute carbon emissions in Cruises of 7.5 %
is mainly driven by the launch of Mein Schiff 5, operated by TUI Cruises,

and the inclusion of Mein Schiff 4 for a full financial year. Emissions from
offices and retail shops declined significantly, driven partly by more
efficient energy use.

1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

o8

3
e

L

s 3
[TES,
=
<
S
(%]
|
<
O
Z
<<
=
e
o
w
=
<
DO
i
o
@,
-
©
4

FURTHER INFORMATION



___ Business Review

CLIMATE PROTECTION BY TUI AIRLINES

We already operate one of Europe’s most carbon-efficient airlines. CO;
emissions by TUl airlines are 30 % below the average for the entire sector.
TUI Airlines have launched numerous measures to secure our top position
and further enhance the efficiency of aircraft.

Apart from continuous renewal of our aircraft fleet, we have launched
the following measures to support our efficiency goals:

Fitting our aircraft with split scimitar winglets and blended winglets
to save fuel

Process optimisation, e.g. single-engine taxiing

Weight reduction, e.g. by means of lighter trolleys and seats, use of
iPads, introduction of carbon brakes and optimisation of on-board
water and goods volumes

Washing engines, using lighter paint and surface sealants to prevent
soiling and further improving aircraft aerodynamics

Replacing fluorescent lamps in aircraft cabins by LEDs

TUI's airlines play a pioneering role in introducing environmental manage-
ment systems based on the internationally recognised ISO 14001 stand-

ard. In the period under review, each of our five tour operator airlines
and hence 95 % of our aircraft achieved ISO 14001 certification.

In the Atmosfair Airline Index 2015 TUI fly Germany was named “most
climate-efficient airline in the world” for the third consecutive time.
Thomson Airways took second place as the “most climate-efficient airline
in the world in the medium- and long-haul segment”.

The ecoDemonstrator project carried out in collaboration with Boeing
and NASA to test new technologies aimed at reducing CO; and noise
emissions was successfully completed in the period under review. The
tests included special coatings for aircraft wings to protect the leading
edge from insect soiling. This reduces the aerodynamic drag of the
aircraft. After the end of the series of test flights, the aircraft was dis-
mantled and 90 % of its parts recycled by means of new methods.

In our sustainability strategy “Better Holidays, Better World"”, we set
ourselves the goal to defend our position as Europe’s most emission-
efficient airline fleet. We also aim to reduce the CO; intensity of our
global operations, including TUI's airlines, by 10 % by 2020: We aim to
reduce specific CO; emissions (g CO,/PKM) by 10 % (baseline 2013/14).

TUI AIRLINES - FUEL CONSUMPTION AND RELATED EMISSIONS

2015/16 2014/152 Var. %
|

Specific fuel consumption 1/100 rpk! 2.65 2.62 +1.2
Carbon dioxide (CO3) - total t 5,277,065 5,034,264 +4.8
Carbon dioxide (CO3) — specific kg/100 rpk? 6.68 6.60 +1.2
Nitrogen oxide (NOX) — total t 29,417 30,754 -43
Nitrogen oxide (NOX) — specific g/100 rpk! 37.34 41.38 -9.8
Carbon monoxide (CO) — total t 1,583 1.523 +39
Carbon monoxide (CO) — specific g/100 rpk! 2.00 2.05 -2.4
Hydrocarbon (HC) - total t 142 130 +9.2
Hydrocarbon (HC) — specific g/100 rpk! 0.18 0.17 +59

1 rpk = Revenue Passenger Kilometer

2 Presentation of the nitrogen oxide, carbon monoxide and hydrocarbon emissions for financial year 2014/15 is based on total fuel burn.

Specific fuel consumption and specific emissions rose slightly in the
period under review. This is attributable to changes in the fleet's load
factor and a higher frequency of short-haul flights.
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2015/16 2014/15 Var. % g CO,e/rpk* g

| ©

=l
TUI Airline fleet g CO,/rpk” 66.8 66.0 +1.2 67.5
Corsair International g COy/rpk” 82.4 79.8 +33 83.2
Thomson Airways g CO,/rpk* 63.8 63.7 +0.2 64.4
TUI fly Belgium g COy/rpk” 714 69.6 +2.6 72.1
TUI fly Germany g CO,/rpk* 64.4 63.4 +1.6 65.0
TUI fly Netherlands g CO,/rpk* 641 63.8 +0.5 64.7
TUI fly Nordic g COa/rpk” 614 60.6 +13 62.0

*rpk = Revenue Passenger Kilometer

We have requested PwC, TUI Group’s auditors, to provide assurance on the carbon intensity metrics displayed in the table “TUI Airlines — Carbon intensity” above. To read our airline
carbon data methodology document and PwC's Assurance Report in full, please visit www.tuigroup.com/en-en/sustainability/reporting-downloads

To enhance the information content, specific emissions are also shown
in the form of CO, equivalents (CO,e). Apart from carbon dioxide (CO5),
they include the other five greenhouse gases impacting the climate
as listed in the Kyoto Protocol: methane (CHa), nitrous oxide (N,0),
hydro-fluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs) and sulphur
hexafluoride (SFe).

CLIMATE PROTECTION IN CRUISES

In 2016, TUI Cruises launched Mein Schiff 5. Like her sister ships Mein
Schiff 3 and Mein Schiff 4, the newbuild is 30 % more energy efficient
than comparable vessels. The ships save fuel through a combination of
the latest technologies. A smart energy management system, efficient
air conditioning, innovative lighting controls and the use of waste heat
from the engines all contribute to a significantly reduced carbon foot-
print. Sulphur emissions from the newbuilds in the fleet are also 90 %
lower thanks to new systems that treat exhaust fumes before releasing

Human resources

We successfully operate in a dynamic, challenging environment with
around 67,000 employees worldwide. In financial year 2015/16, the new
Group HR Strategy was developed in conjunction with the global HR
Leadership Team in order to ensure lasting achievement of our goal —
long-term success. Apart from anchoring joint corporate values, the
focus is on the five strategic key areas Engagement, Leadership, People
Development, Organisational Effectiveness and HR Function Develop-
ment. For each of these pillars, specific projects have been defined so
that TUI Group's cultural transformation can be experienced by managers
and employees. The 15 projects are all in different implementation stages
and will be the focus of our activities in the next few years.

them. Moreover, the average sulphur content of fuel was considerably
reduced year-on-year. In the period under review, it stood at 1.16 %.

@ More in the TUI Cruises Environment Report:
www.tuicruises.com/nachhaltigkeit/umweltbericht/

The ships are fitted with advanced emission purification systems, which
operate around the clock worldwide — even outside Emission Control
Areas, where use of scrubbers when using heavy fuel oil has been required
since 2015.

At Hapag-Lloyd Cruises, the expedition ships Hanseatic and Bremen
were fitted with new zodiacs in the period under review. These motor-
driven rubber boats are equipped with Torqueedo electric motors in order
to reduce air and noise emissions. Hapag-Lloyd Cruises is the first pro-
vider of expedition cruises to use this environmentally friendly technology.

One of the key cornerstones in the strategic HR process and towards
cultural integration is our employee survey TUIgether. Our first survey
was carried out in September 2015. We invited our employees in more
than 100 countries with 18 languages to give us their feedback. The
response rate was 66 %. In our first employee survey, we achieved an
Engagement Index of 73. We followed up on the results in a well-defined
process and agreed to implement around 5,000 measures across all levels.
In the second employee survey, carried out in September 2016, the
response rate rose by around 10 percentage points to 77 %, while the
Engagement Index climbed to 77.
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THE NEW TUI GROUP HR STRATEGY

OUR VISION

OUR VALUES

Y

Think Travel. Think TUI.

Trusted. Unique. Inspiring.

“The best company to work for.”

OUR GOAL

KEY STRATEGIC

AREAS ENGAGEMENT LEADERSHIP

STRATEGIC
HR PROJECTS

People Engagement

ORGANISATION
EFFECTIVENESS

HR FUNCTION
DEVELOPMENT

PEOPLE
DEVELOPMENT

TUlgether, Performance and Talent Management, OneShare,
International Careers, Learning@ T U] etc.

At the balance sheet date, TUl Group's worldwide headcount was
66,779, down 12.2 % Oyear-on-year. This is primarily due to the disposal
of Hotelbeds Group.

In the period under review, the headcount strongly reflected the seasonal
employment structures, in particular in hotels and incoming agencies.
Tourism continues to employ the largest number of Group employees.

PERSONNEL BY SEGMENT

30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
restated
|

Northern Region 14,943 14,518 +2.9

Central Region 11741 12,167 -3.5

Western Region 5,631 5431 +3.7

Hotels & Resorts 24,363 24,373 -0.0

Cruises 246 232 +6.0

Other Tourism 4,573 4,806 -48

Tourism 61,497 61,527 -0.0

All other segments 1,744 1322 +31.9

TUI Group 63,241 62,849 +0.6

Discontinued operations 3,538 13,187 -73.2

Total 66,779 76,036 -12.2
TOURISM

At the end of financial year 2015/16, the headcount in Tourism was
almost flat year-on-year at 61,497. The individual segments recorded
different trends.



NORTHERN REGION

Northern Region reported a year-on-year increase in headcount of
2.9 % to 14,943. This increase mainly resulted from recruitment in tour
operation and the UK airline. On the other hand, Crystal Ski reported a
slight reduction.

CENTRAL REGION

At the balance sheet date, Central Region recorded a headcount of
11,741, down 3.5 % year-on-year. The decline was driven by lower staffing
numbers in Austria, Switzerland and Poland and in tour operation in
Germany. In addition, 375 employees were transferred from TUI Customer
Operations to TUI Business Services GmbH, a wholly owned subsidiary
of TUI AG, in the period under review in order to further develop an
international, source market-independent shared service platform. On
the other hand, the headcount increased in the retail segment in Germany
and at TUI Service AG.

WESTERN REGION

Western Region saw an increase in headcount of 3.7 % to 5,631, primarily
due to the increase in staffing numbers in tour operation in France, the
Netherlands and Belgium.

HOTELS & RESORTS

At the balance sheet date, Hotels & Resorts reported 24,363 employees,
flat year-on-year. At 10,775, Riu Group, the largest hotel company in the
portfolio, maintained its staffing number roughly at the prior year's
level. The increase in staff numbers driven by the opening of new hotel
facilities was almost offset by the closure of hotels in Tunisia. Robinson

GLOBAL HEADCOUNT
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reported an increase in its headcount of 5.9% to 3,586 due to new
acquisitions.

CRUISES
The Cruises segment recorded a year-on-year increase in headcount of
6.0% to 246, driven by the newbuild projects.

OTHER TOURISM

Other Tourism reported a decline in headcount of 4.8 % to 4,573, essen-
tially driven by the falling headcount for the TUI Destination Services
platform in Turkey, Tunisia and Morocco. The headcount in IT was 434,
up 12.7 % year-on-year.

ALL OTHER SEGMENTS

All other segments recorded an increase in headcount of 31.9% to
1,744 year-on-year. In the Corporate Centre, the headcount rose by
86.5 % to 235, mainly due to the integration of Group functions and the
creation of new functions. The headcount growth in All other segments
was also driven by the first-time inclusion of TUI Business Services
GmbH and growth in the longtail platform.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

At the balance sheet date, the headcount in discontinued operations
was 73.2% down versus the prior year from 13,187 to 3,538. This was
driven by the sale of Hotelbeds Group and LateRooms Group and the
associated non-inclusion of around 9,000 employees. Specialist Group
recorded a decline in its headcount of 8.1 % to 3,538, primarily due to
the sale of companies such as the language tour operations, not forming
part of the Specialist Group companies to be sold in one deal.

PERSONNEL BY REGION*

30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
restated
|

Germany 10,170 10,047 +1.2
Great Britain 13,409 13,036 +2.9
Spain 8,967 9,115 -1.6
Other EU 19,895 19,301 +3.1
North and South America 3,768 3,428 +9.9
Other regions 7,032 7,922 -11.2
TUI Group 63,241 62,849 +0.6
Discontinued operations 3,538 13,187 -73.2
Total 66,779 76,036 -12.2

* By domicile of company

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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PERSONNEL BY REGION* 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

North and
South America

(31) 32

Rest of Europe

Great Britain Germany

*Excl. employees of the discontinued operations
In brackets: previous year

As a global player, TUlI Group operates in around 180 destinations
worldwide with its employees. The number of employees working in
Germany rose by 1.2 % to 10,170. The Group's headcount in Europe in-
creased by 1.8 % to 52,441, or 82.9 % of the Group's overall headcount.
Due to a reduction in the number of employees working in other re-
gions, the headcount in non-European countries declined by 4.8% to
10,800, or 17.1 % of the overall headcount. The year-on-year change is
primarily driven by staff reductions in the destinations Tunisia, Morocco
and Egypt.

As at 30 September 2016, the balance sheet date, the share of women
as a proportion of the overall headcount was almost flat year-on-year at
56.0%. The proportion of women in leadership positions decreased
slightly from 31.3 % to 29.4 %.

The proportion of women on our German supervisory bodies continued
to rise in the period under review. On 30 September 2016, women ac-
counted overall for around 38 % of members, up 8 percentage points
year-on-year. At TUI AG, the share of women on the Supervisory Board
was already 35 %. The statutory requirements were therefore met.

In Germany, advantage was taken of the self-commitment mechanism
provided for under the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) and the
Act on Limited Liability Companies (GmbHG) to fix specific targets for
TUI AG, TUI Deutschland and TUI fly in financial year 2014/15. In finan-
cial year 2015/16, implementation of these targets made good pro-
gress. At the Executive Board and Management Board levels, the roles
of Labour Director within TUI AG and TUI Deutschland were filled with
female candidates. In the period under review, additional measures
were initiated to promote female executives, in particular at the two
management levels below the Executive Board, in the framework of the
HR strategy.

PROPORTION OF WOMEN IN MANAGERIAL POSITIONS 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

TUI AG TUI Deutschland TUl fly
% Actual Target Actual Target Actual Target
at least
Executive Board one female one female 20 20 0 20
First management level below Executive Board 10 20 36 30 40 30
Second management level below Executive Board 22 30 40 40 44 40
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OTHER STAFF INDICATORS

TUI Group Germany
% 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015
I 0909099 e
Employment structure
Number of employees 66,779 76,036 10,170 10,047
Employees — female 56.0 56.2 68.5 68.2
Females in managerial positions 29.4 313 32.8 32.6
Employees in part-time, total 18.8 19.7 36.4 35.8
Employees in part-time, female 28.8 287 461 44.7
Employees — fixed-term employment contract 33.1 30.8 15.5 16.0
Age structure
Employees up to 20 years 5.3 5.4 29 3.0
Employees 2130 years 301 293 201 19.6
Employees 31-40 years 271 281 242 25.5
Employees 41-50 years 239 23.0 31.4 31.8
Employees more than 50 years 13.6 142 214 20.1
Average company affiliation
up to 5 years 54.3 56.9 332 33.0
6—10 years 15.8 17.0 133 145
11-20 years 20.2 17.8 31.8 325
21-30 years 7.6 6.6 16.9 15.2
more than 30 years 2.1 1.7 4.8 48
Vocational training in Germany
Number of trainees 569 576
Trainees — female 79.3 80.6
Training rate 5.7 5.8
Number of trainees gained certification in finanical year 183 171
Hiring rate 70.5 67.8
The pay package offered by the TUI Group reflects the appropriateness
of compensation and customary market rates. It varies in its composi- ~PERSONNEL COSTS
tion, as it is influenced by framework conditions in different countries 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
and companies. Depending on the function concerned, a fixed basic sal- & million restated
ary may go hand in hand with variable components. TUI Group uses I
these variable factors to honour individual performance and to enable ~ Wages and salaries 1,846.7 1,869.7 -1.2
employees to participate in the Company's strategic and long-term suc-  Social security
cess. Moreover, senior management have share options and are thus  contributions 4253 4357 -24
able to benefit directly when the Company grows in value. Total 2,272.0 2,305.4 -1.4

In the period under review, the TUI Group's personnel costs declined by
1.4% to €2,272.0m. The year-on-year decrease in expenses for wages
and salaries was mainly attributable to foreign exchange effects and
higher expenses incurred in the prior year in connection with restruc-
turing measures. Moreover, expenses for share-based payments carried
in administrative expenses declined year-on-year due to changes in the
structure of remuneration models and the development of the share
price. An opposite trend was reported by the operating areas, in par-
ticular airlines and hotels, some of which recorded a year-on-year in-
crease in personnel costs. This trend is reflected in a slight overall in-
crease in the cost of sales.

PENSION SCHEMES

The companies in the TUI Group offer their employees benefits from
the company-based pension schemes funded by the employer. Options
for the employees include pension schemes, direct insurance contracts
and individual or direct commitments to build up a private pension.
These schemes were devised so as to take advantage of fiscal and social
security co-sponsorship opportunities. To enable their employees to
convert their gross pay into pension contributions, TUI AG has conclud-
ed advantageous collective contracts with an established insurance un-
dertaking, and all our German employees can sign up to these.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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PART-TIME EARLY RETIREMENT

In order to further increase the flexibility of their company HR and suc-
cession planning, Group companies in Germany are able to make use of
the opportunities provided under the German Part-Time Early Retire-
ment Act to shift gradually from employment to retirement. At the bal-
ance sheet date, €9.6m was provided through a capital investment
model for the 180 employees working under part-time early retirement
contracts in order to hedge their accrued assets against employer insol-
vency.

SECURITY, HEALTH & SAFETY

In the framework of the integration process, Security, Health & Safety
has been integrated across all companies and further expanded. The
goal of the new structure is to guarantee comprehensive Group-wide
safety management based on common safety standards, and coordi-
nated workflows ensuring networked, aligned action. The analyses per-
formed under this Group-wide safety management system provide the

basis for the definition of prevention measures, framework concepts
and guidelines for action in Security, Health & Safety, which are used
across the Group. The effectiveness of these measures is continually
evaluated.

In addition, well-coordinated event and crisis management ensures that
rapid, structured and comprehensive support is provided to our cus-
tomers and employees if needed, drawing on the resources and experi-
ence of a globally operating tourism group. To this end, TUl has estab-
lished a structure including crisis centres that coordinate all measures
required in the event of an incident, emergency care teams to support
our guests locally in emergency and crisis situations, and close contacts
with the foreign offices in the source markets and foreign ministries
worldwide. TUI benefits from the interdisciplinary networking of exper-
tise in different areas. Our employees contribute the experience they
have gained in tourism, crisis management and security agencies to TUI
Group's integrated Group-wide safety management concept.



Annual financial statements of TUIAG

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF TUI AG

Condensed version according to German Commercial Code (HGB)

The annual financial statements of TUI AG were prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB), taking
account of the complementary provisions of the German Stock Corpo-
ration Act (AktG), and audited by the auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers
Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Hanover. They are
published in the electronic federal gazette. The annual financial

statements have been made permanently available on the Internet at
www.tuigroup.com and can be requested in print from TUI AG.

@ Annual financial statements TUI AG 2015/16 online at
www.tuigroup.com/en-en/investors

In the present Annual Report, the Management Report of TUI AG has
been combined with the Management Report of TUI Group.

INCOME STATEMENT OF TUI AG

€ million 2015/16 2014/15 Var. %
|
Other operating income 637.0 508.8 +25.2
Personnel costs 50.3 37.8 +331
Depreciation 0.5 0.6 -16.7
Other operating expenses 762.9 568.6 +34.2
Net income from investments 353.4 1,420.0 =751
Write-downs of investments 3.7 24.6 -85.0
Net interest -24.6 -289 +14.9
Profit on ordinary activities 148.4 1,268.3 -88.3
Taxes 85 11.6 -26.7
Net profit/loss for the year 139.9 1,256.7 -88.9

The earnings position of TUI AG, the Group’s parent company, is primarily
determined by the appropriation of profits by its Group companies, either
directly associated with TUI AG via profit and loss transfer agreements
or distributing their profits to TUI AG based on appropriate resolutions.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The increase in other operating income was mainly driven by a significant
year-on-year increase in gains on exchange. This income was offset by
expenses for exchange losses of a similar amount, carried in Other
operating expenses. Apart from the gains on exchange, Other operating
income primarily included income from the elimination of intercompany
services, carried alongside expenses of almost the same amount passed
on to TUI AG from other Group companies, also shown in Other Operating
expenses.

PERSONNEL COSTS AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs rose in financial year 2015/16, mainly due to higher
expenses for members of the management body. Personnel costs also
rose due to transfers to pension provisions, recruitment of new staff
and the transfer of staff from a subsidiary to TUI AG.

Other operating expenses comprise, in particular, the cost of financial and
monetary transactions, charges, fees, services, transfers to impairments
and other administrative costs as well as expenses for exchange losses
and the intercompany elimination of services. Other operating expenses
rose in particular due to the increase in expenses for exchange losses.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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NET INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

In the financial year under review, TUI AG’'S net income from investments
was driven, in particular, by the distribution of pre-fiscal unity profits of
Leibniz-Service GmbH and the distribution of profits by TUI Cruises
GmbH. Net income from investments also included income from profit
transfers from hotel companies and companies allocable to central oper-
ations. It also comprised expenses for loss transfers from Group com-
panies, resulting in a corresponding reduction in net income from invest-
ments. A negative effect was driven in particular by the loss taken over
by TUI-Hapag Beteiligungs GmbH from the impairment of the interests
in Hapag-Lloyd Aktiengesellschaft. In the prior year, net income from
investments had been impacted in particular by the high amount of
profits distributed by TUI Travel Ltd.

WRITE-DOWNS OF INVESTMENTS
In the period under review, write-downs of investments exclusively related
to write-downs of hotel investments.

INTEREST RESULT
The interest result improved as a result of lower interest expenses driven
by the redemption of bonds. Interest expenses also declined due to

changes in the parameters used to calculate pension provisions. An
opposite trend was driven by charges in connection with the syndicated
credit facility.

TAXES
In the period under review, taxes related to income taxes and other
taxes. They did not include deferred taxes.

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
For financial year 2015/16, TUl AG posted a net profit for the year of
€1499m.

TUI AG's net assets and financial position as well as its balance sheet
structure reflect its function as the TUI Group’s parent company. The
balance sheet total rose by 23.5% to €9.2bn in financial year 2015/16.

ABBREVIATED BALANCE SHEET OF TUI AG (FINANCIAL STATEMENT ACCORDING TO GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE)

€ million 30 Sep 2016 30 Sep 2015 Var. %
|
Intangible assets/property, plant and equipment 17.5 137 +27.7
Investments 6,784.8 5,662.1 +19.8
Fixed assets 6,802.3 5,675.8 +19.8
Inventories/Receivables/Trade securities 17244 912.7 +88.9
Cash and cash equivalents 637.0 833.7 -23.6
Current assets 2,361.4 1,746.4 +35.2
Prepaid expenses 0.8 0.8 -
Assets 9,164.5 7,423.0 +235
Equity 4,812.1 4,995.4 -3.7
Special non-taxed items 0.1 0.5 -80.0
Provisions 480.8 405.6 +18.5
Bonds 306.7 300.0 +2.2
Other liabilities 3,564.8 1,721.5 +107.1
Liabilities 3,871.5 2,021.5 +91.5
Liabilities 9,164.5 7.423.0 +23.5

FIXED ASSETS

At the balance sheet date, fixed assets almost exclusively consisted of
investments. The increase in investments was mainly attributable to
the acquisition of TUI Belgium N.V., TUI Holding Spain SLU and Tantur
Turizm Seyahat Ltd. Financial investments also rose due to loans to
Group subsidiaries.

CURRENT ASSETS

In the framework of the restructuring of a cash pool, former TUI Travel
subsidiaries were directly included in TUI AG's cash pooling structure in
the period under review, causing an increase in receivables in financial
year 2015/16.

Moreover, liquid funds were invested in short-term money market funds
in the period under review.

TUI AG'S CAPITAL STRUCTURE

EQUITY

TUI AG's equity decreased by €183.3m to €4,812.1 m. The subscribed
capital of TUI AG consists of no-par value shares, each representing an
equal portion in the capital stock. The proportionate share in the capital
stock per share is around €2.56. At the end of financial year 2015/16,
the subscribed capital of TUI AG rose due to the issue of employee
shares. At the end of the financial year under review, subscribed capital
comprised 587,038,187 shares.



In financial year 2015/16, the capital reserve rose by a total of €2.7m due
to the issue of employee shares. Revenue reserves exclusively consisted
of other revenue reserves. The Articles of Association do not contain
any provisions concerning the formation of reserves.

The profit for the year amounted to €139.9m. Taking account of the
profit carried forward of €682.4m, net profit available for distribution
totalled €822.3m. A proposal will be submitted to the Annual General
Meeting to use the net profit available for distribution for the financial
year under review to distribute a dividend of €0.63 per no-par value
share and to carry the amount of €452.5m, remaining after deduction
of the dividend total of €369.8m, forward on new account. The equity
ratio declined to 52.5 % (previous year 67.3 %) in financial year 2015/16.

PROVISIONS

Provisions increased by €75.2m to €480.8m. They consisted of pension
provisions worth €134.8m (previous year €139.0m) and other provisions
worth €346.0m (previous year €266.6 m).

Other provisions increased year-on-year, in particular due to the use of
provisions formed for the assumptions of risks in the framework of the
sale of Hotelbeds Group and an increase in provisions for invoices out-
standing. An opposite effect arose from the decline in provisions for
onerous losses from derivative financial instruments.

Annual financial statements of TUIAG

LIABILITIES
TUI AG's liabilities totalled €3,871.5m, up by €1,850.0m or 91.5 %.

In September 2014, TUI AG issued an unsecured bond worth €300.0m
maturing on 1 October 2019. Due to the issue of bonds with a lower
interest coupon, TUI AG cancelled the bond on 18 November 2016 and
repaid it ahead of its maturity date.

The increase in other liabilities was also associated with the restructuring
of a cash pool of former TUI Travel subsidiaries, which were included in
TUI AG's cash pool. Moreover, Group companies fed their gains from the
disposal of stakes in Hotelbeds Group into TUI AG's cash pooling system,
resulting in a considerable increase in liabilities to Group companies.

TUI's net financial position (funds and marketable securities less bonds)
improved year-on-year, amounting to a clearly positive position of
€630.2m in the period under review.

CAPITAL AUTHORISATION RESOLUTIONS

Information on new or existing resolutions concerning capital author-
isation, adopted by Annual General Meetings, is provided in the next
chapter on Information Required under Takeover Law.
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__ TUl'share

TUlI SHARE

The TUI share performed well at the start of the financial year, but was
subsequently impacted by the challenging market environment. The
terrorist attacks in Paris on 13 November 2015, in particular, resulted in
a slump in equity prices on international stock exchanges.

Supported by the best business results in the history of the Company,
the TUI share price climbed during December, before the attacks in
Istanbul in early 2016 again impacted tourism shares. In February 2016,
market participants were unsettled by the slump in oil prices, which
drove international lead indices further into losses.

In the course of the financial year, the TUI share was caught, time and
again, between sound operating results and macroeconomic as well as
geopolitical turbulence. While the TUI share was supported by a strong
overall trading performance and half-year results in March and
May 2016, the terrorist attacks in Ankara, Brussels and Nice impacted
the financial markets.

Major stock market distortions also followed the British decision on
23 June 2016 to leave the EU, and concerns about the consequences of

Brexit impacted share prices, in particular for shares exposed to the UK
source market.

In August and September 2016, the TUI share recovered again, benefiting
from sound interim results and a good trading performance. This once
again demonstrated the strength of the integrated business model and
the success of the Group's content-centric strategy.

TUI SHARE DATA

30 September 2016

WKN TUAGOO
ISIN DEOOOTUAGO00
Stock exchange centres

London, Xetra, Hannover
TUIGN.DE/TUI1.GR (Frankfurt);
TUIT.L/TULLN (London)

Reuters/Bloomberg

Stock category Registered ordinary shares
Capital stock € 1,500,739,295
Number of shares 587,038,187
Market capitalisation bn € 7.4
Market capitalisation bn £ 6.4

TUI SHARE PRICE (FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/16)

in %

) m e .....

30 SEPTEMBER 2015

TUI Xetra M TUI London W FTSE 100 STOXX 600 Travel & Leisure

30 SEPTEMBER 2016
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LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT OF THE TUI SHARE (XETRA) E

o

€ 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 =

[+4

| S
High 9.05 10.86 6.97 17.71 17.21
Low 4.69 3.68 3.14 9.84 10.17
Year-end share price 8.98 3.88 6.70 16.35 12.69

The TUI share has its primary listing in the Premium segment of the
Main Market of the London Stock Exchange and is listed in the FTSE UK
Index series including FTSE 100, the UK’s major share index. It also has
a secondary listing in the electronic trading system Xetra and at the
Hanover Stock Exchange.

Among the sustainability indices, TUl was listed for the eleventh time
running in the renowned Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) in Sep-
tember 2016. TUI was, moreover, the only tourism group to feature in
both the World and Europe indices. TUI Group is furthermore recog-
nised as industry leader. At this year's review of the composition of the
index, the Company achieved top scores in the categories Corporate
Citizenship, Climate Strategy and Eco-Efficiency. TUl is likewise listed in
the sustainability indices FTSE4Good, STOXX Global ESG Leaders Index
and ECPI Ethical Index €uro and is a member of the CDP Climate Dis-
closure Leadership Index in the UK and Germany.

In financial year 2015/16, the average daily trading volume at the London
Stock Exchange was around 1.1 million shares, while around 0.7 million
shares were traded on Xetra. Both the sterling and the euro line therefore
recorded strong liquidity in trading by institutional and private investors.

ANALYSTS’ RECOMMENDATIONS
30 SEPTEMBER 2016

For institutional and private investors, analyses and recommendations
by financial analysts are a key decision-making factor. In the financial
year under review, more than 20 analysts regularly published studies on
TUL In September 2016, 82 % of analysts issued a recommendation to
"buy” the TUI share, with 18 % recommending “hold". None of the analysts
recommended “sell”.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
30 SEPTEMBER 2016

GEOGRAPHICAL SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
30 SEPTEMBER 2016

Riu Hotels S.A. Private investors

Alexey
Mordashov

72

Institutional
investors

North America

61

EU
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__ TUl'share

At the end of financial year 2015/16, around 81 % of TUI shares were in
free float. Around 6 % of all TUI shares were held by private shareholders,
around 72% by institutional investors and financial institutes and

around 22 % by strategic investors. Analysis of the share register shows
that most shares were held by investors from EU countries.

@ The current shareholder structure and the voting right notifications pursuant
to section 26 of the German Securities Trading Act are available online at
www.tuigroup.com/en-en/investors

DEVELOPMENT OF DIVIDENDS AND EARNINGS OF THE TUI SHARE

€ 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

|
Earnings per share -0.16 -0.14 +0.26 +0.64 +1.78
Dividend - 0.15 033 0.56 0.63

TUI AG's profit for the year amounted to €139.9 m. Taking account of the
profit carried forward of €682.4m, net profit available for distribution
totaled €822.3m. A proposal will be submitted to the Annual General
Meeting to use the net profit available for distribution for the financial
year under review to distribute a dividend of €0.63 per no-par value
share and to carry the amount of €452.5m, remaining after deduction
of the dividendtotal of €369.8 m, forward on new account.

Open and continuous dialogue and transparent communication form
the basis for confidence in our dealings with shareholders, institutional
investors, equity and credit analysts and lenders. Many discussions
were held with TUI shareholders and bondholders; they centred on
Group strategy and the development of business in the various Sectors,
enabling stakeholders to make a realistic assessment of TUl's future
development.

@ More details about Investor Relations online at
www.tuigroup.com/en-en/investors

Apart from the development of business operations in Tourism, Investor
Relations activities in the period under review focused in particular on
exogenous impacts on the business model and the growth strategies of
the integrated tourism group. TUIl's management team commented on
these central issues at roadshows in London, Frankfurt, Paris, Edinburgh,
Stockholm, Copenhagen, Zurich, Milan, Amsterdam, Brussels, New York,
Philadelphia and Boston.

Questions from analysts and investors were also discussed at the con-
ference calls held upon publication of interim reports, during analysts'’
meetings, at many investor conferences in Europe and the US and at
numerous one-on-ones. Many of these meetings were personally attend-
ed by management.

Investor Relations also makes every effort to engage in direct contact
with private investors. The IR team sought dialogue with this target
group on many occasions, such as events organised by shareholder
associations. Another key platform for exchanges with private share-
holders was the IR stall at TUI's Annual General Meeting. TUI also uses
a new website to address its private investors. Apart from the compre-
hensive information that is made available, online, quarterly updates
are hosted via conference cells and can be listened live through our
Investor Relations website.



Information required under takeover law __

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER

TAKEOVER LAW

pursuant to sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code

(HGB) and explanatory report

The subscribed capital of TUI AG consists of no-par value shares, each
representing an equal share of the capital stock. As a proportion of the
capital stock, the value of each share is around €2.56.

The subscribed capital of TUI AG, registered in the commercial registers
of the district courts of Berlin-Charlottenburg and Hanover, consisted
of 587,038,187 shares at the end of financial year 2015/16 (previous
year 586,603,217 shares) and totalled €1,500,739,294.83. Each share
confers one vote at the Annual General Meeting.

RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING RIGHTS AND SHARE TRANSFERS
The Executive Board of TUI AG is not aware of any restrictions on voting
rights or the transfer of shares.

EQUITY INTERESTS EXCEEDING 10 % OF THE VOTING RIGHTS
The Executive Board of TUI AG has been notified of the following direct
or indirect equity interests reaching or exceeding 10 % of the voting
rights:

Alexey Mordashov, Russia, notified us on 25 November 2015 pursuant
to section 21 (1) of the German Securities Trading Act that the voting
shares in TUI AG, Hanover, Germany, attributable to him exceeded the
15% threshold on 20 November 2015. As per that date, voting shares
totalling 15.02 % (or 88,146,961 voting rights) were attributable to Alexey
Mordashov pursuant to section 22 sentence 1 no. 1 of the German Secur-
ities Trading Act.

At the end of financial year 2015/16, around 81 % of TUI shares were in
free float. Around 6 % of all TUI shares were held by private shareholders,
around 72 % by institutional investors and financial institutions, and
around 22 % by strategic investors. According to an analysis of the share
register, most shares are held by investors in the European Union.

There have not been any shares, nor are there any shares, with special
control rights.

Where TUI AG grants shares to employees under its employee share
programme, the shares are directly transferred to the employees with a
lock-up period. Beneficiaries are free to directly exercise the control
rights to which employee shares entitle them, in just the same way as
other shareholders, in line with legal requirements and the provisions of
the Articles of Association.

The appointment and removal of Executive Board members is based on
sections 84 et seq. of the German Stock Corporation Act in combination
with section 31 of the German Codetermination Act. Amendments to
the Articles of Association are based on the provisions of sections 179
et seq. of the German Stock Corporation Act in combination with sec-
tion 24 of the Articles of Association of TUI AG.

The Annual General Meeting of 9 February 2016 authorised TUI AG's
Executive Board to acquire own shares of up to 5% of the capital stock.
The authorisation will expire on 8 August 2017. To date, the option to
acquire own shares has not been used.

Conditional capital of €150.0m was resolved by the Annual General
Meeting of 9 February 2016. Bonds with conversion options or warrants
as well as profit-sharing rights and income bonds (with or without fixed
terms) of up to a nominal amount of €2.0bn may be issued up to
8 February 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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— Information required under takeover law

The Annual General Meeting of 13 February 2013 adopted a resolution
to create authorised capital for the issue of employee shares worth
€10.0m. The Executive Board of TUI AG is authorised to use this ap-
proved capital by 12 February 2018 in one or several transactions by
issuing employee shares against cash contribution. In the completed
financial year, 434,970 new employee shares were issued, resulting in
authorised capital of around €8.3 m at the balance sheet date.

The Annual General Meeting of 28 October 2014 adopted a resolution
to create authorised capital for the issue of new shares against cash
contribution worth €18.0 m in order to be able to fulfil claims for shares
in TUI Travel granted by TUI Travel to its employees in the form of new
shares in TUI AG. The authorisation for this approved capital ends on
27 October 2019.

The Annual General Meeting of 9 February 2016 adopted a resolution to
create authorised capital for the issue of new registered shares against
cash contribution worth a maximum of €150.0 m. The authorisation will
expire on 8 February 2021.

The Annual General Meeting on 9 February 2016 also resolved to create
conditional capital to issue new shares of €570.0 m against cash contri-
butions or contributions in kind. The issue of new shares against contri-
butions in kind has been limited to €300.0 m. The authorisation for this
conditional capital will expire on 8 February 2021.

Some of TUI AG's outstanding financing instruments contain change of
control clauses. A change of control occurs in particular if a third partly
directly or indirectly acquires control over at least 50 % or the majority
of the voting shares in TUI AG.

In the event of a change of control, the holders of the fixed-interest bond
worth €300.0m from October 2016 (and the bond worth €300.0 m from
September 2014 repaid in November 2016) must be offered a buyback.

For the syndicated credit line worth €1.75bn, of which €120.5m had
been used via bank guarantees as at the balance sheet date, a right of
termination by the lenders has been agreed in the event of a change of
control. This also applies to several bilateral guarantee lines with a total
volume of £98.5m, concluded with various insurance companies. At the
balance sheet date, an amount of 48.6 m pounds had been used.

Beyond this, there are no agreements in guarantee, leasing, option or
other financial contracts that might cause material early redemption
obligations that would be of significant relevance for the Group's liquidity.

Apart from the financing instruments mentioned above, a framework
agreement between the Riu family and TUI AG includes a change of con-
trol clause. A change of control occurs if a shareholder group represents
a predefined majority of AGM attendees or if one third of the share-
holder representatives on the Supervisory Board are attributable to a
shareholder group. In the event of a change of control, the Riu family is
entitled to acquire at least 20 % and at most all shares held by TUI in
RIUSAII S.A.

A similar agreement concerning a change of control at TUI AG has been
concluded with the El Chiaty Group. Here, too, a change of control occurs
if a shareholder group represents a predefined majority of AGM attendees
or if one third of the shareholder representatives on the Supervisory
Board are attributable to a shareholder group. In that case, the El Chiaty
Group is entitled to acquire at least 15 % and at most all shares held by
TUl in the joint hotel companies in Egypt and the United Arab Emirates.

A change of control agreement has also been concluded for the joint
venture TUI Cruises between Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd and TUI AG
for the event that a change of control occurs in TUI AG. The agreement
gives the partner the right to demand termination of the joint venture
and to purchase the stake held by TUI AG at a price which is lower than
the selling price of their own stake.

Compensation agreements between the Company and Executive Board
members or employees in the event of a takeover bid have not been
concluded.



REPORT ON

Report on subsequent events __

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 26 October 2016, TUI AG issued a fixed-interest bond with a coupon
of 2,125 % p.a. and a nominal volume of €300.0 m. The bond was issued
at a price of 99,415 % in denominations with nominal values of €100,000.
It will mature on 26 October 2021.

On 18 November 2016, TUI AG redeemed the fixed-interest bond issued
on 26 September 2014, originally maturing on 1 October 2019, ahead of
maturity. The bond was redeemed at a price of 102.25% plus accrued
interest. The cash inflow of €298.2m received by TUI AG from issuing
the bond on 26 October 2016 was used to redeem the bond.

On 21 June 2016, TUI had concluded an agreement with Transat A.T. Inc.
to acquire tour operator Transat France S.A., France, and its subsidiaries
for a purchase price of €64.9 m. Following regulatory approvals, the ac-

quisition was completed on 31 October 2016. For further details on
the acquisition, reference is made to the section on Acquisitions —
Divestments — Discontinued Operations.

On 23 November 2016, the supervisory board of TUl AG approved the
agreement of a term sheet with Etihad Aviation Group. This agreement
is the basis for the acquisition of a minority share in a company through
the contribution of the shares in TUIfly GmbH. The Etihad Group will also
invest in this company. The minority share is likely to be accounted for
at equity. It is expected that the contractual negotiations will be finalised
within the next few weeks. The transaction is subject to approval of the
relevant aviation and competition authorities.
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Executive Board and Supervisory Board
Corporate Governance Report/
Statement on Corporate Governance

(as part of the Management Report)

Remuneration Report

Wine growing has a long history on the volcanic
island Lanzarote. And yet more and more land-
owners are pulling out of this laborious activity.
Working with local partners, the TUI Care
Foundation is keeping tradition alive, combined
with organic cultivation techniques to protect
the natural landscape.

READ MORE ABOUT SUSTAINABILITY AT TUI IN THE
MAGAZINE UNDER “TAKING RESPONSIBILITY"

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FURTHER INFORMATION




__ Executive Board and Supervisory Board

Executive Board and Supervisory Board

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Name Function/Occupation Location
Prof. Dr Klaus Mangold Chairman of the Supervisory Board of TUI AG Stuttgart
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Rothschild GmbH
Frank Jakobi® Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board of TUI AG Hamburg
Travel Agent
Sir Michael Hodgkinson Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board of TUI AG London
Andreas Barczewski' Aircraft Captain Hanover
Peter Bremme' Regional Head of the Special Division Hamburg
of ver.di — Vereinte Dienstleistungsgewerkschaft
Prof. Dr Edgar Ernst President of Deutsche Prufstelle fir Rechnungslegung (DPR) Berlin
Wolfgang Flintermann (since 13 June 2016)'  Director Financial Accounting Group at TUI AG GroRburgwedel
Angelika Gifford (since 9 February 2016) Vice President Hewlett Packard Enterprise and Director Software Germany Kranzberg
Valerie Gooding Member of supervisory bodies in different companies Weybridge
Dr Dierk Hirschel® Business unit manager of the trade-unition ver.di — Vereinte Dienstleistungsgewerkschaft Berlin
Janis Kong Member of supervisory bodies in different companies London
Peter Long (since 9 February 2016) Chairman Royal Mail Group PLC London
Coline McConville Member of supervisory bodies in different companies London
Alexey Mordashov (since 9 February 2016) Chairman Board of Directors of PAO Severstal Moscow
Michael Pénipp? Hotel Manager Hanover
Timothy Powell Member of supervisory bodies in different companies London
(until 9 February 2016)
Wilfried H. Rau Director Group Audit Hanover

(deceased on 30 March 2016)

Carmen Riu Giiell

Managing Director RIUSA II S.A.

Palma de Mallorca

Carola Schwirn' Department Coordinator in the Transportation Division Berlin

of ver.di — Vereinte Dienstleistungsgewerkschaft
Maxim Shemetov (until 9 February 2016) Head of Investment Management, Travel Sector, ZAO Sever Group Moscow
Anette Strempel’ Travel Agent Hemmingen
Prof. Christian Strenger Member of supervisory bodies in different companies Frankfurt/Main
(until 9 February 2016)
Ortwin Strubelt! Travel Agent Hamburg
Stefan Weinhofer! (since 9 February 2016) International Employee Relations Coordinator at TUI AG Wien
Marcell Witt! Referee of Group and European works council of TUI AG Hanover

1 Representative of the employees

2 |Information refers to 30 September 2016 or date of resignation from the Supervisory

Board of TUI AG in financial year 2015/16.
3 Chairman

a) Membership in supervisory boards within the meaning of section 125 of the German

Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

b) Membership in comparable German and non-German bodies of companies within the
meaning of section 125 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)



Executive Board and Supervisory Board __

Initial Appointment

Appointed until AGM  Other Board Memberships?

Number of TUI AG shares

(direct and indirect)
on 30 September 2016/
Date of withdrawal

7 Jan 2010 2021 a) Continental AG b) Alstom S.A. 0
Baiterek Holding JSC
Ernst & Young
Rothschild GmbH3
15 Aug 2007 2021 590
11 Dec 2014 2021 b) Keolis (UK) Limited3 7,980
Keolis Amey Docklands Ltd.
World Airport Partners GmbH
10 May 2006 2021 a) TUIfly GmbH 0
2 Jul 2014 2021 a) TUV Nord AG 0
9 Feb 2011 2021 a) Deutsche Postbank AG 0
DMG Mori AG
VONOVIA SE
13 Jun 2016 2021 a) TUI Deutschland GmbH 0
Deutscher Reisepreis-
Sicherungsverein V.V.a.G.
26 Mar 2012 2021 a) ProSiebenSat1 Media SE b) Rothschild & Co 4,100
11 Dec 2014 2020 b) Premier Farnell3 994
Vodafone PLC
16 Jan 2015 2021 a) DZzZ-Bank AG 0
11 Dec 2014 2020 b) Bristol Airport Ltd. Portmeirion Group PLC 5,985
Copenhagen Airport South West Airports Ltd.
9 Feb 2016 2021 b) Royal Mail Group PLC3 Parques Reunidos Servicios 1,207,317
Countrywide PLC Centrales S.A.
11 Dec 2014 2020 b) Fevertree Drinks PLC Travis Perkins PLC 0
Inchape PLC
9 Feb 2016 2021 b) AO ,Severstal Management"3 ZAO SVEZA3 113,790,116
OAO ,Power Machines"3 Nordgold N.V.
17 Apr 2013 2021 a) TUI Deutschland GmbH b) TUI BKK 292
MER-Pensionskasse V.V.a.G.
11 Dec 2014 b) Computacenter PLC 2,749
Supergroup PLC
3 Dec 2014 a) TUI Deutschland GmbH
14 Feb 2005 2021 b) Hotel San Francisco S. A. Riu Hotels S.A. 19,854,616
Productores Hoteleros Reunidos S.A. RIUSA II S.A.
1 Aug 2014 2021 0
14 Mar 2014 0
2 Jan 2009 2021 1,280
9 Feb 2011 a) Deutsche Asset & Wealth Management b) The Germany Funds, Inc.3 0
Investment GmbH
ItN Nanovation AG
3 Apr 2009 2021 3,355
9 Feb 2016 2021 b) TUI Austria Holding GmbH 0
16 Jan 2015 1,850
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__ Executive Board and Supervisory Board

EXECUTIVE BOARD'

Number of TUI AG

shares (direct and

indirect) on
30 Sep 2016/

Name Department Other Board Memberships Date of withdrawal
Friedrich Joussen CEO 278,081
(Age 53)
Member of the Executive Board
since Oct 2012,
CEO of the Executive Board
from Feb 2013,
Joint-CEO since December 2014
CEO since February 2016
Current appointment until October 2020
Peter Long Joint-CEO b) Royal Mail Group PLC2 1,207,317
(Age 64)
Member of the Executive Board since 2007,
Joint-CEO
December 2014 until February 2016
Horst Baier Finance a) TUI Deutschland GmbH?2 b) RIUSAII S.A2 40,717
(Age 59) TUI Canada Holdings Inc.
Member of the Executive Board since 2007 Sunwing Travel Group Inc.
Current appointment until November 2018
David Burling Northern Region b) TUI Travel Holdings Ltd. TUI Travel Overseas Holdings Ltd. 18,300
(Age 48) Airlines TUI Travel Ltd. TUI Canada Holdings Inc.
Member of the Executive Board Hotel Purchasing First Choice Holidays Ltd. TUI Northern Europe Ltd.
since June 2015 Sunwing Travel Group Inc. TUI Travel Group Management
Current appointment until May 2018 Thomson Travel Group Services Ltd.

(Holdings) Ltd. TUI UK Ltd.

TTG (Jersey) Ltd. TUI UK Transport Ltd.
Sebastian Ebel Central Region a) TUI Cruises GmbH b) RIUSAIIS.A. 250
(Age 53) Hotels TUIfly GmbH TUI Spain S.A.
Member of the Executive Board Cruises BRW Beteiligungs AG
since December 2014 TUI Destination Services Eintracht Braunschweig
Current appointment until November 2017 IT GmbH & Co KG2

Eves Information Technology AG2
Dr Elke Eller Human Resources a) NordLB 12,545
(Age 54) Personnel Director TUI Deutschland GmbH
Member of the Executive Board TUIfly GmbH
since October 2015 TUI Nederland N.V.
Current appointment until October 2018
William Waggott Specialist Group b) TUI Nederland N.V. 1,089
(Age 53) Hotelsbeds Group TUI Nederland Holding N.V.
Member of the Executive Board
December 2014 until June 2016
" Information refers to 30 Sep 2016 or date of resignation from the Excecutive Board a) Membership in Supervisory Boards required by law within the meaning of section 125

in financial year 2015/16.
2 Chairman

of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)

b) Membership in comparable Boards of domestic and foreign companies within the
meaning of section 125 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)



Corporate Governance Report/Statement on Corporate Governance (as part of the Management Report) —_

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report/Statement on Corporate Governance

(as part of the Management Report)

The actions of TUI AG’s management and oversight bodies are deter-
mined by the principles of good and responsible corporate governance.

The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board comprehensively dis-
cussed Corporate Governance issues in financial year 2015/16. In this
chapter, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board provide their
report on Corporate Governance in the Company pursuant to sub-
section 3.10 of the German Corporate Governance Code (the German
Code, DCGK) and section 289a of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
as well as Disclosure and Transparency Rule (DTR) 7.2 and Listing Rule
(LR) 9.8.7R.

In December 2016, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board
jointly submitted the declaration of compliance for 2016 pursuant to
section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act. The declaration was
made permanently accessible to the general public on TUI AG's website
in December 2016.

@ www.tuigroup.com/de-de/investoren/corporate-governance

WORDING OF THE DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE FOR 2016
“In accordance with section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act,
the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of TUI AG hereby declare:

The recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code in its
version of 5 May 2015 have been fully observed since the last annual
declaration of compliance was submitted in December 2015.”

As a stock corporation company under German law, TUI AG's Executive
Board and Supervisory Board are obliged to submit a declaration of
compliance with the German Corporate Governance Code pursuant to
section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act

@ www.dcgk.de/en/code.html

At the time of the merger TUI AG had announced it would comply with
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the UK Code)

@ https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Publications/Corporate-Governance/
UK-Corporate-Governance-Code-2014.pdf

to the extent practicable. In many respects, the requirements of the
German Code and the UK Code are similar. However, there are certain
aspects which are not compatible (in some cases due to the different
legal regimes for German and UK companies). Therefore some deviations
from best practice in the UK have been necessary.

Under the German Stock Corporation Act, the legislation applicable to
TUI AG, a two-tier board system is mandatory (as explained in the
merger documentation; see below section Functioning of the Executive
and Supervisory Board). The two-tier board structure is different to the
UK unitary board structure on which the UK Code is based. Some of the
principles of composition and operation of the boards of a German
stock corporation also differ from those of a UK company (for example,
there is no Company Secretary). For this reason, TUI AG has set out
below circumstances where it considers not to comply with the UK
Code. TUI AG has also explained those instances where it considers not
to be compliant with the UK Code in the literal or legal sense but where
TUI AG is convinced that it complies with the spirit and meaning of the
UK Code. Sub-headings refer to sections of the UK Code for ease of
reference for investors.

Pursuant to DTR 7.2 and LR 9.8.7R, the Executive Board and the Super-
visory Board therefore declare as follows:

WORDING OF THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
"Throughout the reporting period, TUI AG has complied with the pro-
visions of the UK Code, including its main principles, except as set out
and explained below.

o8

.
e

Vo SRR

FURTHER INFORMATION

>
L
=
<
=
(%]
=]
<
O
Z
<<
=
e
o
w
=
<
(a)
i
Q
-,
-
©
4




__ Corporate Governance Report/Statement on Corporate Governance (as part of the Management Report)

IDENTIFICATION OF SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

(A1.2, A4.1)

Under German law and the German Code, there is no concept of a “Senior
Independent Director”. Instead, shareholders may raise any issues at
the Annual General Meeting (AGM). In this forum, the Executive Board
and, with respect to certain matters, the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board are available to address any issues and are legally obliged to
provide adequate responses.

Outside the AGM, shareholders may approach the Executive Board, in
particular the CEO or the CFO, or, in exceptional cases, the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board or any of his Deputies. Sir Michael Hodgkinson,
who was the Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent Director of
TUI Travel PLC before the merger, was re-elected as Second Deputy
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of TUI AG in February 2016 along-
side Frank Jakobi (First Deputy Chairman who, under the German Co-
Determination Act, must be an Employee Representative).

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES - CHAIRMAN & CHIEF
EXECUTIVE (A2.1)

The separation of the roles of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
(Prof. Klaus Mangold) and the CEO (Friedrich Joussen) is clearly defined
under German law as part of the two-tier board structure. Therefore,
no further division of responsibilities is required and both the Executive
Board and the Supervisory Board consider that TUI AG complies with
the spirit of the UK Code.

INDEPENDENCE OF SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS (B1.1)
Under the UK Code, the Board must identify in the annual report each
non-executive director it considers to be “independent” for the purposes
of the UK Code. As explained above, the members of the Supervisory
Board are considered to be non-executive directors for the purposes of
the UK Code. Under the UK Code, persons are “independent” if they are
independent in character and judgement and if there are no relation-
ships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear to affect,
their judgement. TUI AG does not, however, extend its independence
disclosures to employee representatives on the Supervisory Board (for
a detailed explanation of shareholder and employee representations
and the underlying considerations, please see below).

The Supervisory Board has determined that six of its nine shareholder
representative members (excluding the Chairman, as required by the
UK Code) are independent for the purposes of the UK Code. The share-
holder representatives of the Supervisory Board considered to be inde-
pendent are: Prof. Edgar Ernst, Valerie Gooding, Sir Michael Hodgkinson,
Janis Kong, Coline McConville and Angelika Gifford. The Chairman
was independent on election in 2011 and re-election in February 2016 and
is still considered independent (Prof. Mangold also was independent
when he was elected to the Supervisory Board in January 2010).

The members of the Supervisory Board not considered to be independent
for the purposes of the UK Code are Carmen Riu Guell, Alexey Mordashov
and Peter Long.

In reaching its determination, the Supervisory Board has considered, in
particular, the factors set out below.

PERFORMANCE-RELATED PAY

Until the end of financial year 2014, all Supervisory Board members
received a performance-related pay element in addition to their fixed
pay, as approved by shareholders at the 2013 AGM and in line with a
specific recommendation of the German Code at that time.

This recommendation in the German Code has meanwhile been with-
drawn, and at the 2016 AGM shareholders approved the replacement of
the performance-related pay element with a fixed fee with retroactive
effect from the beginning of financial year 2015/16.

SHAREHOLDER AND EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES

The Supervisory Board of TUI AG consists of ten members who are
elected by shareholders at AGMs (the “Shareholder Representatives”)
and ten members who represent the employees of TUI AG (the “Employee
Representatives”). This differs from UK practice where only those board
members representing major shareholders are typically referred to as
"Shareholder Representatives” and are not considered independent
under the UK Code because of their link to a significant shareholder.

In TUI AG, only Carmen Riu-Guell and Alexey Mordashov are connected
to significant shareholders, namely Riu Hotels (approx. 3.4 %) and Alexey
Mordashov (approx. 19.3 %), respectively. It should also be noted that
joint ventures exist between TUI AG and both Riu Hotels S.A. and TUI
Russia & CIS (in which a majority controlling interest is held by Mr
Mordashov) (for further details see page 109 of the Annual Report). Until
his election to the Supervisory Board in February 2016, Peter Long was
Co-CEO of TUI AG from December 2014 to February 2016. Prior to that,
he was a member of the Executive Board of TUI AG from 2007 and CEO
of TUI Travel PLC. Therefore, neither Ms Riu-Guell nor Mr Mordashov nor
Mr Long are considered independent for the purposes of the UK Code.

Therefore, excluding the Chairman (as required by the UK Code), six of
the nine shareholder representatives are considered independent for the
purposes of the UK Code.

Seven of the ten employee representatives of the Supervisory Board are
elected by the employees of TUI Group entitled to vote. Three employee
representatives are nominated by a German trade union (ver.di).

Under the UK Code, directors who are or have been employees of the
Group in the last five years or who participate in the Group's pension
arrangements would generally not be considered independent. In the
UK, directors with an employment relationship are normally current or
former executives. By contrast, under German law, employee represent-
atives of the Supervisory Board must be employees of the Group, and
must be elected by the employees without any involvement of the Exec-
utive or Supervisory Boards. In addition, the employment agreement
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of employee representatives may only be terminated in exceptional
circumstances.

The employee representatives may also participate in Group pension
schemes as is normal for employees and in their capacity as employees.

Union representatives are nominated, and employed by, the trade union
but are still classified as employee representatives. The trade union
representatives are nominated, and may only be removed from the
Supervisory Board, by their respective union and neither the Executive
nor the Supervisory Board has any role in their appointment or removal.

HALF THE BOARD SHOULD BE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (B1.2)

Since, for the purpose of the UK Code, only the shareholder represent-
atives on the Supervisory Board are taken into account, more than half of
its members are considered independent with six independent members
(excluding the Chairman of the Supervisory Board).

NOMINATION COMMITTEE - COMPOSITION AND
RESPONSIBILITIES (B2.1)

The role of the Nomination Committee in a typical UK company is ful-
filled in TUI AG by two Committees of the Supervisory Board: Under the
Rules of Procedure for the Supervisory Board and its Committees
(which are equivalent to the Terms of Reference in the UK) the Nomin-
ation Committee considers and proposes suitable candidates for election
as shareholder representatives on the Supervisory Board by the share-
holders at the AGM. The Presiding Committee determines the require-
ments and remuneration for any new appointments to the Executive
Board and recommends suitable candidates to the Supervisory Board.
On that basis, the Supervisory Board appoints Executive Board members.
This approach is different from the UK where all director appointments
are approved by shareholders at the AGM.

However, as is common practice in Germany, at each AGM shareholders
are asked to decide whether they approve the actions of the Executive
Board and Supervisory Board members during the past financial year.
Since the AGM 2015, in the light of UK practice TUI AG has changed its
procedure to allow a separate vote on each individual Executive Board
and Supervisory Board member, as customary in the UK. This approach
was also used at the AGM in February 2016. TUI AG intends to continue
this practice. Accordingly, the Supervisory Board considers that TUI AG
complies with the spirit of the UK Code to the extent practicable.

There is no requirement under German law or the German Code for the
majority of the Nomination Committee members to be independent. Of
the four members of the Nomination Committee, two are representatives

of significant shareholders (Carmen Riu Guell and Alexey Mordashov)
and therefore not independent for the purposes of the UK Code. The
remaining two members are Sir Michael Hodgkinson and Prof. Klaus
Mangold (Chairman) who are both independent. Therefore TUI AG is not
compliant with the UK Code which requires a majority of the Nomination
Committee to be independent. However, TUI AG considers that the
current membership of the Nomination Committee provides a strong and
experienced pre-selection of Supervisory Board shareholder representa-
tion members, while keeping the Committee to a manageable size.

The Rules of Procedure for the Supervisory Board and its Committees
(including the Audit Committee) are not made available for the public.
Therefore TUI AG is not compliant with this provision of the UK Code.

LENGTH OF TENURE FOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (B2.3)

In accordance with German law and common practice, shareholder
representatives are generally elected for five-year terms. Employee
representatives are also generally appointed for five years. Therefore,
neither Executive nor Supervisory Board members are re-elected or
re-appointed annually by shareholders. TUl AG therefore does not
comply with this provision of the UK Code.

Under the UK Code, any term beyond six years should be subject to
rigorous review and no term should extend beyond nine years (as it
could affect the independence of the Non-Executive Director). However,
in the German Corporate Governance context, a longer length of service
is quite normal as Supervisory Board members are usually elected for
five years and re-election is common.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE SECTION IN THE ANNUAL

REPORT & ACCOUNTS (B2.4)

For the activities of the Nomination Committee, see page 15 which is
part of the Chairman’s letter to shareholders.

During the year, neither a personnel consultancy nor external advertise-
ments were used to search any potential Supervisory Board members.
Succession planning for management members below Executive Board
level is carried out by the Executive Board. The Presiding Committee is
only responsible for succession planning for the Executive Board.

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF APPOINTMENTS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (B3.2)

The terms and conditions of Supervisory Board members' appointments
follow the provisions of the German Stock Corporation Act and the
Articles of Association of TUI AG. The Articles of Association are avail-
able on the website at www.tuigroup.com/en-en/investors/corporate-
governance.
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EXTERNAL NON-EXECUTIVE/CHAIRMAN ROLES (B3.3)

Peter Long was Joint-CEO of TUI AG since the merger from 1 Octo-
ber 2015 until the close of the AGM 2016 on 9 February 2016. From
1 September 2015, Peter Long was also Chairman of Royal Mail PLC.
This appointment led to a short period of overlap during which TUI AG
was not compliant with the UK Code.

ADVICE AND SERVICES OF THE COMPANY SECRETARY (B5.2)
There is no specific role of Company Secretary in German companies.
However, Executive and Supervisory Board members have access to the
Board Office of TUI AG if they need any advice or services. The Board
Office acts as an interface in corporate matters for the Executive and
Supervisory Board members and is responsible for ensuring that the
requisite processes and procedures are in place governing all Executive
and Supervisory Board meetings (i.e. preparation of agendas, minuting
of meetings and ensuring compliance with German and UK law, as ap-
propriate, and with recommendations for corporate governance). The
Board Office also supports the Chairman, the CEQ, the CFO and the Chair-
men of the Audit Committee and the Strategy Committee. Executive and
Supervisory Board members also have access to legal advice via the
Group Legal Director and the Board Office. The Supervisory Board can
also approach the Executive Board directly for specific advice on any
matters. Accordingly, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board
consider that TUI AG complies with the spirit of the UK Code.

BOARD PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (B6)

The performance of each individual Executive Board member is evaluat-
ed annually by the Supervisory Board for the annual performance-based
remuneration. In this context, the Supervisory Board also reviews the
individual member’s overall performance as part of the Executive Board.
However, no external performance evaluation is done for the Executive
Board.

It is not customary to conduct annual reviews of the Supervisory
Board’s efficiency. Each Supervisory Board member can give feedback to
the Chairman, the Deputy Chairmen or the Supervisory Board as a
whole as and when appropriate or required.

External evaluation is limited to Supervisory Board members and is
performed by means of individual interviews and anonymous reviews.
Consolidated results are shared with the entire Supervisory Board and
appropriate actions are suggested and discussed as appropriate. The
last external review of the Supervisory Board was undertaken during 2015
by Board Consultants International (Hamburg/Germany). The results

were presented during the meeting of the Supervisory Board in Decem-
ber 2015. Board Consultants International has no other connection
with TUI AG.

The appraisal of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board is covered
during the external evaluation process and Executive Board members
are invited to contribute to the process.

ANNUAL RE-ELECTION BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE AGM (B7.1)
None of the Executive or Supervisory Board members is re-elected
annually. However, as noted above, in light of the UK Code and UK best
practice, TUI AG voluntarily puts individual resolutions approving the
actions of each Executive and Supervisory Board member to the AGM
resolving on the annual financial statements for the previous year, and
TUI AG intends to continue this practice.

The end of appointment periods for Supervisory Board members are
disclosed in the table following the Chairman'’s letter on page 114. In
respect of the shareholder representatives, the Supervisory Board —
based on the recommendations of its Nomination Committee — proposed
the re-election of Prof. Klaus Mangold, Sir Michael Hodgkinson, Carmen
Riu Guell and Prof. Edgar Ernst to the AGM 2016. Peter Long, Angelika
Gifford and Alexey Mordashov were also proposed for election by the
shareholders. Biographical details were included in the invitation to
the AGM to enable a well-informed decision by the shareholders. Addi-
tionally, the curricula vitae of all Executive and Supervisory Board
members are published at www.tuigroup.com/en-en/investors/corporate-
governance.

Wolfgang Flintermann was appointed as member of the Supervisory
Board of TUI AG by the court of registration with effect from 13 June 2016
to replace Wilfried Rau, who had passed away on 30 March 2016.

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE ANNUAL REPORT

AND ACCOUNTS (C1.1)

In a German stock corporation the Executive Board is responsible for
drafting the Annual Report & Accounts (ARA). According to section 243 (2)
of the German Commercial Act (HGB) the ARA must be clearly arranged
and should present a realistic picture of the Company’s economic situ-
ation. This is equivalent to the UK Code requirement for the ARA to be
fair, balanced and understandable. Although this assessement has not
been delegated to the Audit Committee (C3.4), the Executive Board is
convinced that this ARA satisfies both requirements.
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ESTABLISHMENT AND OPERATION OF REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (D2), REMUNERATION (D1)

In the German governance structure there is no separate Remuneration
Committee. The remuneration of the Executive Board is under involve-
ment of the employee representatives monitored and agreed by the
Supervisory Board based on recommendations from the Presiding
Committee, which is governed by the Supervisory Board Rules of
Procedure, as referred to above.

Supervisory Board remuneration and the remuneration of Board
Committee members is governed by the Articles of Association as
resolved on by the shareholders at the AGM.

There are no clawback or malus provisions in the service contracts of
Executive Board members. Such provisions would be unusual (and
probably unenforceable) in Germany. However, there are different
contractual and statutory provisions that may allow for a reduction or
forfeiture of remuneration components or allow TUI AG to claim damages
from Executive Board members. First, the service contracts of Executive
Board members provide for forfeiture of the annual bonus and the LTIP
if TUI AG terminates the service contract for cause without notice before
the end of the one year performance period in the case of the annual
bonus or before the end of the respective performance period of the
LTIP. Second, the Supervisory Board may, under certain exceptional cir-
cumstances, reduce Executive Board compensation in case of a deteri-
oration of the economic situation of TUI AG. Third, Executive Board
members may be liable for damages under the German Stock Corpor-
ation Act in case of a breach of their duties of care or fiduciary duties.

See the Directors’' Remuneration Report for full details on Executive
and Supervisory Board member’s remuneration.

@ Remuneration Report from page 127

COMPENSATION COMMITMENTS IN EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'
SERVICE CONTRACTS (D1.4)

The principles that apply for departing Executive Directors are detailed
in the Directors” Remuneration Report (see page 136). The terms are set
out in the Executive Directors' contracts of employment as approved by
the Supervisory Board and take into account the various circumstances
in which a director may leave. These include maximum limits on the
amounts payable on termination. Given that in Germany contracts are
issued for a fixed term, termination payments may be greater than the
one year recommended in the UK Code. In no case is the amount payable
on early termination higher than the amount that would be payable for
the outstanding term of the service contract at the time of termination.

NOTICE PERIODS FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (D1.5)

Executive Board appointments are normally for a fixed term of three to
five years and therefore do not comply with the UK Code which stipulates
that notice or contract periods should be set at one year or less. How-
ever, the contracts include maximum limits on the amounts payable on
termination.

@ See comments on D1.4 and Remuneration Report from page 127
DIALOGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS (E1)

It is not common practice in German companies for Supervisory Board
members to make themselves available for meetings with major share-
holders. This preserves the separation of duties between the Supervisory
and Executive Boards. The AGM is considered the appropriate forum for
shareholders to raise any topics for discussion. Nevertheless, there is a
move in Germany to allow under the German Code for an appropriate
exchange on Supervisory Board matters between the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and shareholders. There have meetings between
the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman (shareholder representative) of
the Supervisory Board and shareholders and investors in the past (most
recently in September 2015).

The Supervisory Board receives feedback from the Chairman and Deputy
Chairman (shareholder representative) and Executive Board members
following meetings with major shareholders or investors. Additionally, a
monthly Investor Relations Report and event-driven assessmants of
brokers are forwarded to the Executive and the Supervisory Board. They
contain updates on the share price development, analyses by sellers
and feedback and assessments from investors.
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The following meetings between management and investors (attended
by the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial Officer and
members of the Investor Relations team, where appropriate) took place
during the year ended 30 September 2016:

DIALOGUE WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Date Event Attendees
November 2015  Global Income Corporate Day London HB
December 2015  Roadshow Edinburgh FJ, HB
Roadshow London FJ,HB
January 2016 German Investment Seminar HB
German Corporate Conference HB
March 2016 Roadshow Amsterdam HB
April 2016 Barclays Leisure and Transport Conference HB
Investor Dinner London FJ, HB
MS Roundtable FJ
May 2016 Roadshow UK FJ, HB
Roadshow Copenhagen HB
Barclays Select Corporate Day Stockholm HB
Roadshow Zurich HB
June 2016 Roadshow Frankfurt HB
Roadshow Paris HB
Roadshow US FJ, HB
dbAccess German, Swiss and Austrian Conference HB
July 2016 Investor Meeting — Invesco FJ, HB
August 2016 Coba Sector Conference 2016 HB
September 2016  Berenberg & Goldman Sachs GCC Conference HB

Key: Friedrich Joussen (FJ), Horst Baier (HB)

Key topics discussed at meetings between shareholders and Executive
Board members included:

Development of business operations in Tourism
Exogenous impacts on the business model
Growth strategy of the integrated tourism group

Accordingly, TUI AG considers that it complies with the spirit of the
UK Code.

AGM RESOLUTION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (E2.1)

It is not common practice in Germany to pass a resolution at the AGM to
approve the financial statements and consolidated financial statements.
Therefore, this was not done at the AGM in 2016 and it is not intended
to do so at the AGM in 2017. However, as required by German law the first
item on the agenda of TUI AG's AGM is the presentation of the financial
statements and consolidated financial statements to the AGM. Under
this item, the Executive Board will explain the financial statements and
consolidated financial statements and the Chairman will explain, in
particular, the report of the Supervisory Board (including this UK Corpor-
ate Governance Statement). Shareholders will have the opportunity to
raise questions. Questions are typically raised, as is normal in the AGMs

of German companies, and, as a general rule, answers must be provided
under German law.

This is the standard practice for a German company and is in full com-
pliance with the German Code. While the lack of a resolution to approve
the Annual Report & Accounts is not in compliance with the UK Code,
TUI AG considers that the arrangements afford shareholders with suffi-
cient opportunity to raise any questions or concerns that they may have
in relation to the Annual Report & Accounts, and to receive answers, in
the AGM. Accordingly, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board
consider that TUI AG complies with the spirit of the UK Code to the
extent practicable.

CIRCULATION OF AGM DOCUMENTATION TO SHAREHOLDERS
(E.2.4)

The 2016 AGM of TUI AG was held on 9 February 2016. As required by
German law, the notice convening TUI AG's 2016 AGM (including the
agenda and the voting proposals of the Executive Board and the Super-
visory Board) was published in the Federal Gazette in Germany on
30 December 2015. Shareholders then had the right under German law
to request additional agenda items at any time up to 30 days before the
AGM. In accordance with German practice, once this deadline had expired
the combined invitation and explanatory notes relating to the AGM
were sent to shareholders on 14 January 2016, which was less than the
20 working days before the AGM recommended in the UK Code (but more
than the 21 days' notice required by German law). However, in addition
to the original publication of the Invitation in the Federal Gazette in
Germany, the combined invitation and explanatory notes relating to
the AGM was published on TUI AG's website on 30 December 2015. As
no additional agenda items were requested by shareholders, this was in
the same form as the final combined invitation and explanatory notes
relating to the AGM later sent to shareholders. Further, TUI AG’s Annual
Report and Accounts for the financial year to 30 September 2015 was
published on 10 December 2015, significantly more than 20 working
days before the 2016 AGM. Accordingly, TUI AG considers that it complied
with the spirit of the UK Code requirements. A similar timetable will be
followed in relation to the 2017 AGM.”
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FUNCTIONING OF THE EXECUTIVE AND SUPERVISORY BOARDS
TUI AG is a company under German law. One of the fundamental prin-
ciples of German stock corporation law is the dual management system
involving two bodies, the Executive Board in charge of managing the
company and the Supervisory Board in charge of monitoring the com-
pany. TUI AG's Executive Board and Supervisory Board cooperate closely
and in a spirit of trust in managing and overseeing the Company, with
strict separation between the two bodies in terms of their membership
and competences. Both bodies are obliged to ensure the continued exist-
ence of the Company and sustainable creation of added value in harmony
with the principles of the social market economy.

TUI AG's Executive Board comprised five members as at the closing date
30 September 2016. The Executive Board is responsible for managing
the Company's business operations in the interests of the Company.
The allocation of functions and responsibilities to individual Board
members is presented in a separate section.

@ For functions, see section Executive Board and Supervisory Board on
page 114 et seqq.

In accordance with the law and the Articles of Association, the Super-
visory Board had 20 members at the balance sheet date, i.e. 30 Septem-
ber 2016. The Supervisory Board advises and oversees the Executive
Board in the management of the Company. It is involved in strategic and
planning decisions and all decisions of fundamental importance to the
Company. When the Executive Board takes decisions on major transac-
tions, such as the annual budget, major acquisitions or divestments, it is
required by its terms of reference to seek the approval of the Supervisory
Board. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board coordinates the work in
the Supervisory Board, chairs its meetings and represents the concerns
of the body externally. The Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee
have adopted terms of reference for their own work. In the run-up to
the Supervisory Board meetings, the representatives of shareholders
and employees meet separately.

The Executive Board provides the Supervisory Board at regular meetings
and in writing with comprehensive, up-to-date information about the
strategy, the budget, business performance and the situation of the
Group, including risk management and compliance. The Executive Board
works on the basis of terms of reference issued by the Supervisory Board.

TUI AG has taken out a D&0 insurance policy with an appropriate deduct-
ible for all members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board. The
deductible amounts to 10 % of the loss up to the amount of one and a
half times the fixed annual compensation.

COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

As at the balance sheet date, 30 September 2016, the Supervisory
Board of TUI AG comprised 20 members. The composition of the Super-
visory Board in financial year 2015/16 ensured that its members as a
group had the knowledge, ability and expert experience required to
properly complete their tasks. The goals set by the Supervisory Board
itself for its composition include in particular comprehensive industry
knowledge, at least five independent shareholder representatives, at least
five members with international experience, and diversity.

Twelve members of the Supervisory Board had considerable international
experience. Due to the different professional experiences of its members,
the composition of the Supervisory Board overall reflects a great diversity
of relevant experience, ability and industry knowhow. None of the share-
holder representatives on the Supervisory Board had any commercial
or personal relationship with the Company, its Executive Board or third
parties that might cause a material clash of interests. Seven shareholder
representatives are independent.

In accordance with the recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code, the original shareholder representatives were individ-
ually elected for five-year terms of office during elections to the Super-
visory Board at the relevant General Meetings (October 2014, Febru-
ary 2016). Only Prof. Klaus Mangold and Sir Michael Hodgkinson were
older than 68 years when they were elected as members of the Super-
visory Board. In both cases, the Supervisory Board deemed it appropriate
to deviate from the regular age limit in order for the Company to benefit
from Prof. Klaus Mangold's and Sir Michael Hodgkinson's extensive experi-
ence in order to complete the integration process and in order to ensure
continuity. With Peter Long, a former member of the Executive Board has
been a Supervisory Board member since the Annual General Meeting
2016 held on 9 February 2016.

COMMITTEES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD AND THEIR
COMPOSITION

At 30 September 2016, the balance sheet date, the Supervisory Board
had established five committees from among its members to support
its work: the Presiding Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Integration Committee (until December 2016) and the
Strategy Committee (since 9 February 2016).

A Mediation Committee was furthermore established in accordance
with section 27 (3) of the German Co-Determination Act.

The Presiding Committee and Audit Committee have eight members
each, with an equal number of shareholder representatives (including
the respective chairpersons of the committees) and employee repre-
sentatives. The Presiding Committee prepares, in particular, the appoint-
ment of Executive Board members, including the terms and conditions
of service contracts and remuneration proposals. The Audit Committee's
task is to support the Supervisory Board in exercising its oversight func-
tion. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an independent financial
expert and has particular knowledge and experience in the application
of accounting principles and internal control methods from his own
professional practice.
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The Nomination Committee consists exclusively of shareholder represent-
atives, in keeping with the recommendation in the German Corporate
Governance Code. The task of its four members is to suggest suitable
candidates for the Supervisory Board to propose to the Annual General
Meeting.

The Integration Committee was set up to advise and supervise the Execu-
tive Board in the integration process following the merger for two years
after the merger's completion. It prepares proposals for resolutions for
the Supervisory Board but does not have a mandate to take any deci-
sions on behalf of the Supervisory Board. It comprises five shareholder
representatives and one employee representative.

The Strategy Committee began its work after the Annual General Meeting
2016. Its task is to comprehensively advise and oversee the Executive
Board in developing and implementing the corporate strategy. It prepares
the annual strategy offsite meeting for the Supervisory Board, but does
not have a mandate to take any decisions on behalf of the Supervisory
Board. It comprises five shareholder representatives and one employee
representative.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Executive and Supervisory Board members have a duty to act in TUI AG's
best interests. In the completed financial year 2015/16, there were no
conflicts of interest requiring disclosure to the Supervisory Board. None
of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board members has a board role
or a consultancy contract with one of TUl's competitors. Peter Long did
not take part in the Supervisory Board resolution regarding payment of
remuneration entitlements still arising from his Executive Board role
adopted on 15 September 2016.

SPECIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 76 (4), 111 (5)

OF THE GERMAN STOCK CORPORATION ACT

At least 30 % of the Supervisory Board members were women and at
least 30 % were men at the balance sheet date. The Supervisory Board
was therefore compliant with section 96 (2) sentence 1 of the German
Stock Corporation Act. Neither the shareholder nor the employee repre-
sentatives on the Supervisory Board objected to overall compliance in
accordance with section 96 (2) sentence 2 of the German Stock Corpor-
ation Act.

The Supervisory Board resolved, in keeping with section 111 (5) of the
German Stock Corporation Act, that a woman should be recruited to
the Executive Board. This objective has been implemented with Dr Elke
Eller joining the Executive Board as at 15 October 2015.

In turn, the Executive Board resolved, in keeping with section 76 (4) of
the German Stock Corporation Act, that women should account for
20% of executives at the level immediately below the Executive Board
and 30% at the level below this. Both targets are to be achieved by
30 June 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
TUI AG shareholders exercise their co-determination and monitoring
rights at the Annual General Meeting, which takes place at least once a

year. The AGM takes decisions on all statutory matters, and these are
binding on all shareholders and the Company. For voting on resolutions,
each share confers one vote.

All shareholders registering in due time are entitled to participate in the
Annual General Meeting. Shareholders who are not able to attend the
AGM in person are entitled to have their voting rights exercised by a
bank, a shareholder association, one of the representatives provided by
TUI AG and acting on the shareholders’ behalf in accordance with their
instructions, or some other proxy of their own choosing. Shareholders
also have the opportunity of authorising the representative provided by
TUI AG via the web in the run-up to the AGM. Shareholders can, more-
over, register for electronic dispatch of the AGM documents.

The invitation to the AGM and the reports and information required for
voting are published in accordance with the provisions of the German
Stock Corporation Act and provided in German and English on TUI AG's
website. During the AGM, the presentations by the chairman of the
Supervisory Board and the Executive Board members can be followed
live over the Internet.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Good corporate governance entails the responsible handling of commer-
cial risks. The Executive Board of TUI AG and the management of the
TUI Group have comprehensive general and company-specific reporting
and monitoring systems available to identify, assess and manage these
risks. These systems are continually developed, adjusted to match
changes in overall conditions and reviewed by the auditors. The Executive
Board regularly informs the Supervisory Board about existing risks and
changes to these risks. The Audit Committee deals in particular with
monitoring the accounting process, including reporting, the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems and the internal
auditing system, compliance and audit of the annual financial statements.

More detailed information about risk management in the TUI Group is
presented in the Risk Report. It also contains the report on the accounting-
related internal control and risk management system required in ac-
cordance with the German Commercial Code (sections 289 (5), 315 (2)
no. 5 HGB).

@ Risk Report see page 49

TRANSPARENCY

TUI provides immediate, regular and up-to-date information about the
Group's economic situation and new developments to capital market
participants and the interested public. The Annual Report and the In-
terim Reports are published within the applicable timeframes. The Com-
pany publishes press releases and ad hoc announcements, if required,
on topical events and any new developments. Moreover, the company
website at www.tuigroup.com provides comprehensive information on
TUI Group and the TUI share.

The scheduled dates for the principal regular events and publications
— such as the AGM, Annual Report and Interim Reports — are set out in
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a financial calendar. The calendar is published well in advance and made
permanently accessible to the public on TUI AG's website.

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS

The Company was informed by Prof. Klaus Mangold, Alexey Mordashov,
Friedrich Joussen, Horst Baier, Dr Elke Eller and William Waggott of
notifiable purchase and sale transactions of TUI AG shares or related
financial instruments by directors (directors’ dealings or managers' trans-
actions) concerning financial year 2015/16. Details are provided on the
Company'’s website.

Purchase and sales transactions by members of the boards were gov-
erned by the TUI Share Dealing Code, adopted by the Executive Board
on 16 December 2014 for TUI Group, alongside corresponding statutory
provisions. The TUI Share Dealing Code will be adjusted as Regulation
(EU) 596/2014 ("Market Abuse Regulation”) has entered into force.

Apart from Alexey Mordashov (share ownership: approx. 19.3 %), no
member of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board holds shares in
TUI AG, related options or other derivatives representing 1 % or more of
the capital stock. Details regarding share ownership of individual mem-
bers are presented in the table on the Supervisory Board and Executive
Board.

@ See from page 114
ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING

TUI AG prepares its consolidated financial statements and consolidated
interim financial statements in accordance with the provisions of the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in the
European Union. The statutory annual financial statements of TUI AG,
which form the basis for the dividend payment, are prepared in accord-
ance with the German Commercial Code (HGB). The consolidated financial
statements are prepared by the Executive Board, audited by the auditors
and approved by the Supervisory Board. The interim reports are dis-
cussed between the Audit Committee and the Executive Board prior to
publication. The consolidated financial statements and the financial state-
ments of TUI AG were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Aktien-
gesellschaft Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Hanover, the auditors
elected by the 2016 Annual General Meeting. The audit was based on
German auditing rules, taking account of the generally accepted auditing
standards issued by the German Auditors’ Institute as well as the Inter-
national Standards on Auditing. It also covered risk management and
compliance with reporting requirements on corporate governance pur-
suant to section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act and Listing
Rules 9.8.7 R and 9.8.10.

@ See audit opinion by the auditors on page 269
The condensed consolidated interim financial statements and manage-

ment reports as at 31 December 2015, 31 March and 30 June 2016 were
examined by the auditors.

In addition, a contractual agreement was concluded with the auditors to
the effect that the auditors will immediately inform the Supervisory
Board of any grounds for disqualification or partiality as well as of all
findings and events of importance arising during the performance of
the audit. There were no grounds to provide such information in the
framework of the audit of financial year 2015/16.

TUI Group’s Compliance Management System is a fundamental element
of our commitment to commercial, environmental and socially respon-
sible activity and operations. It is underlined by our membership in the
UN Global Compact and therefore forms an indispensable part of TUI
Group's corporate culture and our corporate governance activities.

The strategic goal of TUI Group’s Compliance Management System is to
prevent misconduct and avoid liability risks for the Company, its legal
representatives, executives and employees and protect the reputation
of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

TUI Group's Compliance Management System is based on three pillars:
prevention, discovery and response, which, in turn, comprise a large
number of internal measures and processes.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESSES

PREVENTION @ EXPOSURE @ REACTION

Compliance Policies and Group Policies Reporting Implementation of Process Controls
Compliance Training Leads Exchange with Management and
Compliance Communication Investigations local Compliance Officers

Compliance Information
Compliance Risk Identification and
Risk Assessment

Disciplinary Measures

In the completed financial year, TUl Group's Compliance Management
System was subjected to a design audit by a leading auditing firm in
accordance with auditing standard PS 980 of the German Institute of
Auditors. The audit confirmed that TUI Group's Compliance Management
System has been designed so as to meet the requirements of that certi-
fication standard. In the run-up to the audit, the Group-wide Compliance
Management System had been readjusted and compliance processes
had been harmonised aross the Group.

COMPLIANCE CULTURE

The compliance culture forms the basis for the appropriateness and
effectiveness of the Compliance Management System. It reflects man-
agement’s fundamental attitude and conduct and the role of the super-
visory body.

It is expressed in our corporate value “Trusted”, appealing to our employ-
ees' personal responsibility and their honesty and sincerity in handling
customers, stakeholders and employees.

CODE OF CONDUCT/SUPPLIERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct, drawn up for the entire TUI Group, is a further
embodiment of our compliance culture and enshrines guiding principles
for everyone to follow, from executives and senior management to every
Group employee. It defines minimum standards aimed at assisting our
employees in their everyday work and providing orientation in conflict
situations.

@ Compliance online: www.tuigroup.com/en-en/about-us/compliance

The Suppliers’ Code of Conduct forms the counterpart to TUl's Code
of Conduct. It details our ethical, social and legal expectations of our
business partners. All business partners are required by contract to
observe all national and international anti-corruption laws applicable to
the supplier relationship. This places our business relationship with our
partners on a solid legal and social basis.

COMPLIANCE RULES

In addition, the principles set out in the Code of Conduct are detailed in
various policies and rules reflecting the legal requirements. This is
supported by our Group-wide policy management, developing the
standards for Group-wide policies and coordinating incorporation of
the relevant internal stakeholder groups, e.g. other departments or the
works council. This approach is designed to provide TUlI Group with a
set of policies which are as complete and comprehensible as possible
without seeking overregulation.

TUI Group's Compliance Rules offer guidance on appropriate conduct
regarding gifts and invitations, data protection and trade sanctions. All
groups of employees have thus been acquainted with the policies of
relevance to their everyday work.

COMPLIANCE PROGRAMME

In the period under review, the Compliance Programme focused on
various issues including anti-corruption measures, protecting free and
fair competition, data protection and the handling of trade sanctions
including anti-money laundering.

In the completed financial year, a software was used to facilitate risk
identification based on self-disclosure by TUI Group companies, above
all for the above topics: it was evaluated on the basis of the criteria of
likelihood of occurrence and potential damage (including reputational
damage). The results of identified compliance risks are used to derive
corresponding risk-minimising measures, which are agreed with the
relevant bodies, and implementation of the measures is automated.
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Moreover, TUI Group focused even more strongly on data protection,
which had already played a major role. Numerous measures were initiated,
e.g. structured coordination of all technical functions in the Company
relating to data protection law. As an international organisation, TUI
Group will therefore be prepared for future European changes in the
overall framework for data protection law.

COMPLIANCE TRAINING

Compliance training is a key element of TUI's Compliance Management
System, with its focus on preventing misconduct, and a crucial component
of TUI Group's Compliance culture. It is carried out according to a graded
concept: managers and staff at TUI have all benefited from face-to-face
teaching and online programmes. This enables all our employees to
acquaint themselves with Compliance and the underlying corporate
values, regardless of their position in the company hierarchy and their
geographical location. In the completed financial year, the online training
programme was extended so as to include a refresher course on TUl's
Code of Conduct. It has now been rolled out in the Group companies. In
addition, TUI companies and sectors offered training schemes with their
own specific focus to raise awareness of challenges they might face.

WHISTLEBLOWING

In agreement with various stakeholder groups, TUI offers its managers
and employees a Group-wide whistleblower system to enable serious
infringements of the corporate values anchored in TUI's Code of Conduct
to be reported anonymously and without reprisals. This whistleblowing
system is currently available to staff in 47 countries. All reports are

Remuneration Report

The remuneration report outlines the remuneration of the members
of the Executive Board of TUI AG as well as the remuneration of the
members of its Supervisory Board in accordance with the articles of
association. The remuneration report is based, in particular, on the
recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code ("GCGC"),
the requirements of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch)
and the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz) and, to the extent
practicable, the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
("UK-CGC").

TUI AG is a German stock corporation that is also listed on the London
Stock Exchange. Where mandatory provisions regarding the governance
of or legal requirements for a German stock corporation are affected
these are disclosed in this report and placed in context with the UK-CGC,
as required.

followed up in the interests of all stakeholders and the Company. Our
top priority is to ensure confidentiality and handle information discreetly.
Any incidents resulting from the use of the whistleblower system are
reviewed by Group Legal Compliance in conjunction with Group Audit.
Infringements are fully investigated in the interests of all our staff and
the Company itself.

COMPLIANCE STRUCTURE

TUI Group’s Compliance structure supports those responsible in the
task of communicating the values and rules and anchoring them in the
Group. It ensures that Compliance requirements are implemented
throughout the Group in different countries and cultures. The decentral-
ised Compliance structure was reinforced by additional staff resources
in recent months in order to respond to the requirements resulting
from structural change and internationalisation. Under the aegis of the
Chief Legal Compliance Officer, Group Legal Compliance work with the
decentralised Compliance Officers to perform the following tasks at
different management levels:

Raising awareness of Compliance and the technical issues allocated
to Legal Compliance

Achieving the goals of the Code of Conduct and the Compliance Rules
Providing training

Advising managers and employees

Securing the necessary exchange of information

Monitoring national and international legislative initiatives

Providing regular reports

l. APPROVAL OF THE REMUNERATION SCHEME BY
SHAREHOLDERS

A new remuneration scheme was proposed for Executive Board members

in financial year 2009/10 and approved by the shareholders of TUI AG at

the Annual General Meeting on 17 February 2010. The scheme is designed

to create incentives for sustained growth and robust financial perfor-

mance in the TUI Group.

Although common practice at many of the companies applying the UK-
CGC, the shareholders of TUI AG do not currently vote on the remuner-
ation policy on an annual basis. However, the approach adopted by
TUI AG reflects the practice at most German stock corporations and is
in compliance with the German Stock Corporation Act.
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1. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

Following a recommendation from the Presiding Committee and ac-
cording to section 87(1) sentence 1 German Stock Corporation Act, the
Supervisory Board determines the remuneration of the individual Execu-
tive Board members. It also regularly reviews the remuneration scheme
for the Executive Board.

@ For further remits, please see the Chairman’s letter page 9
The following principles, in particular, are taken into account in this regard:

Clarity and transparency.

Appropriateness and conformity with tasks, responsibilities and
success of each individual Executive Board member, including in the
relevant environment of comparable international firms, and taking
into account standard practice at other major German companies.
Economic position, performance and sustainable development of the
company.

Appropriate correlation between the levels of fixed remuneration
and performance-based remuneration.

Tying a material portion of total remuneration to the achievement of
ambitious, long-term performance targets.

Appropriateness in horizontal and vertical comparison (see page 141).
Ability to be competitive on the market for highly qualified Executive
Board members.

Tying shareholder interest to value increase and distribution of profits
(e.g. total shareholder return indicator) with corresponding incentives
for Executive Board members.

The remuneration scheme currently does not contain any malus or
clawback terms. This position will continue to be monitored.

I1l. REMUNERATION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD IN FINANCIAL
YEAR 2015/16

In financial year 2015/16, the remuneration for the Executive Board
comprises: (1) a fixed remuneration; (2) an annual performance-based
remuneration (Jahreserfolgsvergttung — “JEV"); (3) virtual shares of
TUI AG in accordance with the Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP"); (4)
fringe benefits; (5) pension entitlements; and (6) a potential additional
remuneration in cash or in virtual shares (Additional Remuneration).

Details are set out in the following tables:

1. FIXED REMUNERATION

PURPOSE AND LINK TO COMPANY STRATEGY

Highly-qualified Executive Board members who are needed to develop
and implement company strategy are to be attracted and retained.

The remuneration should be commensurate with the abilities, experience
and tasks of the individual Executive Board member.

PROCEDURE

In determining the fixed remuneration the Supervisory Board takes into
account, in particular, the relevant general principles.

The fixed remuneration is paid in twelve equal instalments at the end of
each month. If the service contract begins or ends in the course of
the year relevant for payment of the remuneration, the fixed annual
remuneration will be paid pro-rata for that year.

The remuneration is generally reviewed when service contracts of Execu-
tive Board members are extended, and fixed for the term of the new
service contract. A review of the remuneration can also take place during
the term of a service contract in particular if there is a change with respect
to the tasks or responsibility of an Executive Board member.

2. ANNUAL PERFORMANCE-BASED REMUNERATION
(JAHRESERFOLGSVERGUTUNG - “JEV")

PURPOSE AND LINK TO COMPANY STRATEGY

The JEV is intended to motivate Executive Board members to achieve
ambitious and challenging financial and strategic performance targets
throughout the financial year. The performance targets are reflective of
the company strategy and aimed at increasing corporate value.

PROCEDURE

The JEV is calculated on the basis of a group performance indicator and
the individual performance of the Executive Board member. The perfor-
mance reference period is the financial year of TUI AG.

An individual target amount (“Target Amount”) is agreed for each Execu-
tive Board member in their service contract. Since 1 October 2010 the
performance target has been the reported earnings before interest, tax
and amortisation of goodwill (“Reported Group EBITA"). The target value
for the one-year performance reference period for the reported group
EBITA performance target will be set each year by the Supervisory Board.

To measure performance, the expected reported group EBITA will be
compared with the corresponding actual value of the reported group
EBITA as reported in the audited consolidated accounts of TUI AG to be
prepared in accordance with the accounting rules in force at the time.
The degree of target achievement is determined as follows:

If the value achieved is below the target value by 50 % or more, this
is equivalent to a target achievement of 0%.

If the value achieved corresponds to the target value, this is equivalent
to a target achievement of 100 %.

If the value achieved exceeds the target value by 50 % or more, this
is equivalent to a target achievement of 187.5 %.



In the event of a reported group EBITA of between 50 % below target
value and target value, any award will be based on a linear interpolation
between 0% and 100 % and in the event of a reported group EBITA of
between target value and 50 % above target value linear interpolation
between 100 % and 187.5% will be used to determine the degree of
target achievement. The degree of target achievement will be rounded
to two decimal places, as is customary in commercial practice.

At the discretion of the Supervisory Board, the degree of target
achievement for the performance target can be multiplied by a factor of
between 0.8 and 1.2, based on the Executive Board member's achieve-
ment of individual performance targets and other performance indicators
such as customer satisfaction and/or employee satisfaction metrics.

The figure resulting from the multiplication of the target amount by the
degree of target achievement for the reported group EBITA and the
discretionary multiplier will be paid out in cash in the month following
the approval by the Supervisory Board of the annual accounts of TUI AG
for the respective financial year. If the service contract begins or ends in
the course of the financial year relevant for the grant of the JEV, the
claims for payment of the same will generally be pro-rata.

CAP

The JEV is capped annually and individually for each Executive Board
member; for the figures, see the table on page 132.

In accordance with section 87(1) sentence 3 German Stock Corporation Act,
the Supervisory Board is entitled to limit the amount of the JEV to allow for
extraordinary circumstances (e.g. takeover of the company, sale of parts of
the company, uncovering of hidden reserves, external influences).

3. VIRTUAL SHARES ACCORDING TO THE LONG-TERM
INCENTIVE PLAN (“LTIP")
3.1 CALCULATION METHOD

PURPOSE AND LINK TO COMPANY STRATEGY

The long-term objective is to increase corporate and shareholder value
by defining ambitious goals that are closely linked to the company’s
earnings, share price performance and dividends.

PROCEDURE

The LTIP is a performance share plan based on virtual shares and is
assessed over a period of four years (“Performance Reference Period”).
Payments are granted in annual tranches.

For Executive Board members, an individual target amount (“Target
Amount") is agreed in the service contract. At the beginning of each
financial year a provisional number of virtual shares, commensurate
with the target amount, will be set. This will constitute the basis for the
determination of the final performance-based payment for the tranche
in question at the end of the respective performance reference period.

Remuneration Report __

To set this number, the target amount will be divided by the average
Xetra price of TUI AG shares over the 20 prior trading days. The claim
to a payment only arises upon expiry of the performance reference
period and depends on whether or not the respective performance target
is achieved.

The performance target for determining the amount of the final payout
at the end of the performance reference period is the development of
the total shareholder return (“TSR") of TUI AG relative to the develop-
ment of the TSR of the Dow Jones Stoxx 600 Travel & Leisure (“Index"),
whereby the ranking of the TUI AG TSR in relation to the index compa-
nies will be monitored over the entire performance reference period.
The TSR is the aggregate of all share price increases plus the gross
dividends paid over the performance reference period. Data from a
reputable data provider (e.g. Bloomberg, Thomson Reuters) will be used
for the purpose of establishing the TSR values for TUI AG and the index.
The reference for the purpose of determining the rankings is the com-
position of the index on the last day of the performance reference period.
The values for companies that were not listed over the entire performance
reference period will be factored in on a pro-rata basis. The level of target
achievement is established as follows depending on the ranking of the
TSR of TUI AG relative to the TSR values of the index companies:

a TSR value of TUI AG equivalent to the bottom and second to bot-
tom value of the index corresponds to a target achievement of 0 %.
a TSR value of TUI AG equivalent to the third to bottom value of the
index corresponds to a target achievement of 25 %.

a TSR value of TUI AG equivalent to the median of the index corres-
ponds to a target achievement of 100 %.

a TSR value of TUI AG equivalent to the third to top value of the index
corresponds to a target achievement of 175 %.

For performance between the third to bottom and the third to top rank,
linear interpolation will be used to determine the level of target achieve-
ment at between 25 % and 175 %. The degree of target achievement will
be rounded to two decimal places, as is customary in commercial practice.

To determine the final number of virtual shares, the degree of target
achievement will be multiplied by the provisional number of virtual
shares on the final day of the performance reference period (“Final
Number Of Virtual Shares"). The payout is determined by multiplying
the final number of virtual shares by the average Xetra price of TUI AG
shares over the 20 trading days prior to the end of the performance
reference period. The payout which is calculated in this way will be due
in the month following the approval of the annual accounts of TUI AG
for the fourth financial year of the performance reference period and
the resulting amount is paid out in cash. If the service contract begins
or ends in the course of the financial year relevant for the grant of the
LTIP, the claims for payment of the same will generally be pro-rata.

CAP

The LTIP is capped annually and individually for each Executive Board
member; for the figures, see the table on page 132.
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3.2 DEVELOPMENT OF AGGREGATE VIRTUAL SHARES OF
CURRENT EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS (LTIP MODEL)

Number
Balance as at 30 Sep 2015 1,072,420
Virtual shares granted for financial year 2015/16" 291,933
Decrease in virtual shares —378,708
Balance as at 30 Sep 2016 985,645

* William Waggott's LTIP tranche for financial year 2015/16 included in full, since LTIP
granted in full at the beginning of the financial year

On 30 September 2016, former Executive Board members held no
virtual shares in TUl AG (previous year: no virtual shares) that were
granted after the merger of TUI AG and TUI Travel PLC (“TUI Travel") in
December 2014 (the “Merger”).

There are provisions totalling €6,693.1 thousand and liabilities worth
€1,896.0 thousand (previous year: €1,530.0 thousand) to cover entitle-
ments under TUI AG's LTIP for current Executive Board members. Those
provisions only cover liabilities arising from the LTIP of TUI AG.

4. FRINGE BENEFITS

PURPOSE AND LINK TO COMPANY STRATEGY

Fringe benefits offered should be competitive on the market for highly
qualified Executive Board members.

PROCEDURE

Executive Board members receive the following fringe benefits:

Reimbursement of business travel expenses in accordance with
TUI AG's general business travel guidelines.

Twice a year, free of charge, a holiday from within the World of TUI
range, without any limitation as to tour operator, type of holiday,
category or price. Spouses/partners are granted a 50 % discount on
the catalogue price for the aforementioned vacations, and children still
in education or training a 100 % discount. Apart from that, a reduc-
tion of 75 % (spouses/partners)/50% (children still in education or
training) is granted for flights.

A suitable company car with driver or alternatively a car allowance of
€1.5 thousand gross per month.

Insurance cover is provided in line with the agreements applicable in
Germany and the United Kingdom. This is offered as follows:

TUI AG provides insurance cover for accidents to the customary extent
for Mr Joussen, Dr Eller, Mr Baier and Mr Ebel and will pay the corres-
ponding insurance contributions for the terms of their service con-
tracts. The coverage amounts to €1,500.0 thousand for death and
€3,000.0 thousand for disablement. Furthermore, Mr Joussen, Dr Eller,
Mr Baier and Mr Ebel receive an allowance towards health and long-
term care insurance in the amount payable if the respective Executive
Board member were an employee, but no more than half of each in-
surance premium.

Insofar as this is permitted by law, Mr Burling will remain a beneficiary,
at the expense of TUI AG, of the UK term life, vocational disability and
health insurance programmes. Mr Long and Mr Waggott received the
fringe benefits on a pro-rata basis up to the time at which they left the
Executive Board.

TUI AG also takes out criminal law protection insurance that provides
cover for the Executive Board members regarding criminal and misde-
meanour proceedings, if these proceedings are based on an act or a
failure to act in the exercise of their duties for TUI AG. TUI AG also takes
out suitable D&0 insurance coverage for the Executive Board members
to cover possible claims brought under private law on the basis of statu-
tory liability provisions against one or more of the Executive Board
members by a third party or the Company for damages for a breach of
duty committed in the exercise of their duties. The D&O insurance
provides for a deductible of 10 % of the damage up to 150 % of the fixed
annual remuneration.

AMOUNT

The value of the company car, free holidays and insurance benefits
received annually by an individual Executive Board member normally
does not exceed €100.0 thousand.

5. PENSION BENEFITS

PURPOSE AND LINK TO COMPANY STRATEGY

Highly-qualified Executive Board members who are needed to develop
and implement company strategy are to be acquired and retained.

The pension entitlements should be competitive on the market for
highly qualified Executive Board members and should provide them
with a corresponding pension in their retirement.

PROCEDURE

Pensions are paid to former Executive Board members if they reach the
predefined age limit or are permanently incapacitated. The Executive
Board members are not entitled to receive transition payments upon
leaving the Executive Board, with the exception of Mr Ebel who has an
acquired right to receive transition payments under a legacy contract.



With regard to pension entitlements, different principles apply to
Mr Joussen, Dr Eller, Mr Baier and Mr Ebel on the one hand and Mr Long,
Mr Burling and Mr Waggott on the other hand due to the legacy systems
in Germany and the UK.

Mr Joussen, Dr Eller, Mr Baier and Mr Ebel are entitled to pension benefits
according to the pension commitments granted to Executive Board
members of TUI AG (“TUI AG Pension Scheme"). These Executive Board
members receive, on an annual basis, a contractually agreed amount
that is paid into an existing pension scheme for the respective Executive
Board member. The contributions to the company pension scheme carry
an interest rate established in the pension commitment. The interest
rate currently stands at 5% p.a. The beneficiary may choose between a
one-off payment, payment by instalments or pension payments.

The amounts agreed on in the service contracts of the aforementioned
Executive Board members are:

Mr Joussen: €454.5 thousand per year. Mr Joussen becomes eligible
for payment of the pension upon reaching the age of 62.

Dr Eller: €230.0 thousand per year. The amount will be provided on
a pro-rata basis in connection with Dr Eller having taken up office on
15 October 2015. Dr Eller becomes eligible for payment of the pension
upon reaching the age of 63.

Mr Baier: €267.75 thousand per year. Mr Baier becomes eligible for
payment of the pension upon reaching the age of 60.

Mr Ebel: €207.0 thousand per year. Mr Ebel becomes eligible for
payment of the pension upon reaching the age of 62.
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Should Mr Joussen, Dr Eller, Mr Baier and Mr Ebel retire from TUI AG
before the normal retirement date due to an ongoing occupational
disability, they will receive an occupational disability pension until they
are able to work again, but at most until they reach the normal retire-
ment date.

Under certain circumstances, spouses, partners or cohabitants of the
Executive Board members will, should the respective Executive Board
member die, receive a survivor's pension worth 60 % of the pension for
their lifetime or until remarriage. Children of Executive Board members
will, should the respective Executive Board member die, receive an
orphan’s pension, paid as a maximum until they reach the age of 27.
Children who have lost one parent will receive 20 % of the pension, and
those who have lost both parents will receive 25 %. This claim is subject
to the prerequisite that the child meets the requirements set out in
section 32(3), (4), sentence 1 nos. 1 to 3 and (5) German Income Tax Act
(Einkommensteuergesetz).

Mr Burling receives a fixed annual amount of €225.0 thousand for his
pension. This amount may be paid into a company pension scheme
where possible or where the tax arrangements prevent payment into
a pension scheme will be payable as cash for this specific purpose.
Mr Waggott and Mr Long received the pension contribution on a pro-
rata basis in each case up to the time at which they left the Executive
Board:

Mr Long: €164.1 thousand.
Mr Waggott: €177.2 thousand.

PENSIONS OF CURRENT EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS UNDER THE TUI AG PENSION SCHEME

Addition to/reversal of

pension provisions Net present value as at

€'000 2015/16 2014/15 30 Sep 16 30 Sep 15
| |

Friedrich Joussen 1,130.2 1,876.7 3,006.9 1,876.7

Horst Baier 966.8 1,193.1 9,020.1 8,053.3

Sebastian Ebel 490.7 784.7 1,275.4 784.7

Dr Elke Eller 435.6 0.0 435.6 0.0

Total 3,023.3 3,854.5 13,738.0 10,714.7

At 30 September 2016, pension obligations for current Executive Board
members totalled €13,738.0 thousand (previous year balance sheet
date: €10,714.7 thousand) according to IAS 19 and €10,745.2 thousand
(previous year balance sheet date: €9,233.1 thousand) according to
commercial law provisions. In the period under review, the provision
according to IAS 19 was increased by an amount of €3,023.3 thousand
(previous year: increase of €3,854.5 thousand), with an increase of
€1,512.1 thousand (previous year: increase of €2,861.2 thousand)
according to the provisions of the German Commercial Code.

Where the above table shows a corresponding amount, the pension
obligations for beneficiaries are funded via the conclusion of pledged
reinsurance policies. As the reinsurance policy fully covers the pension
obligations for former and current Executive Board members, the in-
surance was deducted as an asset from the pension obligations.
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6. POTENTIAL ADDITIONAL REMUNERATION IN CASH OR IN
VIRTUAL SHARES (“ADDITIONAL REMUNERATION")

more than 20% over budget. The Supervisory Board determines
whether and to what amount such additional remuneration will be paid.

PURPOSE AND LINK TO COMPANY STRATEGY

CAP

The additional remuneration is intended to compensate exceptional
performance by Executive Board members.

The additional remuneration is capped annually and individually for each
Executive Board member; for the figures, see the table below.

PROCEDURE

The Supervisory Board may grant an additional remuneration in cash or
in virtual shares in exceptional circumstances such as an extraordinarily
heavy workload in connection with the merger between TUI AG and
TUI Travel or a realization of synergies that exceeds the planned level by

7. REMUNERATION CAPS

The following caps apply to the remuneration (remuneration components
and total remuneration) payable to Executive Board members for a
financial year:

REMUNERATION CAPS

Additional Maximum total
€000 Fixed remuneration? JEV LTIP remuneration remuneration3
Friedrich Joussen 1,100.0 2,070.0 4,440.0 920.0 7.500.0
Peter Long! 1,100.0 2,070.0 4,440.0 920.0 7.500.0
Horst Baier 740.0 1,012.5 2,025.0 450.0 4,200.0
David Burling 600.0 900.0 1,500.0 400.0 3,450.0
Sebastian Ebel 680.0 720.0 1,500.0 320.0 3,380.0
Dr Elke Eller? 680.0 675.0 1,260.0 300.0 3,100.0
William Waggott' 720.0 810.0 2,100.0 360.0 4,080.0

T Amount for the whole year (12 months), possibly pro rated caps: see from page 138
2 Fixed amount, no cap applied

3 Contractually agreed cap for total remuneration (including fixed remuneration, JEV, LTIP, company pension, additional remuneration and fringe benefits)

IV. ROLLED-OVER TUI TRAVEL SHARES (“SHARE AWARDS")
During their period of service as Executive Directors of TUI Travel,
Mr Long and Mr Waggott received long-term incentives in annual
tranches in the form of share awards with a vesting period of three
years. Mr Burling, who was not an Executive Director of TUI Travel,
likewise received these share awards on the basis of his employment
relationship with TUI Travel. The conditions of the share awards were
laid down by TUI Travel's Remuneration Committee and approved by
the shareholders.

Because of the three-year vesting period, some tranches were not yet due
and payable at the time of the merger. Following the completion of the
merger and the subsequent delisting of TUI Travel, it was agreed that
the outstanding share awards would be rolled over to TUI AG. On the due
date, all share awards were converted into a corresponding number of
TUI AG shares. On the one hand, the share awards result from a Deferred
Annual Bonus Scheme (“DABS"). This comprises deferred annual bonus
amounts that were earned during periods prior to the merger.

On the other hand, share awards arise under the Performance Share
Plan ("PSP"). The performance conditions applicable to the PSP are as
follows: The conversion is carried out on the basis of the earnings per
share (EPS), the total shareholder return (TSR) and the return on invested
capital (ROIC) over a three-year period. The EPS is weighted at 50 %,
the TSR at 25 % and the ROIC at 25 %.

After the merger, the Supervisory Board agreed that the performance
would be measured up to the date of the merger on the basis of
TUI Travel's performance and from the date of the merger onwards on
the basis of TUI AG's performance. The aggregate performance would
then be assessed for the underlying assessment period in each case.

Because Mr Long and Mr Waggot left the Executive Board during the
course of financial year 2015/ 16, the Supervisory Board agreed with them
that their outstanding claims to the share awards would be paid out pre-
maturely. Mr Long received an amount of €5,695.1 thousand as compen-
sation for all of his outstanding share awards; the payment became
due on 30 September 2016. Mr Long did not take part in the passing of
the resolution by the Supervisory Board on 15 September 2016 on the
redemption of any share awards still existing at that time. Mr Waggot
received an amount of €2,520.0 thousand as compensation for all of his
outstanding share awards; the payment became due on 31 August 2016.



In the context of paying out the rolled-over share awards of Messrs.
Long and Waggot, the Supervisory Board also agreed with Mr Burling
that all of his outstanding claims to the share awards would be paid out.
In this connection, Mr Burling received a compensation payment of
€1,741.0 thousand; this payment became due on 30 September 2016.

Remuneration Report __

The share awards of Messrs. Long, Burling and Waggot that became
due and payable and/or were paid out prematurely during financial
year 2015/16 as well as the share awards of Johan Lundgren, who left the
Executive Board during financial year 2014/15, that have become due and
payable and that are still outstanding are shown in the following table.
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FORMER EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OF TUI TRAVEL PLC
OUTSTANDING DABS/DABLIS SHARE AWARDS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016 (AWARDED BY TUI TRAVEL PLC)
TUI AG CLOSING SHARE PRICE AT 30 SEP 2016 (€): 12.69

TUI AG shares/ Market price
nil-cost (TUI AG) per
options held at share at award
Executive Director 1 October 2015 Award date €)
Peter Long DABS 102,401 6 Dec 12 8.773
DABS 409,6072 6 Dec 12 8.773
PSP 238,8373 6 Dec 12 8773
DABS 72,436" 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 289,747%4 12 Dec 13 11.249
PSP 134,9763 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 64,6265 8 Dec 14 14.376
Total 1,312,630
William Waggott DABS 53,5481 6 Dec 12 8.773
DABS 2141942 6 Dec 12 8.773
PSP 92,7253 6 Dec 12 8773
DABS 39,1271 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 156,5082 4 12 Dec 13 11.249
PSP 58,2243 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 17,0681:5 8 Dec 14 14.376
Total 631,394
David Burling DABS 16,8581 6 Dec 12 8.773
DABS 67,4352 6 Dec 12 8.773
PSP 42,1473 6 Dec 12 8773
DABS 16,0771 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 64,3102 4 12 Dec 13 11.249
PSP 31,7583 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 9,9755 8 Dec 14 11.278
PSP 54,9023.5 8 Dec 14 14376
Total 248,560
Johan Lundgren DABS 68,1521 6 Dec 12 8.773
DABS 272,6112 6 Dec 12 8773
PSP 118,0133 6 Dec 12 8.773
DABS 47,7231 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 190,8922 4 12 Dec 13 11.249
PSP 74,1043 12 Dec 13 11.249
DABS 21,7235 8 Dec 14 14376
Total 771,495
GRAND TOTAL 2,964,079

All outstanding share awards shown were made over TUI Travel PLC shares. At vest/exercise, shares will convert to TUI AG shares at the merger conversion ratio of 0.399.

1 DABS deferred award: The deferred element of annual bonus, subject to forfeiture for gross misconduct, bankruptcy or certain other circumstances in accordance with the scheme rules.
2 DABS matching award: A multiple of the deferred award, subject to performance conditions over the three-year vesting period.

3 PSP award: Subject to performance conditions over the three-year vesting period.

4 Change to remuneration structure with effect from 1 October 2014 — last matching awards made in December 2013.

5 All awards made in December 2014 are phantom awards and will therefore be settled in cash on vesting.



Remuneration Report __

TUI AG shares/ TUI AG shares/ Maximum TUI AG  Maximum value based
nil cost options Market price nil-cost options shares/nil-cost on TUI AG share
vested and released (TUI AG) Planned/Actual lapsed during the options held at price of €12.69 at
during the year ended per share at Market value vesting and year ended 30 September 2016 30 September 2016
30 September 2016 vesting (€) at vesting (€) release date 30 September 2016 (see Note 5) (€)
102,401 16,289 1,668,010 6 Dec 15 0 0 0
354,064 16,289 5,767,348 6 Dec 15 55,543 0 0
206,451 16.289 3,362,880 6 Dec 15 32,386 0 0
72,436 12.500 905,463 30 Sep 16 0 0 0
217,310 12.500 2,716,378 30 Sep 16 72,437 0 0
101,232 12.500 1,265,400 30 Sep 16 33,744 0 0
64,626 12.500 807,838 30 Sep 16 0 0 0
1,118,520 16,493,318 194,110 0 0
53,548 16.289 872,243 6 Dec 15 0 0 0
185,149 16.289 3,015,892 6 Dec 15 29,045 0 0 :1'_,,
80,151 16.289 1,305,580 6 Dec 15 12,574 0 0 "=
39,127 11.600 453,873 31 Aug 16 0 0 0 é .
117,381 11.600 1,361,620 31 Aug 16 39,127 0 0 'E
43,668 11.600 506,549 31 Aug 16 14,556 0 0 =
17,068 11.600 197,989 31 Aug 16 0 0 0 g
536,092 7,713,745 95,302 0 0 "2
16,858 16.289 274,600 6 Dec 15 0 0 0 a
58,291 16.289 949,502 6 Dec 15 9,144 0 0 g(
36,439 16.289 593,555 6 Dec 15 5,708 0 0 H
16,077 12.500 200,963 30 Sep 16 0 0 0 4 ;%'
48,233 12.500 602,906 30 Sep 16 16,077 0 0 e,
23,819 12.500 297,731 30 Sep 16 7,939 0 0 -
9,975 12.500 124,688 30 Sep 16 0 0 0
41177 12.500 514,706 30 Sep 16 13,725 0 0
209,692 3,043,945 38,868 0 0
68,152 16.289 1,110,128 6 Dec 15 0 0 0
235,645 16.289 3,838,421 6 Dec 15 36,966 0 0
102,011 16.289 1,661,657 6 Dec 15 16,002 0 0
0 0 12 Dec 16 0 47,723 605,605
0 0 12 Dec 16 0 190,892 2,422,419
0 0 12 Dec 16 0 74,104 940,380
0 0 8 Dec 17 0 21,723 275,665
405,808 6,610,207 52,968 312,719 3,968,404
—
2,270,112 33,861,215 52,968 312,719 3,968,404

FURTHER INFORMATION
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V. PAYMENTS/BENEFITS IN CASE OF PREMATURE
TERMINATION OF EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERSHIP
1. GENERAL CONTRACTUAL FRAMEWORK
The payments to be made to an Executive Board member on the pre-
mature termination of his service contract without good cause have in
principle been limited in the service contracts of Messrs. Joussen and
Baier to an amount equal to twice their annual remuneration. It has
been agreed in the service contracts of Dr Eller, Mr Ebel, Mr Long,
Mr Burling and Mr Waggott that payments to be made on the premature
termination of their Executive Board membership without good cause
may not — in the case of premature termination during the first year
after the coming into force of the service contract — exceed an amount
equal to twice their annual remuneration and — in the case of premature
termination after the end of the first year after the coming into force of
the service contract — an amount equal to their annual remuneration
("Severance Pay Cap”). In each case, no more than the remaining term
will be compensated. The severance pay cap is calculated on the basis of
the target direct remuneration (fixed remuneration, target JEV and target
LTIP) for the last expired financial year and, if relevant, the expected
target direct remuneration for the current financial year. If the service
contract is terminated for cause without notice, no payments will be
made to Executive Board members.

In cases of premature termination of the service contract, the JEV and
payments under the LTIP will be governed as follows:

JEV:

¢ |If the company terminates the service contract without notice
before the end of the one-year performance reference period for
good cause attributable to the beneficiary or if the beneficiary
terminates the service contract without good cause, the claim to the
JEV for the performance reference period in question will be for-
feited and no alternative remuneration or compensation will be paid.

¢ In all other cases of premature termination of the service contract
before the end of the one-year performance reference period, the
JEV will generally be paid on a pro-rata basis.

LTIP:

¢ |f the company terminates the service contract without notice be-
fore the end of the respective performance reference period for
good cause attributable to the Executive Board member, or if the
Executive Board member terminates the service contract without
good cause, all claims under the LTIP will lapse for all tranches
not yet paid and no alternative remuneration or compensation will
be paid.

e |f the service contract ends before the expiry of the performance
reference period for other reasons, the claims under the LTIP will
be maintained for tranches not yet paid. The tranche for the current
financial year will generally be reduced on a pro-rata basis. The
pay-out will be calculated in the same way as in the case of the
continuation of the service contract.

The service contracts of the Executive Board members do not contain
change of control clauses.

2. PAYMENTS/BENEFITS IN FINANCIAL YEAR 2015/16

ON ACCOUNT OF THE PREMATURE TERMINATION OF

EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERSHIP
The Supervisory Board and Mr Waggott agreed that Mr Waggott would
resign as a member of the Executive 